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IN THE JUSTICE COURT OF EAST FORK TOWNSHIP
COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OFFf NEVADA

THE §TATE OF NEVADA.
Plaintiff,
VS, CRIMINAL
COMPLAINT

MICHAEL LOUIS COTA,
DOB: 02/02/1999

ROBERT DONALD BROWN
DOB: 02/08/1996
Defendants, /

Matthew Johnson, Deputy District Attorney, County of Douglas, State of Nevada, on
information and belief, being first duly sworn, makes complaint and charges Michael Louis
Cota with the crimes of CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY ANIYOR LARCENY, a
violation of NRS [99.480, a gross misdemeanor, CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT AN (OFFENSE
INVOLVING STOLEN PROPERTY, a violation of NRS 199,480, a gross misdemeuanor,
PRINCIPAL TO BURGLARY WITH A DEADLY WEAPON OR A FIREARM, a violation of]
NRS 205.060(1), (4). NRS 195.020, a category B felony, PRINCIPAL TO GRAND
LARCENY OF A FIREARM, a violation of NRS 203.226, NRS 195.020 a category B felony,
and PRINCIPAL TO POSSESSION OF STOLEN PROPERTY. a violation of NRS 205.275.
NRS 195020, a category C felony, and charges Robert Denald Brown with the critnes ofl
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT AN OFIENSE INVOLVING STOLEN PROPERTY, a
viplation of NRS 199,480, a gross misdemeanor and PRINCIPAL TO POSSESSION OF
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STOLEN PROPERTY, a violation of NRS 205.275, NRS 195.020, « category C felony,

committed in the County of Douglas, State of Nevada on or about February 13, 2018, as

follows:

COUNT ONE: CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURLGARY
AND/OR LARCENY, a violation of NRS
199.480, a gross misdemcanor

Delendant Michagl Louis Cota did willfully and unlawfully conspire with
another person to commit burglary and/or larceny, by agreeing with “AQ”
DOB 11/06/03 to enter the residence located at 1340 Bishop Circle in
Gardnerville to sieal items inside and/or agreeing with “AG"” DOB
11/06/03 to transport *AG” to the residence located al 1340 Bishop Circle
in Gardnerville so that “AG" could enter the residence to steal items inside
and in furtherance of said conspiracy, did commit the acts as set forth in
Counts 3 and 4 said acts being incorporated by reference as though fully sct

forth herein, all of which occurred in the County of Douglas, State of
Nevada,

COUNT TWO: CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT AN OFFENSE
INVOLVING STOLEN PROPERTY, a
violation of NRS 199,480, a gross misdemeanor

Defendants Michael Louis Cota and/or Robert Donald Brown did willfully
and unlawfully conspire with another person 10 commit an offense
involving stolen property, as prohibited by NRS 205275, by agreeing with
each other and/or a male named Oscar, also known as "Cheespa,” and/or
=AG” DOB 11/06/03 that Osecar and/or Robert Donald Brown, and/or
Michae) Louis Cota buy, receive, possess, or withhold a stolen fivearms),
and in furtherance of said conspiracy defendanti(s) did commii the acls as
set forth in Counts 5 and 6 said acts being incorporated by reference as

though fully sct forth herein, all of which occurred in the County of
Douglas, State of Nevada,

COUNT THREE: PRINCIPAL TO BURGLARY WITH A
DEADLY WEAPON OR A FIREARM, a
violation of NRS 208.060(1), (4), NRS 105.020 a
category B felony

Defendant Michael Louis Cota did willfully and unlawfully enter, any
house, room, apartment, warehouse, barn or other buitding, and/or whether
present or absent aid, abet, counsel, encourage, hire, command, induce, or
otherwise procure another person to enter, any house, room. apariment,
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) warchouse, barn or other building, and/or act in furtherance of a
conspiracy, such that he is liable for the acts of his co-conspirator(s) to
2 enter, any house, room, apartment, warehouse, barn or other building, with
the intent to commit grand or petit larceny, or any felony therein, and said
3 defendant had in his possession or gained possession of any firearm or
4 deadly weapon at any time before leaving the structure or upon leaving the
structure, 10-wit: the defendant drove “*AG" DOB 11/06/03 to the residence
5 located at 1340 Bishop Circle in Gardnerville and/or entered the same
residence to commit grand or petit larceny and had in his possession or did
6 gain possession of a Spikes Tactical AR-15 rifle and/or Single Shot Pellet
7 Rifte, all of which occurred in the County of Douglas, State of Nevada
8 COUNT FOUR: PRINCIPAL TO GRAND LARCENY OF A
FIREARM, a violation of NRS 205.226, NRS
9 195.020 a category B felony
to Detendant Michael Louis Cota did willfully and unlawfully and
Pt intentionally. steal, take and carry away a fircarm owned by another
person, and/or whether present or absent aid, abet, counsel, encourage,
) g 12 hire, command, induce, or otherwise procure another person to steal, take
S o 13 and carry away a firearm owned by another person, andfor act in
gn 2 = furtherance of a conspiracy, such that he is liable for the acts of his co-
EE8E 4 conspirator(s) to steal, take and carry away a firearm owned by another
ig 28 person, to-wit: the defendant and/or “AG™ DOB 11/06/03 took a Spikes
5cgg 15 Tactical AR-15 rifle and/or Single Shot Pellet Rifle after defendant drove
“é’ E E g 16 “AG"” to the residence located at 1340 Bishop Circle in Gardnerville, all of
"éi pht which oceurred in the County of Douglas, State of Nevada,
= B 37
18 COUNT FIVE: PRINCIPAL TO POSSESSION OF STOLEN
PROPERTY, u vivlation of NRS 205,275, NRS
19 195.020 a category C felony
20 Defendant Michael Louis Cota did willfully, unlawfully, and knowingly,
21 possess, buy, receive, or withhold stolen property, and/or whether preseni
or absent aid, abet, counsel, encourage, hire, command, induce, or
22 otherwisc procure another person to possess, buy, receive, or withhold the
2 stolen property and/or act in furtherance of a conspiracy, such that he is
lable for the acts of his co-conspirator(s), to possess, buy, receive, or
24 withhold the stolen property, for the their own gain or to prevent the true
owner(s) from again possessing the property, knowing that such property
25 was stolen, or uwnder such circumstances as should have caused a
26 reasonible person 10 know that such goods were so oblained, said property
having a value of $650.00 or more, to-wit: Michael Louis Cota possessed,
27 received, or withheld a Spikes Tactical AR-15 rifle and/or Single Shot
Peliet Rifle and/or two Glock .40 caliber magazines, and/or an ammunition
28 can containing various caliber ammunition, and/or a black “Combat Style”
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! fixed blade knife; and/or arranged for a male named Oscar, also known as
“Cheespa,” andfor “AG"™ DOB 11/06/03, and/or Robert Donald Brown 10
2 possess, buy, receive, or withhold a Spikes Tactical AR-15 rifle and/or
Single Shot Pellet Rifle, all of which gceurred in the County of Douglas,
3 Stare of Nevada,
4
5 COUNT SIX: PRINCIPAL TO POSSESSION OF STOLEN
PROPERTY, a violation of NRS 203.275, NRS
6 195.020 a category C felony
7 Defendant Robert Donald Brown did willfutly, unlawfully, and knowingly,
g possess, buy, receive, or withhold stolen property, and/or whether present
or absent aid, abet, counsel, encourage, hire, command, induce, o
9 otherwise procure ancther person {o possess, buy, receive, or withhold the
stolen property and/or act in furtherapce of a conspiracy, sucl that he js
10 liable for the acts of his co-conspirator(s), to possess, buy, receive, or
1 withholid the stolen property. for the their own gain or to prevent the true
owner(s) from again possessing the preperty, knowing that such property
v 5 12 was stolen, or under such cireumstances as should have caused a
5 - § reasonable person wo know that such goods were so obtained, said property
“zge 13 having a value ol $650.00 or more, to-wit: Robert Donatd Brown found a
£ 358, buyer for a Spikes Tactical AR-15 rifle and/or Single Shot Pellet Rifle
X ?-; 3 and/or provided the contact information for a potential buyer named Oscat.
FEZ:s 15 also known as “Cheespa,” and/or helped move the firearm(s) to the buyer’s
G325 vehicle, all of which occurred in the County of Douglas., State of Nevada,
2TEE 16
g &
& E 7
18 i C .
against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. Complainant prays the Defendant be dealt
19
with according to law.
20
21
22
23
24
25
26 LEA WILLIAMS
27 NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
23 APET No 08-7029.5
AT Wh AR EXPIRES APRIL 25, 20232
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IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintift,
Vs, GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT

MICHAEL LUIS COTA,

Defendant.
/

I hereby agree to plead guilty to Count Four: PRINCIPAL TO GRAND LARCENY

OF A FIREARM, a violation of a NRS 205.226, NRS 195.020, a category B felony, as more
fully alleged in the Information which I have read and reviewed with my attorney.

My decision to plead guilty is based upon the plea agreement 1n this case which is as
follows: In exchange for my plea of guilty to Count Four in the Information, charging
PRINCIPAL TO GRAND LARCENY OF A FIREARM, a violation of a NRS 205226, NRS
195,020, a category B felony, my agreement to testify truthfully in any Preliminary Hearing or
Trial set in 18-CR-0430, involving Robert Donald Brown, and my agreement to not have any
contact or communication with Brittany Massera or Deanna Joan McVay during the period I
am incarcerated, on parole, or on probation as a result of my conviction for this offense unless
contact or communication is permitted by the district court for the purposcs of establishing ’
and/or facilitating custody/visitation with our child(ren) in common, the State has agreed to,
dismiss the remaining counts in the Information, not file charges in Douglas County Sheriff’s
Office case number §8S008450, in which I am alleged to have threatened violence against
Skyler Reese-Bamford, Brittany Massera, and Deanna Joan McVay, and recommend that I be

1
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sentenced to a minimum term of not iess than 12 moriths in state prison and a maximum term of
60 months in state prison. I understand that, at the time of sentencing, the parties are free to
present arguments, facts, and/or witnesses about whether a lesser sentence, probation, and/or
some other substance abuse treatment is appropriate to the extent I am eligible.

I understand that the State also reserves the right at sentencing to provide the court with
relevant information that may not be in the court’s possession; to call victims fo make a victim
impact statement; t0 question my character witnesses; to comment on the circumstances of the
crime and my criminal history, and to correct factual misstatements made by me or my
character witnesses.

CONSEQUENCES OF THE PLEA

I understand that, by pleading guilty, I admit the facts which support all the elements of
the offense to which T now plead as more fully alleged in the Information, a copy of which I
have received and the contents of which I have reviewed with my attorney. I admit that the
State possesses sufficient evidence which would result in my conviction.

I understand that, as a consequence of my plea of guilty, I may be imprisoned in the
state prison for a minimum term of not less than 12 months and a maximum term of not more
than 120 months. I also understand that I may be fined 1;1-;'3""(-0. E3;71O,O(V)(.)".ﬂ’f;unclersta.nd that the
law requires me to pay an administrative assessment fee. e

T understand that, if appropriate, I will be ordered to make restitution to the victim of the
offense to which I am pleading guilty and to the victim of any refated offenses which are being
dismissed or not prosecuted pursuant to this agreement. I will also be ordered to reimburse the
State of Nevada for expenses related to my extradition, if any.

I understand that I am eligible for probation for the offense to which I am pleading
guilty. T understand that, except as otherwise provided by statute, the question of whether I
receive probation is in the discretion of the sentencing judge.

I understand that, except as otherwise provided by statute, if more than one sentence of
imprisonment is imposed, the sentencing judge has the discretion to order the sentences to be

served concurrently or consecutively. My attorney has explained the terms concurrent and

2
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consecutive and I understand their meaning as it relates to sentencing.

I understand that this plea and resulting conviction may have adverse effects upon my
residency in this country if I am not a United States citizen.

I understand and agree that the State, at its discretion, is entitled to either withdraw from
this agreement and proceed with the prosecution of the original offenses or be free 1o argue for
an appropriate sentence at the time of the sentencing hearing if I (1) fail to appear at any
scheduled court proceeding in this matter; (2) am arrested for a violation of law in any
jurisdiction prior to my sentencing hearing; (3) violate any of my bail conditions; (4) fail to
cooperate fully with the Division of Parole and Probation in the preparation of the presentence
investigation report in this case if said report is ordered by the court; or (5) fail to comply with
any other condition stated herein. [ understand and agree that the occurrence of any of these
acts constitutes a material breach of my guilty plea agreement with the State, I further agree to

waive any right I may have to remand this matter to Justice Court should this agreement be set

aside for any reason.

I understand that information regarding offenses not filed, dismissed offenses or
offenses to be dismissed pursuant to this agreement may be considered by the judge at
sentencing,.

I have not been promised or guaranteed any particular sentence by anyone. I know that
my sentence is fo be determined by the court within the limits prescribed by statute. |
understand that if my attorney, the State of Nevada, or both recommend any specific
punishment to the court, the court is not chligated to accept the recommendation.

I understand that the Division of Parole and Probation of the Department of Public

Safety may or will prepare a report for the sentencing judge before sentencing. This report will

include maltters relevant to the issue of sentencing, including my criminal history. T understand
that this report may contain hearsay information regarding my criminal history and the facts
and circumstances related to the offense. My attorney and I will each have the opportunity to

comment on the information contained in the report at the time of sentencing.




Douglas County District Attorney

Post Office Box 218

Minden, Nevada 83423
(775) 782-9800 Fax (775) 782-9807

Lo 1y o B W

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24
25
26
27
28

WAIVER OF RIGHTS

By entering my plea of guilty, I understand that I have waived the following rights and
privileges:

I. The constitutional privilege against self-incrimination, including the right to refuse
to testify at trial, in which event the prosecution would not be allowed to comment to the jury
about my refusal to testify.

2. The constitutional right to a speedy and public trial by an impartial jury, free of
excessive pretrial publicity prejudicial to the defense, at which trial I would be entitled to the
assistance of an attorney, either appointed or retained. At trial, the State would bear the burden
of proving beyond a reasonable doubt each element of the offense charged.

3. The constitutional right to confront and cross-examine any witnesses who would
testify against me.

4, The constitutional right to subpoena witnesses to testify on my behalf.

5. The constitutional right to testify in my own defense.

6. The right to appeal the conviction, with the assistance of an attorney, either
appointed or retained, unless the appeal is based upon reasonable constitutional, jurisdictional
or other grounds that challenge the legality of the proceedings and except as otherwise provided
in subsection 3 of NRS 174.035.

VOLUNTARINESS OF PLEA

I have discussed the elements of all the original offenses against me with my attomey
and I understand the nature of these offenses against me.

I understand that the State would have to prove each element of the offenses against me
at trial.

I have discussed with my attomey any possible defenses and circumstances which
might be in my favor.

All of the foregoing clements, consequénces, rights and waiver of rights have been
thoroughly explained to me by my attorney.

I believe that pleading guilty and accepting this plea bargain is in my best interest and

4
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that a trial would be contrary to my best interest.

T am signing this agreement voluntarily, after consultation with my attorney, and I am
not acting under duress or coercion or by virtue of any promises of leniency, except for those
set forth in this agreement.

I am not now under the influence of intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or other
drug which would in any manner impair my ability to comprehend or understand this
agreement or the proceedings surrounding my entry of this plea.

My attorney has answered all my questions regarding this guilty plea agreement and its
consequences to my satisfaction, and I am satisfied with the services provided by my attorney.

Dated this__+ _ day of Jusne , 2018. -

d
D )
<_, / gk mx

MICHAEL LUIS COTA
Defendant

Agreed to thiss () day of May, 2018.

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL
I, the undersigned, as the attorney for the defendant named herein and as an officer of
the court hereby certify:
1. I have fully explained to the defendant the allegations contained in the charges to
which guilty or guilty but mentally ill pleas are being entered.

2. T have advised the defendant of the penalties for each charge and the restitution that

the defendant may be ordered to pay.
3. All pleas of guilty or guilty but mentally ill offered by the defendant pursuant to this
agreement are consistent with all the facts known to me and are made with my advice to the

defendant and are in the best interest of the defendant.
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4. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the defendant:
a. Is competent and understands the charges and the consequences of pleading
guilty or guilty but mentally ili as provided in this agreement.
b. Executed this agreement and will enter all guilty or guilty but mentally i1l
pleas pursuant hereto voluntarily.
c. Was not under the influence of intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or

other drug at the time of the execution of this agreement.

Dated this f’ day of _kine 2018,

[V S

U

MATTHEW ONEE: BSQ.
Attorney for Defendant
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IN THE JUSTICE COURT OF EAST FORK TOWNSHIP
COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
V. CRIMINAL
COMPLAINT
MICHAEL LUIS COTA JR,,

DOB: 02/02/1999
Defendant. /

Matthew Johnson, Deputy District Attorney, County of Douglas, State of Nevada, on

information and belief, being first duly sworn, makes complaint and charges Michae] Luis Cota
Ir. with the crimes of BATTERY BY A PRISGNER IN CUSTCODY, a violation of NRS
200.481(2XF), a category B felony and BATTERY BY A PRISONER IN CUSTODY, a
violation of NRS 200.481(2)(F), a category B felony committed as follows:
The defendant, Michael Luis Cota Jr., on or about July 6, 2018, and prior to the filing
of this complaint, in the County of Douglas, State of Nevada,
COUNT ONE: BATTERY BY A PRISONER IN CUSTODY, a

viclation of NRS 200.481(2)(F), a category B
felony

did willfully and uslawfully, while a prisoner in the lawful custody or
confinement of the Douglas County Sheriff's Office, use force or violence
upon the person of another, to-wit: the defendant punched Douglas County
Sheriff”s Deputy Joshua Hodges in the face, all of which occurred in the
County of Douglas, State of Nevada, -
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COUNT TWO: BATTERY BY A PRISONER IN CUSTODY, a
violation of NRS 200.481(2)(F), a category B
felony

did willfully and unlawfully, while a prisoner in the lawful custody or
confinement of the Douglas County Sheriff's Office, use force or violence
upon the person of another, to-wit: the defendant hit Douglas County
Sheriff’s Deputy Michaei Barden’s hand knocking an electroshock weapon
out of his hand, all of which occurred in the County of Douglas, State of
Nevada,

against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. Complainant prays the Defendant be dealt

TOMPLAIN

with according to law.,

LEA WILLIAMS
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA .
7/  APPT. No.08.7020-5
MY APPT. EXPIRES APRIL 26, 2022
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This document does not contain personal information of any person

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
vs. INFORMATION
MICHAEL LUIS COTA JR.,

Defendant.

Matthew Johnson, Deputy District Attorney, within and for the County of Douglas,
State of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court
that Michael Luis Cota Jr. has committed the crime of BATTERY BY A PRISONER IN
CUSTODY, a violation of NRS 200.481(2)(f), a category B felony.

The defendant, on or about July 6, 2018, and before the filing of this Information, at and
within the County of Douglas, State of Nevada,

did willfully and unlawfully, while a prisoner in the lawful custody or
confinement of the Douglas County Sheriff's Office, use force or violence
upon the person of another, to-wit: the defendant punched Douglas County
Sheriff’s Deputy Joshua Hodges in the face and hit Douglas County Sheriff’s
Deputy Michael Barden’s hand, knocking an electroshock weapon out of his
hand, all of which occurred in the Douglas County fail in the County of
Douglas, State of Nevada,
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against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. Complainant prays the defendant be

05 i e

dealt with according to law.

Matthew Johtison
Deputy District Attorney
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The following are the names of such witnesses as are known to me at the time of filing

the within Information:

Deputy Jarrod Guilford

Sergeant Amy Savage

Deputy Mark W. Charles

Deputy Michael Barden

Deputy Joshua Hodges

Deputy Kylie Shepherd

Investigator Brandon Williamson

Douglas County Sheriff’s Office
1038 Buckeye Road
Minden, Nevada 89423

Douglas County Sheriff’s Office
1038 Buckeyve Road
Minden, Nevada 89423

Dougltas County Sheriff’s Office
1038 Buckeye Road
Minden, Nevada 89423

Douglas County Sheriff’s Office
1038 Buckeye Road
Minden, Nevada 89423

Douglas County Sheriff's Office
1038 Buckeye Road
Minden, Nevada 89423

Douglas County Sheriff's Office
1038 Buckeye Road
Minden, Nevada 89423

Douglas County Sheriff's Office
1038 Buckeye Road
Minden, Nevada 89423

Matthew Johri§on ~ —
Deputy DiStrict Attorney




PAGES 20 THROUGH 188
OF THE APPELLANT’S APPENDIX
FILED UNDER SEAL

MOTION TO BE SUBMITTED TO SUPREME
COURT REQUESTING DOCUMENT TO BE
TRANSMITTED UNDER SEAL
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CaseNo. 18-CR-0116/ 18-CR-0084 % Eomich WED

Dept No. II Al

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Petitioner,
MOTION TO FILE SENTENCING
MEMORANDUM AND/OR EXHIBITS
UNDER SEAL
V8.

MICHAEL LUIS COTA JR.,

Respondents.

The State of Nevada, by and through Matthew Johnson, Deputy District Attorney, of
the Douglas County District Attorney’s Office moves this Court to file the State’s sentencing
memorandum and/or the attached exhibits under seal. The records include personal identifying
information, the names of juvenile victims of violence, medical diagnoses, and psychological
evaluations performed by treatment providers which may affect the privacy interests of the
persons identified in those records.

DATED this 2 3 day of August, 2018.
MARK B. JACKSON

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MATTHEWTOHNSON
Deputy District Attorney
P.O.Box 218

Minden, Nevada 89423
(775) 782-9800

1
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Case No. 18-CR-0116/ 18-CR-0084

Dept No. II

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Vs, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
MICHAEL LUIS COTA JR.,

Defendant.

/
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of the District Attorney for

Douglas County, Nevada, and that I deposited for delivery a true copy of Sentencing Memoranduy

addressed to:

John E. Malone,
209 North Pratt Avenue
Carson City, Nevada 89701

[] U.S. Mail

P\ Reno/Carson Messenger

[ ] Hand Delivery

[] By placing a copy in the ka up folder in the District Attorney s Office.

DATED this ﬁ? > day of August, 2018.

<0
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John E. Malone, Esq.
State Bar No. 3706

209 N. Pratt Ave.
Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 461-0254

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, o
CASE NO. 18-CR-0116/18-CR-0084
V8.
DEPTNO. 1
MICHAEL LUIS COTA,
Defendant.

MOTION TO FILE UNDER SEAL

The Defendant, MICHAEL LUIS COTA, hereby moves this Court for an Order to file

Defendant’s Motion to Strike The State’s Sentencing Memorandum and Attached Exhibits under

seal. The defense’s motion to strike references the State’s Sentencing Memorandum and Attached

Exhibits and to file it openly wouid violate the provisions ¢f NRS 62H.025.

DATED this ’( i""z‘day of r:} i L , 2018.
By : Py e T
JOHN'E. MALONE, ESQ.

Attorney for Defendant, Michael Luis Cota

(]
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
Pursuant to NRCP 3(b), I hereby certify that service of the foregoing MOTION TO
STRIKE EXHIBITS was made this date by depositing a true copy of the same for mailing in
Carson City, Nevada, and/or hand delivery addressed to each of the foliowing:
Deputy District Attorney
PO Box 218
Minden, NV 89423
DATED this 55 day of 50+ . 2018.
:}(/ 3 :/\.»« i /i}'f’\_/' {7
Kelly Atkinson
2
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State Bar No. 5706

209 N. Pratt Ave.
Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 461-0254

ARIETR AT _
ER i3 i1

{N THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA,

PlaintifT,
CASE NO. 18-CR-0116/18-CR-0084

VS.
DEPT NO. I
MICHAEL LUIS COTA,

Defendant.

ORDER TO FILE UNDER SEAL
PURSUANT to the Motion to File Under_ Seal and good cause appearing,
[T IS HEREBY ORDERED, that the Motion to Strike the State’s Sentencing Memorandum)|
and Attached Exhibits be filed under seal.

DATED this ¢ _day of =5 =7 %/ 2018,

Respectfully Submitted By:
John E. Malone, Esq.

1



Minden, Nevada §9423
(775) 782-9800 Fax (775) 440-4403

Douglas County District Attorney
Post Office Box 218

0o e ~1 v b kW e

[\J[\)N»—dl—-—'l—dl—i»———ia—-‘—tr—l\y——np—t
M'—*O\DOO‘---’IO\U\-&-UJM»—-‘O

24
25
26
27
28

Case No. 18-CR-0116/18-CR-0084 R Wt =
-e“.z_i:'!ie-"-:g Tounty el e e f SRR

Dept NO. II g:-‘" N W G"es‘k

This document does not contain personal information of any person

ng RIAGGING

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
vS. OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO
STRIKE THE STATE’S
SENTENCING MEMORANDUM
AND ATTACHED EXHIBITS
MICHAEL LUIS COTA JR.
Defendant.

The State of Nevada, by and through Matthew Johnson, Deputy District Attomey, of the
Douglas County District Attorney’s Office, opposes defendant Michael Luis Cota Ir.’s (Cota)
motion to strike its sentencing memorandum and attached exhibits.

ARGUMENT

Cota has failed to demonstrate that this Court should strike any portion of the State’s
sentencing memorandum or the documents atiached thereto. This Court granted the State’s
motion to seal the State’s sentencing memorandum and the attached records. Therefore, any
juvenile justice information contained in those records and governed by NRS 62H.025(1)
remains confidential. This Court is not restricted from considering any reliable and relevant
evidence at the time of sentencing, NRS 176.015, and its exercise of discretion at sentencing
will not be reversed unless its sentencing decision is supported solely by impalpable and highly

suspect evidence. Denson v. State, 112 Nev. 489, 492, 915 P.2d 284,'286 (1996). “Few




Douglas County District Attorney

Post Office Box 218
Minden, Nevada 89423

(775) 782-9800 Fax (775) 440-4403

‘and his suitability for probation. Nevada courts routinely consider acts and/or convictions that

limitations are imposed on a judge’s right to consider evidence in imposing a sentence, and
courts are generally free to consider information extraneous to the presentencing
report.” Denson, 112 Nev. at 492, 915 at 286. “Possession of the fullest information possible
concerning a defendant’s life and characteristics is essential to the sentencing judge’s task of]
determining the type and extent of punishment.” Jd. “Further, a sentencing proceeding is not a
second trial, and the court is privileged to consider facts and circumstances that would not be
admissible at trial.” Id.; see also NRS 47.020(3)(c) (explaining the scope of Title 4 of NRS
with respect to sentencing).

Cota’s juvenile record is relevant to his character, revealing a pattern of escalating
violent behavior.! See Johnson v. State, 122 Nev. 1344, 1354, 148 P.3d 767, 774 (2006)
(explaining that defendant’s juvenile record revealing a escalating pattern of violent behavior
has significant probative value showing not only his propensity for violence and gang
involvement but also his amenability to rehabilitation). Police reports and other documents like
those attached to the State’s sentencing memorandum are not impalpable or highly suspect
evidence. See Silks v. State, 92 Nev. 91,94 n.2, 545 P.2d 1159, 1161 n.2 (1976) (“(W)e believe
that other criminal conduct may properly be considered, even though the defendant was never
charged with it or convicted of it. Its relevance . . . is apparent.”).

This Court is not precluded from considering hearsay at sentencing as Cota contends.
NRS 47.020(3)(c); Cf Memorandum at 5. The attached documents are highly relevant to

Cota’s character and directly relate to the likelihood that he will commit future acts of violence

occurred less than nine years ago as part of their sentencing determinations. The fact that
Cota’s acts occurred when he was a juvenile does not prohibit this Court from considering
them. The Nevada legislature had this is mind when they autborized this Court to inspect even
sealed juvenile records of a person who is less than 21 years of age for the purposes of]

sentencing. See NRS 62H.170(3). In this case Cota’s records have not been sealed and he is

!Contrary to Cota’s claim, the State did not include Cota’s “complete juvenile record” as part of]
his sentencing memorandum. Memorandum at 2.
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nineteen years old. Cota has failed to demonstrate that the sentencing memorandum and
exhibits are “made up of highly suspect and untrustworthy allegations and claims.” Cf.
Memorandum at 2.

Exhibit 8§ is not protected by the psychologist-patient privilege. NRS 49.209. The
privilege, of course, only protects communications between the psychologist and the patient
and the report only appears to contain a single sentence that discloses the actual
communications between Cota and a psychologist at all, rather than some other source. See
Exhibit 8 at 2, paragraph 3. That psychologist is not the author of Exhibit & but one who had
evaluated him previously. Cota has failed to demonstrate that the communication 1is
“confidential” within the meaning of NRS 49.207. The previous communication was part of a
psychological evaluation that was done while he was under the supervision of the juvenile court
and Cota fails to demonstrate that he did not intend it to be disclosed to a third person as part of
his supervision. Cota also waived any privilege he could have asserted with respect to
communications in the report by failing to object during the more than five years that have
elapsed between when the evaluation, which included the communication(s), was provided to
his juvenile probation officer, the district attorney’s office, and the Juvenile Division of the
Ninth Judicial District Court, and when the State attached it to its sentencing memorandum for
this Court’s review. In the event that this Court determines that any communication in the
evaluation is privileged under NRS 49.207, and Cota can still assert his privilege, this Court
can certainly sirike the sentence or sentences containing those communications and still
consider the rest of the evaluation.

A violation of NRS 62H.025 is not grounds for striking the State’s memorandum or the
attached exhibits. This Court has been given the authority by the Nevada Legislature to inspect
any juvenile record of a person like Cota who is less than 21 years of age for the purposes of]
sentencing even when that record is sealed. NRS 62H.170(3). This includes records that are
not in possession of the juvenile court. See NRS 62H.100 (defining records). It can certainly

consider the unsealed records of Cota that were attached as exhibits to the State’s sentencing

memorandum.

9
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The State did not violate any subsection of NRS 62H.025 including subsection 5. First,
a violation of NRS 62H.025(5) only occurs when a person is “provided with juvenile justice
information pursuant to [NRS 62H.025].” (Emphasis added). Exhibits 1-13 could not have
been released to the State “pursuant to [NRS 62H.0251.” NRS 62H.025(5). At the time the
State obtained Exhibits 1-13, NRS 62H.025 only governed “written request[s],” for juvenile
justice information. 2013 Nev. Stats. ch. 155, at 519 amended on July 1, 2015 by 2015 Nev.
Stats. ch. 297, at 1495. No written request was made to obtain Exhibits 1-13. Only after those
exhibits were obtained was the written request requirement dropped by the Nevada legislature.
Jd. Therefore, even if Exhibits 1-13 contain “juvenile justice information” within the meaning
of NRS 62H.025(6)(b), they were not “provided {to the State] pursuant to [NRS 62H.025]},” and
subsection 5 is inapplicable to those exhibits. Second, NRS 62H1.025 only governs the release
of juvenile justice information by a juvenile justice agency.  Most of the documents obtained
by the State were not provided by a “uvenile justice agency.” Exhibits 1-6, 10-12, and 14-16
were released by the Douglas County Sheriff’s Office, not a juvenile justice agency. Third,
NRS 62H.025 did not even exist when Exhibits 1 to 7 were obtained by the State. Because
Cota fails to demonstrate that any document attached to the State’s sentencing memorandum
was provided to the State “pursuant to [NRS 62H.025),” his allegation that the State violated
any subsection of NRS 62H.025 is meritless. NRS 62H.025(5).

This Court should not strike any portion of the State’s sentencing memorandum and the
attached exhibits. Cota’s motion should be denied.

DATED this L day of September, 2018.

MARK B. JACKSON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

By // /////

? KIATTHEW-TOHNSON
Deputy District Attorney
P.O.Box 218

Minden, Nevada 89423
(775) 782-9800
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Case No. 18-CR-0116/18-CR-0084
Dept No. II

This document does not contain personal information of any person

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Vs, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

MICHAEL LUIS COTA JR.

Defendant.

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of the District Attorney’s Office
for Douglas County, Nevada, and that on this day 1 deposited for delivery a copy of the
Opposition to Motion to Strike State’s Sentencing Memorandum, addressed to:

John E. Malone,

209 North Pratt Avenue
Carson City, NV 89761

X U.S. Mail

[} Reno/Carson Messenger
[ ] Hand Delivery

[] Fmail

DATED this i day of September, 2018.
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THOMAS W. GREGORY|
DISTRICT JUDGE
NINTH JUDICIAL
DISTRICT COURT

P.O. BOX 218
MINDEN, NV 89423
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IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT CCURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND.FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Vs, DISCLOSURE
MICHARL LUIS COTA JR.,

Defendant.

Both of these criminal matters are scheduled for sentencing.
The State recently filed a sentencing memcorandum and exhibits
referencing conduct of Defendant as a juvenile. Some of the
referenced conduct occurred during the Court’s pricr employment
with the Douglas County District Attorney’s Office. The
undersigned deces not recollect having prosecuted Defendant for the
delinquent coffenses referred to in the State’'s exhibits. Out of
an abundance of caution, the State is directed to review the
State’s juvenile files to determine what rcle, if any, the
/17
/77
/117
iy
/17
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THOMAS W. GREGORY
MSTRICT JUDGE
NINTH JUDICIAL
DISTRICT COURT

P.O.BOX 218
MINDEN, NV 89423

undersigned played in those cases and to inform Defendant’s
counsgel of the findings.
IT IS S50 ORDERED.

4
DATED this ,ﬂ?i day of September, 2018.

22

THOMAS W. g_ii/@ORY
DISTRICT J E
},..V\_/
Copies served by hand delivery/mail on September {(3' , 2018,
addressed to:

Douglas County District Attorney’'s Office (Hand Delivery)
P.O. Box 218

Minden, Nevada 89423

John Malcne, Esqg. (Mail)
209 North Pratt Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701
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NINTH JUDICIAL
PISTRICT COURT

PO, BOX 218
MINDEN, NV 89423
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A MEWTO

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THEE COUNTY OF DCOUGLAS

Plaintiff,
vs. ORDER
MICHAEL LUIS COTA JR.,

Defendant.

THTS MATTER ccmes before the Court on Defendant’s Motion to
Strike the State’s Sentencing Memorandum and Attached Exhibits,

filed September 6, 2018. The State filed an Opposition to Motion

fo Strike the State’s Sentencing Memorandum and Attached Exhibits
on September 7, 2018. Defendant did not file a reply.

The case came before the Court for sentencing on September
io, 2018. The

Defendant appeared with counsel. State was

represented by the Douglas County District Attorney’s Office. The
Court heard oral arguments on the motion and sentencing was
continued. This order addresses Defendant’s Motion to Strike the
State’s Sentencing Memorandum and Attached Exhibits.

Defendant is 19 vyears of age. In case number 18-CR-0116,
Defendant entered a guilty plea to Battery by a Priscner in Lawful
Custeody,

a category B felony. In case number 18-CR-0084,

1
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THOMAS W, GREGORY
PISTRICT JUDGE
NINTH JUDICIAL
DISTRICT COURT

P.0. BOX 218
MINDEN, NV 89423

Defendant entered a guilty plea to Principal to Grand Larceny of a
Firearm, a category B felony. Sentencing for both cases is
gcheduled for October §, 2018.

The Division of Parole and Prcbkation prepared a Presentence
Investigation Report for both cases. Each report contains a
section summarizing Defendant’s history in the juvenile justice
system. Defendant, citing NRS 62H.030(3) (), NRS 176.145(1) (b)
and “the usual order,” does not object to this information being
in the PSI reports and considered by the Court. Defendant does
not contend that his juvenile history has been sealed.

On August 23, 2018, the State filed a Sentencing Memorandiun
accompanied by sixteen exhibits. Contemporaneously, the State
filed a Motion to File Sentencing Memorandum and/or Exhibits under
Seal. Although the State requested that both the motion and the
exhibits be sealed, the State’s proposed order, entered on August
29, 2018, only addressed the exhibits. Order Sealing Exhibits to
Sentencing Memorandum, August 29, 2018.

Defendant objects to the entirety cf the State’s Sentencing
Memorandum and exhibits. Defendant argues that all of the
exhibits are confidential as being “juvenile justice information”
in the hands of a “juvenile justice agency,” NRS 62H.025; the
State improperly oktained and disseminated the documents; and the
evidence ig irrelevant, prejudicial, impalpable and highly
suspect. Defendant also argues that the documents are juvenile
court records subject to protection by NRS 62H.030. As to one
exhibit, Defendant claims the protection of the psychologist-
patient privilege found in NRS 45.209.

A sentencing court may consider any reliable and relevant

2
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THOMAS W. GREGORY
DISTRICT JUDGE
NINTH JUDICIAL
DISTRICT COURT

P.O. BOX 218
MINDEN, NV 86423

evidence. NRS 176.015(6). “Pogsessicn of the fullest information
possible concerning a defendant’s life and characteristics is
essential to the sentencing judge’s task of determining the type
and extent of punishment.” Denson v. State, 112 Nev. 489, 492
(1896). A sentencing court “is privileged to consider facts and
circumagtances that would not be admissible at trial.” Id.; see
also, NRS 47.020(3)(c). A sentencing court may consider hearsay.
NRS 47.020(3) {c). A sentencing court may consider evidence of
other bad acts, even if uncharged. See, Silks v. State, 22 Nev.
91, 94 (1976). *“This includes a defendant’s juvenile record.”
Contreras-Armas v. State, 2018 Nev. Unpub. LEXIS 424, 2018 WL
2272922, May 15, 2018, Docket No. 73298; See NRAP 35(3). A
defendant’s juvenile record is relevant to the defendant’s
character and may be of significant probative value. Johnson v.
State, 122 Nev. 1344, 1354 (2006). Such evidence is not unfairly
prejudicial. Id.

Before turning to a discussicn of the exhibits in question,
the Court First addresses Defendant’s assertion that Juvenile
justice courtrooms are “closed,” “the public is not allowed in,”
“the press is not allowed in,” and the aegis of the system is to
help the juvenile. Defendant’s Motion, p. 8. Each of Defendant’'s
assertions are incorrect. NRS 62D.010(2); NRS 62H.C020; In the
matter of Seven Minors, 99 Nev. 427, 432-33 (13983) {while the best
interests of a juvenile offender are to be considered by the
juvenile court, public interest and safety predominate) .

The State’s sixteen exhibits, filed under seal, are addressed
below:

(a) Twelve of the State’s sixteen exhibits represent

3
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investigative police reports from the Douglas County Sheriff’'s
Office referencing conduct of Defendant. The State represents
that the reports were released by DCSO.

The Court has reviewed each of the twelve investigative
reports. Three of the reports, represented in State’s exhibits
14, 15, and 16, are police reports referencing Defendant’s conduct
after he became an adult. Three other reporis, represented in
State’'s exhibits 1, 2 and 6, regard juvenile cases specifically
referred to in the PSI reports. As to these reports, Defendant
does not cbject to the incidents being generally referred to in
the BPSI reports, but objects to the Court considering the details
cf the prior conduct as provided in the police reports.
Defendant’s position in this regard is unsupported, is at odds
with authorities stated herein, and gces against the notion of
having a fully informed sentencing court.

None of the investigative reports are: (1} reccrds of the
juvenile court subject to the protection of NRS 62H.030; (2)
juvenile justice information obtained from a juvenile justice
agency and subject to the protection of NRS 62H.025; (3) records
of criminal history subject to the protections of NRS Chapter
1792, see NRS 179A.070(2) (b); or claimed by Defendant to be
excepted from consideration as public records pursuant to NRS
239.010(1). See, Donrey of Nevada v. Bradshaw, 106 Nev. 630
(1530). Even if this were not the case, it would be appropriate
for the Court to receive and consider the investigative reports
for sentencing purposes. See NRS 62H.170(3); 62H.030{(3) (b);
62H.025(2) (¢); and 176.145{1) (b). 3By having the exhibits sealed,

Defendant’s privacy interests, if any, are protected.

4
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The Court finds that each investigative report 1s highly
probative of Defendant’s character and relevant to the sentencing
determination. The reports are not unfairly prejudicial. The
reports do not contain impalpable or highly suspect information.
The reports put Defendant on notice of the State’s intended use of
pricr acts giving Defendant a full opportunity to prepare for
sentencing.

(k) Probation Officer’s Review Report, filed in the juvenile
court on April 12, 2012. The State does not say how it came into
pogsession cof the report.

As being a document filed into juvenile court, thé report is
not a public record. NRS 239.010(1). Nonetheless, the report may
be disseminated to a court for consideration at sentencing
hearing. For instance, because the report has not been sealed, it
is subject to release to the Division of Parole and Probation for
preparation of the PSI reports. NRS 62H.030(3) (b). Even if the
report was sealed, the Court would be entitled to ingpect the
report for use in sentencing Defendant. NRS 62H.170(3).

Defendant does not contest the above. Rather, Defendant
takes umbrage with the fact that it was the State, as opposed to
the Division of Parole and Probation or the Court, which obtained
and disseminated the report. Defendant argues that the State had
no authority to disseminate the repert. Assuming that to be true,
Defendant has not cited any authority requiring suppression of the
report from consideration at sentencing as a sanction. The law
gstated above makes clear that it is proper for the Court to
consider the report for sentencing purposes if it is otherwise

competent evidence. The Court finds that the report is relevant

5
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to Defendant’s character, is not unfairly prejudicial and does not
contain impalpable or highly suspect information.
{¢) Psychology Services Consgultation, Assessment of Risk,

Copper Hills Youth Center, June 4, 2013; Discharge Summary, Copper

Hills Youth Center, August 9, 2013; and, Discharge Summary,
Northwest Academy, May 20, 2015. The State deces not indicate how
it received the risk asseszment or the discharge summaries.

It 1s c¢lear from the Probation Officer’s Review Report
discussed in subsection (b) and the face of the risk assessment
and the discharce summaries that Defendant was ordered by the
juvenile court to Copper Hills and Northwest Academy. As such,
the risk asgsessment and discharge summaries were for the juvenile
court’s benefit and would have been provided to the juvenile
justice agency and the juvenile court.

In the hands of a juvenile justice agency, the records
represent confidential juvenile Jjustice information. NRS 62H.025.
A juvenile justice agency may, without court order or even a
written request, release sgsuch a report to various entities and/or
individualg, including the Division of Parcle and Probaticon and a
district attorney. NRS 62H.025. A digtrict attorney may further
disseminate the information “solely for the purpcose cf initiating
legal preoceedings” or “to a court or other party” pursuant to NRE
Title 5. XNRS 62H.025(5) (a) and (b).

In the hands of the juvenile court, the rizk assessment and
discharge summaries represent court records, the analysis for
which mirrors the analysis provided in subsection (b). The
analysis 1s not repeated here.

As with the exhibit referenced in subsection {(h), Defendant
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argues that the State lacked authority to disseminate the risk
assessment and discharge summaries to the Court. The Court’s

assessment of this argument is the same as in subsection (b) and

iz not repeated here.

The Court has zlso considered Defendant’s claim that the risk
assessment ig protected by the psycheologist-patient privilege.
The privilege protects “confidential communicationg” between a
psychoclogist and patient.. NRS 45.209. A communication is not
confidential if it is intended to be disclosed to a third party.
NRS 49.207{1). The risk assessment is not confidentizl as it was
intended to be released to juvenile probation and the juvenile
court. In any event, by consenting to the release and/or offering
no chjecticn to the release to the juvenile ccocurt, Defendant
waived any privilege. NRS 49.385.

The Court finds that the risk assesgsment and discharge
summaries are relevant to Defendant’s character, are not unfairly
prejudicial and do not contain impalpable or highly suspect
information. Of note, Defendant ig in the process of obtaining a
psychological evaluation for use at sentencing. At the hearing,
Defendant argued that none of the State’s exhibits, including the
risk assessment, would be of benefit to the psychologist’s
evaluation of Defendant. The Court disagrees. The Court finds
that all of the State’s exhibits are highly relevant to
Defendant’s psychological evaluation, just as the exhibits are
highly relevant for sentencing purpcses. Defendant is authorized
and encouraged to share the exhibits with his psychologist.

/1
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IT IS HERERY ORDERED that Defendant’'s Motion to Strike the

State’s Sentencing Memorandum and Attached Exhibits is DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order and the State’'s

Sentencing Memorandum be filed under seal.

DATED this {Jwgday of September, 2018.
LGN

THOMAS W. CRELORY
DISTRICT JURLE

| PN
Copies served by hand delivery/mail con September 13% 2018,
addressed to:

r

Douglas County District Attorney’s Office (Hand Delivery)

P.O.

Box 218

Minden, Nevada 835423

John Malone, E=qg. (Mail)
209 North Pratt Street
Carsgson City, Nevada 89701
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State Bar No. 715 OCT -4 2018 | .
208 N. Pratt Ave. Prrantas Topnty GRi% A
Carson City, NV 8970 1 boviorias enny wiiark T T PM oy
(775) 461-0254 S
Attorney for Defendant B A
W CERER
IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS
STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case Number: 18-CR-0084/18-CR-0116

VS. Dent Number: il
MICHAEL LUIS COTA,

Defendant.

DEFENDANT’S SUBMISSION OF DOCUMENTATION
IN MITIGATION OF SENTENCENG

COMES NOW Defendant, MICHAEL LUIS COTA, by and through his attomey of record,
{| John E. Malone, Esg., who herein submits the following documents for mitigation . arposes at his
sentencing, presently set for Monday, Getober &, 2018, at 9:00 a.m.:

1. Risk Assessment by Melissa Piasecki, M.D. dated October 3, 2018,

DATED this =" day of October, 2018.

- JOBN E. MALONE, ESO.
- Attorney for Defendant,
‘BEichael Luis Cota
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AFFIRMATION

Pursuant to NRS 239.B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that that the preceding document does not contain the

socizl security number of any person.

DATED this ___ day of October, 2018.

A e

JOHN E. MALONE, ESQ.
Attgrney for Defendant,
Michael Luis Cota
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 3 (b) I hereby certify that on this date 1 sent via first class mail, facsimile,
and/or hand delivery in Carson City, a true and correct copy of the foregoing DEFENDANT'S

SURMISSION OF DOCUMENTATION IN MITIGATION OF SENTENCING to the following:

Deputy District Attorney
PO Box 218
Minden, NV 89423

DATED this -~ - day of October, 2018.

KellyAtkmson

KR




MELISSA PEASECKI, . D.
FoRENSIC PSYCHIATRY
561 KEYSTONE AVE. #104
REND, NV 88503
T75722-1077 FAX 886 500-7716
piaseckimd@gmail.com

BCARD CERTIFIED IN PSYCHIATRY AND FORENSIC PSYCHIATRY
John E. Malone, £sq.
209 Prati Ave.
Carson City, NV 887¢1

Cctober 3, 2018

Re: Michasal Luis Cota
Case No. 18-CR-0084
DOB: 2.2.98

Dear Mr. Malons:

t your reguest, [ have completed an evaiuation of your client, Mr. Cota with regards to his
treatment needs and risk of re-offense.

Tec complete this evaluation, | mei with Mr. Cota on £.28.18 and ! spoke with his mother by
phone on 8.29.18. | alsc reviewed documentis: information 5.29.18, Presentencing

Investigalion Reporis 8.21.18 and 8.22.18 , 2012 records from Copper Hills Youth Center and
discovery materials from Dougias County Sheriff’'s Office.

Summary: Mr. Cola is a 19-year-cid single man who pleaded guilly to Batiery by a Prisoner in
Custody and Principat ic Grand Larceny of a Firearm.

Medical History: Mr. Cota has a history of a head injury when he was struck in the head with
a pole ai age fifieen. He stated that the pole penetrated his skull and that he had more
problems with behavior control following this injury.

Mental Health Histery: Mr. Cota reported muliipte mental health agssessments and
treaimenis. He was diagnosed with ADHD and spesch impairments in first grade. He was
prescribed medication for mental health probiems starting arocund age thirteen, when he was
first hospitalized. He received cutpatient, inpatient and residential ireatment for mood disorder
diagnoses from ages thirieen io eighteen. in Reno, he was hospitalized at West Hills Hospiial
and Willow Springs Residential Treatment Center. He was transferred to a residential program
in Utah in 2012 after concerns were raised regarding sexual misconduct with ancther child. He
received ouipatient care at the Children’s Cabinst and Douglas Mental Heaith.

Mr. Cota said that when he was around thirteen vears cld, he began to self-harm by cutting.
He clarified that he did not use a sharp instrument but instead used plastic that he rubbed to
cause abrasion and scarring on his skin. The pain that was asscciated with seif-harm made
him feel calmer. Later, the pain associated with tattoocing gave him similar effect. He stated “i
felt better with the needie, | just felf better.” He also described suicide gestures in which he had

AN



thoughis of dying.

Mr. Cota and his mother did not recall any benefit from medications and believed most
medications were {00 sedating.

At the time of my assessment, Mr. Cota reported intact appetite and sleep patterns. He
described feelings of anger and isolation as well as a tentative belief that other inmates are
talking about him.

Substance History: Mr. Cota reporied that he first used alcohol at age sleven. Me reported a
pattern of binge drinking at parties with frequent blackeuts from drinking. Mr. Cota reporied he
first used marijuana at age eight when his father first offered it o him at a party.

At age sixisen, Mr. Cota began to smoke methampheiamine. In April, 2018, his father
introduced him o infravenous use by mixing the drug and putting a neadle into his arm. He
recently progressed to reguiar intravenous use, with three or four uses a day. He had periods
of continuous use, with littlle sleep, for three to four day pericds. He denied psychotic
sympioms during methamphefamine use.

Mr. Cota reporied nc history of prescription drug abuse, hallucinogens or gambling problems.
He used inhalanis when he was around eieven years oid.

Devetopmental and Occupational History: Mr. Cota reported that he was born in Idahe and
raised in idaho and northern Nevada. His parenis did not marry and his mother left idaho with
him and his sisters in 2003. He reported witnessing domestic violence at multiple points during
his childhood. His father struggled with substance use and spent time in prison. Mr. Cota said
that he wantsc to spend time with his father and his mother would allow his father back into the
home which led io cycies of domestic violenca. Mr. Cota recalled his father pushing his mother
onto the rim of the bathiub leading to a serious injury and significant bieeding.

Mr. Cota attended school up o the ninth grade. He said he was in special education for
emciicnal and behavioral problems. He left school because of residential placemenis. He does
not have a GED. Mr. Cola worked at a number of unskilled jobs for six month pericds,

Mr. Coia has an infant son but is ne longer in contact with the child's mother. He was married
one time. The P8l indicates that his son jives with Mr. Cota’s mother.

Legal History: Mr. Cota has a history of one misdemeanor conviction according tc ithe PSI. He
has =z history of iuvenile youth camp, probation and parale throughout his teens.

Menial Status Exam: Prior io the assessment, | informed Mr. Cota thai | was asked io
complete an zssessment and a report Tor his attorney’s use in court. | described the limits of
confidentiality and of my role. Mr. Cota appeared io understand these considerstions and
agreed to the interview.

Mr. Cota presented as a young man in standard jail attire. His appearance was notable for



facial and forearm tattoos, including a crown above his left eye.

He was pleasant and cooperative throughout. His speech was spontaneous and
conversational, with normai rate and tone. Mr. Cota’s thought processes were fight and logical.
He denied suicidai thoughts or viclent theughis. He had vague thoughts that others were

talking about him. He also described vague hallucinations but was not certain of whether or not
he heard voicas or his own thoughts.

He described his mood as "happy” and rated it at 7 outf of 10, with 10 bsing the best. Mr. Cota
was able to register and recall three unrelated words, and he was oriented to the day, month
and year. Mr. Cota was future oriented with the desire to return to the community.

Mr. Cota’s report of events: Mr. Cota reported that he used methamphetamine exiensively in
the pericd prior to the gun offense. He noted that he stole the guns for money fc buy
methamphetamine.

Findings:

1. iMir. Cota has a methamphetamine use disorder. Mr. Cota demonsirated limited insight into
the negative effects of substance use on his behavior and health and his need for freatment.
Chronic use of methamphetamine has neurotoxic effects. Mr. Cota’s pattern of use is
consistent with the patterns associated with drug-induced changes tc executive funciioning. As
a result of chronic methampheiamine use, impuise centrol, judgment, problem solving and

cognitive flexibility are compromised. These brain changes tend to normalize after two years of
absiinence.

2. Mr. Cota has a history of mentai health diagnoses and treatment. He and his mother
describe impulse control, inappropriate anger and self-harm. He experienced extreme
emotional dysreguiziion and used self-harm as a maladaptive coping sirategy. Mr. Cota
described some vague symptome at the time of my assessment but did not describe
symptoms consistent with a current mood or psychotic disorder.

3. Mr. Cota described significant childhood exposure fo viclence. He witnessed his father
beating his mother and feit responsible for his father being in the home. Mr. Cota still struggles
with boundaries and conflicting feelings related to his father. His recent escalalion to IV drug
use facilitated by his father suggesis that his father remains a poweriul infiusnce on him.

4. Mr. Cots siated he nesds heip developing coping skills and communication skilis in order tc
manage emotfions and relationships. He expressed a desire to work with mental health
profsssicnals to gain these skills.

5. There is no evidence that Mr. Cota currently has any recent behaviors suggesting sexual
misconduct. Resuits from prior iesling with the J-SOAP were valid for ihe six month period
following the 2013 assessmeni. The use of the SORAG in 2013 was nct valid for a younger
adolescenti. Guidelines for the use of the SORAG specify that it may be used with individuals
who allegedly offended at age sixteen or older.

210



5. Mr. Coia is in need of evidence-based treatment for emotional dysregulation and substance
use. His history of trauma and foss is a factor in his substance use and his reiationship with his
father is a compiicating factor. if sentenced to prison, Mr. Cota shouid receive intensive
cognitive behavioral therapy to address distoried thoughts and unhealthy reiationships. He
shouid aisc receive treatment that allows him to gain behavioral skills for emotional regulation,
coping, communication and parenting. Mr. Cota shouid receive educational support for g GED
and a high school diploma. When he transitions 1o the community, he should have intensive
support and menitoring to stay free of subsiances.

Please contact me if you have any guestions about this repori.

Sincerely,
P -~

Melissa Piasecki, M.D.
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IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Dept. No. II

IN aND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
VE. JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
MICEAEL LUIS COTA,

Defendant.

on the 9% day of July, 2018, Defendant entered a plea of
guilty to the following offense contained within the Information:
Coumt IV: PRINCIPAL TO GRAND LARCENY OF A FIREARM, a violation of
NRS 205.226, NRS 195.020, a category B felony.

On the 8 day of October, 2018, Defendant appeared for
sentencing. Finding no legal cause why judgment should not be
pronounced, judgment was rendered as follows: Count IV: PRINCIPAL
TO GRAND LARCENY OF A FIREARM, a violation of NRE 205.226, NRS
195.020, a category B felony, imprisomment in the state prison for
a maximum term of seventy-two (72} months and a minimum term of
sixteen (16) months and ordered the Defendant to be joint and
severally liable with Robert Donald Brown for restitution in the
amcunt of nine hundred sixty-nine dollars and eighteen cents

(6969.18) . Defendant is granted one hundred sixty-one {161) days

1
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credit for time served.
Defendant shall pay statutory fees and assessments of $25.00
(NRS 176.062), $3.00 (NRS 176.0623), and $150.00 {NRS 176.0915).
Defendant shall appear on the first Monday following his
release from incarceration at 9:00 a.m. to arrange a payment
schedule for all Court ordered fees and restitution.
This judgment constitutes a lien in like manner as a judgment
rendered in a civil action. MRS 176.275.
DATED this J@Eﬁ day of QOctober, 2018.
—— g,
THOMAS W7 ﬁEGORY
DISTRICT DGE
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Casge No. 18-CR-0116
gy
Dept. No. II CTEIVED
0CT 10 2018
Dougias County
Digtiiet Cotirt Clerk

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT CCURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE COF NEVADA,

Plaintifif,
VE. JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
MICHAEL LUIS COTA,

Defendant,

On the 6™ day of August, 2018, Defendant entered a plea of
gquilty to the following cffense contained within the Information:
BATTERY BY A PRISONER IN CUSTODY, a violation of
NRS 200.481{(2)(£), a category B felony.

On the 8%h day of Cctober, 2018, Defendant appeared for

gsentencing. Finding no legal cause why judgment should not be
proncunced, Jjudgment was rendered as follows: BATTERY BY A
PRISONER IN CUSTODY, a violation of NRS 200.481{2){(f}, a category
B felony, ilmprisonment in the state prison for a maximum term of
seventy-two (72) months and a minimum ferm of twenty-four {(24)
months to run consecutrive to the Ninth Judicial District Court
Case Number 18-CR-0084. Defendant is granted zero (0} days credit
for time served.

Defendant shall pay statutory fees and assessments of $25.00

1
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(NRS 176.062}, and $3.00 (NRS 176.0623).
This judgment censtitutes a lien in like manner as a judgment
rendered in a civil action. NRS 176,275,

4
DATED this &% day of October, 2018.

—mazzjigiﬁz;;
THOMAS w.§§REGQRY
DISTRICT YUDCE
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1 |l JOUN E. MALONE, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5706
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3 || Attorey for Petitioner e

4 A NEWTON -
3
6 IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
7 IN AND FOR DOUGLAS COUNTY
8
9
MICHAEL LUIS COTA,
16 CASEND. 18-CR-0084
Petitioner,
11 DEPTNO. 1
VS.
i2
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
13
Respondent.
i4
]
13
NOTICE QF APPEAL
16
NOTICE is hereby given that MICHAEL LUIS COTA, Defendant above named, by and
17
through his attorney, JOHN E. WMALONE, ESQ., hereby appeals to the Supreme Court of Nevada
18
from the Ninth Judicial District Court’s Judgment of Conviction of Mr, Cote filed on the 10" day
19
of October, 2018.
20
This appeal is 1o all issues of law.
21 i
DATED this = day of = 27w , 2018.
22 ’
53 - JOHNE. MALONE, ESQ.
Attorney for the Petitioner,
24 Michael Luis Cota

LAW DFEICE OF JOHN MALONE
209 N. Pratt Ave
Carson City, Nevada 88701

Page 1 of 2




1 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ ]

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that service of the foregoing NOTICE OF

Ll

APPEAL was made this date by depositing a true copy of the same for mailing and/or hand

4 || delivery in Carson City, Nevada, addressed o each of the following:

5 Douglas County District Attorney’s Office
PO Box 2183 '
6 Minden, NV 859423
7 Michael Luis Cota, #1206075
NNCC
8 PO Box 7000
Carson City, NV 89702
9
0 DATED this day of ,2018
11
l _‘ - . .
12 Keily Atkinson
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20 1
21
22
23
24
Law OFFICE OF JOHN MALCNE
209 M. Prait Ave
Carson City, Nevada 83701
Page2 of 2
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I ||JOHN E. MALONE, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5706 Douglas County
2 11209 N. Pratt Ave. _ District Gount Clerk
Carson City, NV 88701
3 |j Attorney for Petitioner
4
5
6 IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
7 IN ANTX FOR DOUGLAS COUNTY
8
9
MICHAEL LUIS COTA.
Y CASENO. 18-CRrR-0116
Petilioner,
il DEPTNO. 1
FAN
12
THE STATE OF NEVADA.
13
Respondent.
14
15
NOTICE OF APPEAL
16
NOTICE is hereby given that MICHAEL LUIS COTA, Defendant abave named, by and
17
through his attormney, JOHN E. MALONE, ESQ., hereby appeals 10 the Supreme Court of Nevada
18
from the Ninth Judicial District Court’s Judgment of Conviction of Mr. Cota filed on the 10™ day
19
of October, 201 8.
20
This appeal 15 1o 41} issues of law,
21 A AT
DATED this g day of ;AD;]OL@L/ k’A.Q L2018
22
23 TOHN B. MALONE, ES().
-<Attome?r for the Petitioner,
24 N\ Michae! Luis Cota
Law DFFICE OF JONN MALONE
200 K Prad Ave
Carsan Cily, Nevada 69701
Page | of 2

Docket 77414 Document 2018-904410 -
ST,

(S




T
-

1 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

"

Pursuant to NRCP 3(b). I hereby certify that service of the foregoing NOTICE OF

(]

APPEAL was made this date by depositing a true copy of the same for mailing and/or hand
4 || delivery in Carson City, Nevada, addressed 1o each of the following:

5 Douglas County District Attorney’s Office
PO Box 218
5 Minden, NV 89423

7 Michael Luis Cota, #1206075
NNCC

8 PO Box 7000

Carson City, NV 89702

10 DATED this 23D dav of 4 Joveymisi— , 2018.

Pl
Koo Libbinm
12 Kelly Atkidson

2d

Law OEFICE OF JORN MALOKE
209 N Prafl Ave
Carson City, Nevada B870:
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L2

Napl. MNo.

IN THE HIFNTII JUDICIET, DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF HEVADA
(W BMD IOIR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS
BEFORE 'FHF IONORASLF TTSTRICY COURT JULRGR TICMAE GREGORY
———nlo———
TIE STATR O NEVRIA,
Plainviif,
WE
MICTIRNL L. COTA,

Delendent.

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDIMGES
ARRATEHMENT
MONDARY, JUNE 13, 2018
MTHDTH, NevAaDA
APPEARARCES :

FCor the 2iaintifi: METTHEW (JOLRRS0N, ESO,
Nenuly Distrlct Attornay

For the Defendani: JOEM METORNE, F50O.
ATTovnay ai Law

BEPORTED B CHRTSTY Y. JOYCE, CCR 625
Carritol REeportzsrs
(FTRBRB2-5327%
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MOMbAY, JUNL 18, 2014
———0o ——
TEE COURT: The next case is the Stala of Nevads
versas dMichacl! Touls Oooo, Case Namber 18-CR-Q0E4.  Show the
appearance of Matthew Johnson on benalf of the State. Good

morning, Mo, Joanson.

MR, TCHNSON:  Good morning, wvour Bonor.

THR COURT:  John Malone is appearing on behal{ of

the dofondant. Good morning, Mo, Maione,

MR, MALONE: Good morning, your llonor.

THE COURT:  Aad also appoaring in lawful custody
is the defendanl., Michasl Touls Cota. Good moraing,

M, Cota.

Y'ee DRPENDENT: Good morning, sir.

THE COURT: This is Mr. Cotafs firsl appcarances
mefore the Couri in this case. Thoe Court previously
apnointad Mr. Malcone tCo represent Mr. Cota., Mr, Cota, I did
Lhal operating undev the belicf that you did not have the

mezrs To alinrg counsel oI

yvour choleo,  1s that your
finonocial clroumstancs?

THE DREFENDANT: Yos, sir.

THE COURY:  aAnd are you: asking the Couri Lo
appoint Mr. Malone to ropresent you?

THE DHEFENDBENT:  Yeos, sit,

z

CRTTTOL RERORTERS (TFTRY BB8Z-LEP2
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TOE COURT: S0 Lhe Court confirms the prior
appointment of Me. Malone. And, Mr. Malonc, thank vou Lar
peing here Loday on somewhat short nolicc.

MR, MATONM:  Yhiank walr, Your Honoro.

THE COURT: Mr. Malone, have you recelved a copy
of the infcrmation?

MR, HMATONE:  Yos, your Honov, And 1f [ can maybe

short citoult this very guickly.

TBEE O CCURT:  Yes, you Day.
MR, MBRLOME: T'm not sure 10 I was appointed on
Friday or Thursday. Dui L did -- Lhosc Two days Wore taken

wp for me. 1 had courh appcarances in Pahrump, 50 1 wWwas on
the road and appearing dows Shere. 7T have reviewed Lhe
information and the guilty plea memorandum with Me, Cota.
BEut L would ask for some sddivional fime to reviow The

discovery. T know Mr. Cote has asked me to make a motion lor

an OR ~eleasce. We're sbill in the procesa of discussing the

bast way to deal wilh that matter. But Mr. Johnson nas been
kind encugh Lo allow me ©o rend Through the discovery. I 1
can sai.lsfy myself that T'wve gone throvgh enough of 1T To --
or that I hzwve an undorstanding of thoe charges, Lhe possible
defenans, and the best course of acllion for Mr. Cota, we

conld fake care of the arraignmeni. today. PRut, alharwise, I

might pe regquesting a continuance jusl Lo make sure thal he's
3 i

3

CARETTOL REPOSIMES (7D gBP-0322 /_i;.
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had cnough Lime fo consiult wiith counsel. 1 think 1 hkave an
ohligation, independent that of Mr. Ence, o do 50 it T'm
going 1o be handling Lhis plea.

THE COURT: Thank wyou, Mr. Malons.

My . Jonnson, whnat is the Stale’s pogsition
regarding continuing the arraignment?

MR, JORNSON: Regurding continning ihe
arraignment, your Henor, we woilldn®l be opposcd To a short
corid nuance to allow Mr., Malonc to review tho 4scovery. He
would be opposed o any OR release.

THE COURT: A1l right. We will discuss fucther
Mr, Cota's bail siatus.

Mr. Malone, you were Just gppolinted on Lhe 13th.
Ang so Lhe Court wvery much understands and appreciates wiy
gou need additional iime. AEnd so that time is going Lo be
given. So T am going to continue this malier.

Selore setting Uhe next date though, T think 1t

W]

would be zppropriate To next consider Mr. Cote's pall status
sa Lhat the parciies know what his cusicdy is going to be.
Anod then we ocan determing whon the nexi court haaring should
be,

So, Mr. Malong, go ahead, you may mawke any
request you would like redarding your clientt's bail stailus.

MR. MALONF: Thank vou, your Fonor. Your Honor,

CARTTOL REPORTERS (T77EY 307 AR
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Mr. Cota has becn in Lhe ares [or six or seven ycars. TL's
my understanding he has Lwe prior committal convictions as an
adult. ilc had a pelty larceny and o contribuling to the
delinquency of a minor canc. He docs have an ovfter uf
cmoloyment.  He would ke working as a laborer L[or a family
friend who is a local contractcr. e had made those

arrangements nefore his incarceration and sooke sbout thal,

The combractor was reporicd to e —— had promisad to be here
Loday. He's nobt. Mr. Coia has — You do nave & place to

live with your family; oorraclk?

THEF, DEFENUENT: 1 do.

ME. MATONE: He has a mininmadl criminai history as
an adult with no prior felony convictions. Ho does havoe some
pricr oriminal history as o juvenile, He doesn't really hawve
funds to be abls to flee ihe area. lle does have z plea
bargain that is benelficial to him and I thirk woild act in a
wiy that would allow -— would really make it in his best
interest. to appear for court. We would have no objsction tTo
him doing randon urinalysis. T'm not sare whal thoe Court —-
what the prefrial release mzchanism here in Docglas County
iz, 1f you have Aliernative Sentenclng or that kind of
Progran.

TAT COUIRT:  We Jo, ves,

ME. MALOME: Then wo would dellinitely want thatl

I-
-
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.0 happon.  He has had a problen with methamphetamine in the

pasi.. L would silso —— We would also stipulate thal he shouald
artend and show prooi of Al OF NI meeiings on a daily basis
it he is velcased,

HE COURT:  Mr., Malone, 1 kuow that - L7'n
Tooking at the Court’s [lie vrom the justice couri.. When the
iniiial warrant of arrvesi went oub, ball was 2CT in the
amouril. of 490,508, Do you know LL that continucs to DO the
il amcnini?

MR, MaTONE: T don't know, your donor.

THE COURT: All rcight.

MR, MATONE:

I would suggest that tost - - that'sa
based somewhai upon Lhe fecl. Lhat he faced miliiple charges
originally.

THE COURL:  Rl11 right. Lhank you, Mr., Malone.
Mr . Johnscon, what is tho Stacte's posltion?
MR, JOENSOIN:  Your Vonor, we woiild be opnosed To
OR rolecase. We would ask that ihe bail remain the same as it
was Lo justice court.  Alihough he has signed quilty plea

]

an

agreemeni, all of the charges thal he -- sroe . the
information arc very serious and we think warrants the
original bail amount that was glven. They 1nvoive Weapons,

ihoft, and selling —- and consplracy with other pecplco. And

we would have concerns about his contact wikh other people

CAEPITOL

ELPORTRRS

(7751
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tnal are alleged in the conspiracy who arce Cilrrently in the
CHOMINER T TY .

THE COURT: Mr. Johnspn, L'm icoking at the bail.
and, again, 1l says 50,000, 1L doesn' L say whethor that’s
cash or bondaple. So I assume ii's bDondable.

Me . JOINSON: 7 bollewve i is bondable, your
Honor .

TIE COURT: A31 righi. Thank you. Hall in thiis
cast iz going to siand as previously ordered with all the
previously ordered rerms and conditions. ‘Ihe only additicnal
condition will be that the defengant shall make alt fuiure
Couet dates in this casse and thai will include the pext date
That. wo're qoing ta come up with at this time. 3o,

Mr. Malona, viven whore ball is now set, what would you
suggest 25 2 relurn date for an arraigomenl in this casa?

MR, MALOMNE: Your Honor, Lhe Couril's law and
motion ¢alondars are just on Mondays or Mondsys and another
day?

THE COURT: Tt's avery Monday at ©:00 oa'clock.
and I ecan tell you thal ino Court does not -- 1 not going Lo
be in session on Monday, July 2nd.  OQiher than Lhat, the
Cours would have svallability Lo hear this matter.

ME. HALONR: Your Honov, for calendaring

purposes, it certainly would be easicr for mo TO hawve an 8:30

CETTO, REPORTERS (7751 GBZ-53EE i
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setting. And T kmow that vou did have one Loday. I don't
know if thails a regular praclice.

THE COUNT: Tt's nol a regular pracilec.  our

typical time is To s5tarh al nine. HowWwaver, when our calendar
gets —— We follow up our adull calendar with the Juvenile

calendar i 10130 and then a child dependency calendar at 11.
And s 0n weeks when tho calendar has been packed as of late
fhe Court has added a couplo of matters al 8:30. And 50
chai's kind of a —— not something we do all ths time Dul wo
certainly can consider it. And L don't mind ihe request.

MR, MBEILONE:  Your ilonor, may 1 ask Lhat we nol
set a date right now and L contact my administrative
sosislant and Tigure oul a date Lhat we can appegr? My
calendar iz complicated a little pit in that T'm CovVeTring
case for Noel Halers who has got some moedical lssues righl

now.  And ao wWe were ablo to balance oul the celendar this

morning. Sut I don't know what 1t's —- what oy TwWo calendars
will be nexl weahk.

THE COURT; Fair enough.

MR, MRLONE: Law and molion calendars up 1n
Carson can go late sometimes. So if the Courl coinld arrange
or woutd not cppose me going - naving an carly set down

hore, I conld run up no Carson foirly quickly and that woeld

take care of -- that would make appearances down here a
=
CACTTOL REPORTERS (775} D02-L3Z2 o
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lirile bit sasier. Bul right now T'm nol prepared LO set a

CHE COURT: Okay. Fair enough. So 3 wiculd have
to he o Monday at 9:00 o'clock. hnd The Courd iz nwl goling
co sel a date. What I would ask that you do, however,

M+, Matone, if you con, soon check with your assistanl,
Tigure cul 2 couple of dates and communlcate ihat wiih
Mr. Johnson. And thon onee the two Of you have agroed on o a
Gate, If you also agree Lhat onc of wou can contact my
fudicial assistant to provide that date, you may do thab.
and we'll get it set for The next hearing.

ME. MALONE:  Thank vou. Dnd, yvour Honoso, I
Aontt —— Belually T guess I'11 contact Mr. knce's orfice to
see about Lransfer of the fiie.

THE COURT:  So ovou have noi received 1t yet?

MR, MALOWE: I hawve not cecoived tThe file., The
documants T have ware brovidad to me by Mr. Johason.

MR COLRT: S, yes, you cen pursuae Lhe file
Lransfer through HMr. Ence.

ME, MALOWK: T'1l do thal right now.

THE COURT: I will fell you hoe mignt not -— The
reason ho's nol availanie right now, he might not be here, in
Ffacl, Mrs. Tence | think is covering some things for nim

roday. She mighi. krow a little bit more about nhis

9
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availapility. I jusl wanted you Lo know that.

M, MATOME

THL COURT:

Thank youl.

TL vou make

Lhat request today,

you're probably not galng 1.0 get an atnsWel toclay  Froum

Mr . Ence.,

ME. MALONE:

Thank woi.

T™E COURT: Tnank yow. Al right, #r. Cocwd,
wel Ll sce you bDaock.
Rt
CRPTTOL REPORTERS (775 882-5377
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STATE OF MEWADA §
185,
COUNTY OF WASHOE ]

I, CHRISTY ¥, JU¥CF, HNovada Cerii Fied Courd

Reporier Mumber 623, do hereby ceriify:

rhar I was prosent in the District Court ol

Vinden Township, irn and for tho Stste of

=

evada, on Monday,

the 18th day of June, 2018, for the purposes of reparting in
varbatim stenotvoe notas the within—entitied hecaxing;

tmzt the foregoing Lranscripl, consisting of
pages 1 through 10, s a [wll, Ttrue, andg correct lLranscriph

of sald hecaring.

Datod at RBenn, Newvada, this 23th day of June,

2018,

Chriaty Jovoee/S
CHRISTY Y. JOYCR, COR #6225

|_‘|
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CADTTOL BEFORTEERS
123 W. HNye Lane Sulte 107
Carson City, Nevada 84706
(775)882-5322 '
NMTHMTH JUDICIAT, DISTRTCT COURT
1N AND FOR LOUGLAS COUNIY, STATE OF NeVLADA

STATE OF WNEWALD, Cane No, 18-CR-00084
Plaintifz,
W5 . Dept. No. 2

MTCIIng ], T, COTA,
Ticfendant.

/

AFFIRMATICH
Pursuant to MRS 236B.030

The undersigned dgoes hereby aifirm Lhat the fol lowing
document DOES NOT contain the social sccourily mainbor of an
person: {(List documeni (s) iiiachad below)

1) THANECTR] 1 OF PROCEEDINGS 18 -i8

o,

2)

3

_OR_

The undetsioned doss nereby of firm that the documerni
named below DOES contain the social security mmber onf a
parson as cogquired by siate or foederal law or for the
aaministralbion of 2 poblic program or [or an application Tor
a federal or siate grant: (List the docwnent (s) attached
conialning socizl sccurily number information below)

1)

2]

3]

Signatune _ _ Nat.e B-X5-18

1%
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e a #



|—

Case Mo, 18-CR-000834

Department No. IT

TN THE WINTH JUDICIAT TISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE O NEVADR

I3 BN} FOR TER COUNTY OF DOUSLA

THE, HOMNORLAGLE '15I0MRAS W, GRECORY

— 00
STATE OF MEWVADD, )
]
Piaintild, 4
i
VS 1
!
MICHREL L. COTE, j
!
Do fendant.. 1
)

T[EﬁiﬁCRIPT Ok FROCTEDR MNGS
I.;.“_J‘L]M

ST TRy T T

1= HEZRING

i
MONTEY, JULY %, 2018
pa TR, MEAVEDR

Foe The Siaie: Matthow Johnson,

Depuly Distrlcl ACTorney
For Lhe Defendont:

John Maloce, kog.

Reported by:

CAPTTOL

Wi et Loomis,

Mevaos COR #22B,

REFQRTERS (/7T5)

EEFRE
California CHRE #6063

BEZ-3a02
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MINDEN, WEVADA, MONDAY, JULY 9, 2018, A.M. SESSION

OO

THR COURT:  Mewt ozsc 1s the State of Howvada
varsus Michaei Cota, Case Number 18-CR-0084.

Me, METOWE:  John Malono.

THE COURT: Show Lhe appearance ol Matthew
Johnzon on beholf ol Lhe Stata.

Good morning, Mr. Joanson,

MR, JOHNSON:  Cood morning, Yous Honor,

YHRE COURT:  Johr Mzlone is appearing on behalf of
the Delendant.

Elaleln mmrninq, Mr. Malone.

ME. MALOME: Good morning, Your LEONGr.

THE COURT: fnd also appearing, in lawful
cusiody, is the befondant, e, Cots.

Good morning, Mr, Cota.

THE HRFFNDANT: Ceod morning, Sir.

THECCOITRT:  We'ra fnears today for a continuad
arraignment. Li's coniinued Gasad upon Lhe change in counsel
i 8o Lne Court continued the matter at Mr. Malone's requosl
drnd gaws Mo, Mzlons ar opportundly Loomesi o wiTn Mr, Cola andc
to review Lhe case.

Mr. Malone ars you propared to go forward Loday

CRPITOL REPORLERS [J/5) B82-5322
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wilh an avrvaigoment?

MR, MATOMI: T

the Court's carlicr sialemsn

ota Ffor an exicnded peri
Cot exi.nnded period

"

wa'tve last appearsed.  'Phero

The sionmanturoes
M,

EH It e

put I've gone ove
he’s had bwo altiormeys

signature is not on thal, ik

agraemncnl. bot the negotiztions wore mads

THE COURT:  Rls

Malone,

o reX

am, ¥Your Honor, And o zddrsss
t, | was abis o meet with Mr.
of time, Achtually, twice since
was anoiner maciar,

on Lhe goiliy ploa momorandum ares
r ine same gdocument with him.  So

the document. Aned althoogh my

's in compliance wiith The
by Mr. Encs.

o, thank vou for a ihal your, Mr,

My, Malone, wouid you &:850 sgres —— Mr. Enooe

actually sianad the certifiic
those sams represcniallicons?

MR, MALONE:

raviewsd a coriiificate of co
THE COURT:
the certificate of counsal -
ME . MMLONKG
THp CORT:; ——

MR, MATOMBE: 1

Lhai's a 1Tittle it naw To me bul

Take a momsnt

CARPIYDT. REPORTERS

ate of counscl. Would you make

Your Tonor, T'm nobt sure X've

unsel, so —-

o that do that., Tt -

0.

ia cnnsistent with the HRS

arunlogize, Your Honor., 'That —-

T would mzke the oo

(775} ABZ-L32Z




representations.

THE COURT: Ckay. Thank yoix, Mr. Malonos.,

Znd, Mr. Malone, have yvou received and reviewed
with your clieni a copy of the Inlformaticn that was [ile
stamped May SLh, 2018.

MR, MATCHE: We have, Your Honor.

THFE COJURT: Tz your client's name spelled
correclly at line 1247

ME. MRALONE: 1T iz, Tour HDonor,

TEE CoURs:  And do yvou waive 3 formal rocaging?

MR, MALCME:  We oo

THE COURL: TIs ii your intent —— wvndersianding
thet Mr, Coia witl be entering a guilty plea, pursuant to Lhe
guilty Pled agrooment?

M2, MAIONE: Corcect, Your lonor.

THE COoUfl: Mr., Cota, do vou agree with thal?

TilF. DEFLENDANT: Yes, =@ir.

‘P COURT: Mr. Cota, do you have a copy of the
Intormaticon in frosl of you?

T DEFENLEBNT:  ¥Yes, sir.

THE COUR'Y: Az T understand the quilty piea
agroomont, and this is directod towawmds counssl, the guilty
plea would e, T believe, to Count IV.

MR, MATOMF:  that’™s my understanding.

CAPTTOL REPORTERS (775} LBBZ-3327
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TER COURT: s that zoouraico, Mre, Malone?

ME. JOHWNSOW: That's correct, Your Honor.

THRL COURT: A1l rwight., And so, Mr. Cota, we're
aqoing Lo look primarily here at Count TV,

Tn Count 1V, you arc Zormally chargsd with the
criminal offense of principle to a grand larccny of a firearm,
g oategory B felony.

T that offcnsce, how do yvoul pleads

THY DR EROBNT:  Cuilty.

HOCOURY: Blso, this is addressed To courssal,
it's wy understanding that if the plea iz conswamated today,
Lhen, ultimately, it's by way ol the -- by way of the glca
agreement, the remaining chargas would be dismissed.

1s that coryect, Mr. Johnson?

ME. JOHMSON: Lhat's correci, Your Zonor.

THE T : Mr. Malone?

R, MATCWE: ‘I'hat's corcoct, Your Honor.

PHE COURT:  &¢, I'm not going to take Mr. Cola's
nles on the olhors charges, given the nogoliaiions and wa'il
go foreard with ths canvass regarding Lhe guilty plea to Couni
IV anch we'll see winerese That takes az.,

Mr. Cots, piloaso rioiso your ciohit hand, faco tho
Clark to bo sworn.

{Sworn, )

CAPITOL REPORTERS (T77h) 882-5322
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THR COURT:  ¥oui may boe seated.,  Mr., Cola, Ifm
goding ey ask you a geries of gquestions.  The purposa of my
quesiinning is nol Lo t2lk you intoe enteoring a2 cuilty plea

today or to tstk you ocut. of that plez. Thzl decision is

The yrpose of oy guesiioning is vor Ths Court fo
ascertain whether you are entering yvour plea Lodey freely snd
yoluntarily and whethor vou widerstand your constiiulional
rignts.

gnould vou: havo any guesiicns 2t any time, pleasc
feol free to stop wme and you may ask those quesiions of either
myselT or Mr. Malons.,

My, Cota, hoe old ace you?

THRL DEFENDANT: 19

=l
ja s
=]

COURT:  What is your lewvel of Tormal
rchication?

THE DEFSNDENT: T don't know, sir.

THE COURT: liow far did you go in school?

WHE DEFENLCEMNT: 1 think 9ih grade.

THE COURT: ALl right. Do you read, wrilo and
urncderstand the English fanguage?

e DEETEWOANT WEnrs

Pl

TEE COURT: 7nnd are you a citizen of the Uniled

CRAPT'FOL REPORTERS (775%) B82-33272
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TR BRERMIBNGY Yes, sir,

THRE COURT: Rs you appear ners today, are you
under Lhe influence oi any contreolled substances, alcohol ox
prescripiion medication that yvou do nol have a prescription
for?

THE DEFENDANT: Mo, =217,

THE COORT: Mr. Cota, do yvou undersizrwl that yon
do nolt have to enter a gullty plaa?

THE TEEFENDANT:  Yes, =2iv.

TH=Z DOURT: Instead, you oould enter 3 plea of
not guilty, thershy preserving all of your consiiiuiional
rights; do yvou waderssland Lhal?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, sir.

THE, COURT:  TF vou wers o onior a ploa of npol
guiliv, vyou would ke entitlaed to hawve a speedy, Duablic jaey
crizl,. 'That means a trial within 60 duove of fodayts dole; do
yvoul nderstand that??

THE DEFENDLANT: Yos, S5ir.

THE CCOURYT: Do you also understand, Mr. Cotez,
that if vou enter a guilty wlea here Loday, you wocld be
Waliving or Jiving up vour right o hawve A trial in dhils case?

TITE. TR EREMDART: W, BT,

THE COURT: Do you waive your right to have a

CAPITOL REFARTERS [T75) 8a2-L322
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THE fDMbENDANT: Yes, sSir.
TEW COURT: Mre., Cota, by pleading oguilty, won
w1l alse necessarily waive or give up other inportant

constitulional rights and ihose include these: 118 you weare L0
entor a plea of noi guilty and we were to have a Lrial in this
case, you woulid be entitlod to the agsisiance of an attoraey.
Meaning that M. Malons would e here with you fto assist you
—hroughout the trial; do you understand Lhat?

THE DREFENDONT:  Yas, 510,

e COURT:  And 2t that Lrial you would have a
constitutional righi to remain sileni, meaning that nobody
could mzke you be a witness in the case. And if you chose Lo
remiin silent, mobody could penalize you for that decisiony do
yenl wnadersteng that?

THY DR2ERDANT:  Yes, sirn.

1HE COURT: Do you uncdorstand thai. by entering s

guilty plea yvou walve or give uvp your right to remain silent?

THE COURT: Do you wWaive then right?
TI[Z= CEELWNDRNT:  Yes, Sir.
THE COIURT: Mr. Cota, as an giternaiive to

remsindreg silen, al. trial, you ocould chooso o testify in

=

Tront af the jury; oo you understamul thal?

TIIE DEETHDLANT:  Yes, Sir.

CRDPITOL HKREPORTRRS {755y BRZ-LR3EZ
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IHE COGRT: Do vou undersiand that by pleading
guilly, you waive or giwve up your vight ©o tesliiy pefore the
Iury’?

THE DEFENDANT: Yoz, sir.

THE CCURT: Do you whalve that right?

TIIE DETENDANT: Yes, =s1ir.

THE COURT: My, Cola, at trial, wvou would anfjoy
the right ol confrontation. Thal means that you, throoaghn Mr.,
Malone, would have a righi to guesticon 01 Gross-czamine any
wilnesses callad during Lhe course of trial; do you wunderstand
Lthe right of confrontation?

TER

1=

[FEHDBENT: Yoz, sir,

THE CCIURT:  And vou underatand you waive thal
right by cnicring 2 guilty plea®

T'HE DEFEMNDZMT:  Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: 1o von walve the righi of

confrontationy

=
ja s
B

DEFERHDANY:  Yeam, sic.

TUHE COURT:  Mr. Cota, at trial, you wouid also
nave the vight to ocomnpel the attendance of witnesses, That
means that yvou, through Mr, Malone, would have an 2bilily to
suopoenz wiinesass, which is o Couri order, to oome Lo Coart
ard teslifyy do vow undersland that?

1ulE DETONDANT: ¥Yes, =irc,

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882.--L322




V]

e

THF COURT: Do oyou understzicd thal by pleading
guiliy you waiwve vour right to compsl the attendance of
witnesaEos?

TEE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Donor,

THIN COURT: Do vou walwve That righn?

THT DIEEMORNT:  Yes,

THE COORT: At trial, Mr. Cota, you would hove an
OPEOTTHNITY Lo prasent the Court and the jury with any legal
defenses Lhat wou mighl hawve in this case. Do yvou undersiand
that by pleading guilty you waive or give up 211 such
defenses?

TER DEFRERIFANT:  Yes, Your Ronor.

THE COURT: Do your waiwo your defenses?

TIIE DEFENDENT: YTeg, siir.
THE COURL: Mr, Cotz, by entering a guiity phea,

you also greatly reduce those issues for which you can fii¢ an
appead; do o you anvlerstand that?

TER DEFENDANT: Yes,

THE TOUET:  Have you discusssd all of these
righls wilh your attorneys in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: Yoo,

THE SOORT:  EAnd acre you salisvied with their
regreacntation of you?

TIE DEFENDENT:  Yos,

r

APTTOT, REPORTERS (775) BH2-5322
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THE COURT: Do you have gny guestions for cither
myself or Mr, Malons regarding your constitutional rights?

THED DMBRNDANT, W, sir.,

THE COURT:  Andg, sgsin, do you walve thoss
rights, ai ithiz time?

THE DEIEWNDPNT: Yes, sirv.

TIE COURT: The Court is in receipt of a docwment
entitled quilty plea agreement. Do you have a copy of thatl
document in front ol you?

THE DLITHDANT: Yes, s+,

THE COURT: ~t oags b of that agrecenent, Lhere is
a signature line wiith your name, Michasl Touis ColLa.  Is that
iine?

your signature thaf appears cn Lhal

THE DEFEMNDAN'T': Yag, Sir.

THE COURT: Cid you place that signaiwrse here
only after vou had an opoortunity o resd thoe goilly olea
aareesment?

Pk DEFRMDRNT: Ve, sir.

TR CCURT: And did wvou have a chance Lo discuss
thie: guiliv plea agreement with My, Malone?

TEE DEITHNDIT: Yes, sirv,

TiiE COORT: Te the guilty pled agresinent acomirdabe
ag far as ihe agroomenlt thal you'wre entered inTo with tha

State of Newvaoa®

CADPLTOL BREEORTERS [/fh) 882-5322
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THE DEEENIMANY:  Yoi, sirc.

THEE o Tllas anyboedy made any other promiscs
ar inducemsnts to gst ywoul fo oonker a pies of guiloy that aro
not contained in Lbhe guilty plea agvocmsnl?

THE DEFENDRNT: WNo, Your Hlonor,

THUE COURT: nnd Mr, Cota, do vou ander the terms
of the quilty plos agreement?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeg, zir.

WE COURT: Lo you agras o be pound by tha terms
of whe guiliy plea zgresment?

THe, TRERNDANT: oG, Sir.

TEE COUGRT: 2t page 1 and page 2 of the guiliy

nlea agrooment, Lhe Soort s informed that in refurn for your

[=y

|_!

i

Bloa o

o

q Ly Lo principls to arand larceny of a [irearnm,
which 15 reflected in Couni TV, there are other provisions
Lhat you've agreed Lo,

Specitically, vou've agreed Lo Lesi-fy Lrubthfuily
2T any proliminary nearing or Lrial st in Case Number
18-CR-0430, involving Reboerl Donsld Brown and your agresment
o et have any conitacl. o communication with Britiany Masera
or Deanna Joan MoVay duoring the peviod vou are incarcorated,
o paroele or on probaidion as oa rogolt of your convicotion for

T

this offenss, unless the contact or commmication is permitted

Dy the Districi Courl for the ocurpose of establishing and/or

CAPITOL REFORIERS (T7753) BBE-0327
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facilitating custody wisiialion with your children in Compmen.

The State has 21so agresd to dismiss the
romaining coimts conlained in the Inifcrmztion not filed -- and
Lo not File charges in Donglas County Sheriff's QLlice Case
Mumher 18- 20-08453, in which you are aileged to have
threatened violence against Skyiar Reess Bawmtord, Briftany
Muscra and Neanna Joan McVay and the Stale will recommend Chat
vl be sentenced to a minimum term of not less tThan 17 monlhs
in state priszan argd 2 maximim term of &0 monrhs in slate
Qrison,

flag, a2t th Lime of sentencing, [he pariies
would o free Lo present argumenls, Tacts and/or wilnssges
apout whether a lesscr sontence, probabion and/or some other
supstance nhuse freatment 18 appeopriate to thoe cxient that
you are eligitlo.

Do wowr nderstend sl of that, My, Cotea?

TR DEFENDRNT:  Yes, sirc.

TIF COURT: fnd is thal. your agresment with iLhe
State of Neownda?

MR DEI=HDEMT: Yes, =iz,

ThHw OURT:  Mr.

iy

oba, what, is your understanding
of what tho mexlinwn: penslty iz thet you could receiwe in Lhia
czge?

THR M ENDENT:  One o five. Oh, one Lo ten,

CRAPITOT, REBORTERS (77%) UHZ2-3327
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THE CCOUR: 5o, e, Cota, ithis 1s iopovcant,
vou understand that vou could be senlenced to serve up to
120 months in prison?

THE LEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THR COURT: Ten years) do you undersiand That?

TilE DEEFEMDMAT: Yes, sir,

TELE COURT: Lo you understand Lhat, in agdition

zo ithat, you could bs ordered to pay a fins of up to 51,0007

THE NEFENTDANT: Yag, sir,

TlE COURT:  In agdition to that, von ocould be
orderved To bhe pay any ifines —- oF administrative assessmoni
fees and/or restitution; do you understand that?

TilF DETEWNDANT: Yros, sSir.

THEL COGET: Has anvbody mads any proniss o you

regarding whal your sentbence will b in Lhis case?

THF DEFENTENT: No, sir.

THE COURT:  You undersitand that what sconlence you

recelve 18 eniirely up to tThe Court?
THY TRFRNDENT: Yos, sirc.

TER OGRT: Mnd so, st the wdme ol senlencing,

the Court will listen to all rocommendations.  The Court will

tihen sentence you. The Couri. oould, if the Court deemed T4
appropriate, sentence you to serve 120 months in priscon and

fine you S10,000; do vou wnderstand that?

CEPTTOL REPORTERS [775) B82-L5322
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THE DFEFREMIIANY': Yas, 517,

PR COURL . Also, thoe Couri wounld moake a docision
reqarding whether to give you probztion in this case; do you
understand that?

THRE DEITMINWT:  Yes, sirc,

THE CCURT: JAnd so, the Court could deny any
request for probation and sentence vou To the term That | just
stated; do vou understand that?

THE DEEERDIANL: Yes, s,

THE CODRET: FEanowing =11 of that, i it =till vour
desire Lo plead guilty in this case?

THE DETTNDANT:  Yes, sir.,

THE COURT: Mr. Cota, if were vou to enter a plea
of o guilty and we were boozet bnls maiticr for Lelat, ot
that trial vonn'd e prosumed fo be lnnecent and thoe State
wonld hawve the burden of proving the elements of the offense
beyond a reascnable doubt; ¢o you wunderstand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yez, Your donor.,

TEE COURT: Do ovou undorsland Lhat by pleading
guilly, you waive or give up Lhe righl io have Lho Siale prowe

i3 cass at Trial?

TilE DEFENDONNT: Yes, sirc.
TEE COORT: Do vou walve that rcight?

THE DEFRNDANY:  Yes, siz.

CaLil0L REPORTERE (7/5) 8BY L3207
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THE CCURT: Ths slements that thoe State would
have To prove boeyvond a reasenable dout, at trial, apocar at
page 3 of the Informoation, uwndsce Count TV, Do you still hawve

=
£

o

rt

That dooumenk in [rom o

VIR DETENDRMNT: Yes, sir.

THZ CTOURT: Specifically, the Siale would have to
prronve ThRaT yoli, on orf about Yebruary 13k, 20158, you did
willftially unlawfelly ang intentionstly ateal, takse and cocey
away a [irsarm ownad by another person and/or whether presont
or absent did =2id, abei, counscl, encoLrade, hre, ocomma,
‘ncuce or otherwise procure another pevson To stoal, tako or
carry awdy o Zirearm owned by another person and/or you dig

nact in furlherance of a consoiracy, such that you ace lighle

I

for The acis of vour co—conspiralors to steal, take and carzy

away a firearm owned by ancihor person.

Specilfically, yvou and/cr The person with the
initials &.,G., wWith the dale o birth of 11-6-03 ook &
Srike's Toaciical ARIES rvifle and/for a singlo shol pellel rifle,
cfter vou drowve ALE, o the residence located at 13240 Rishop
Chircie in Gardnerville.

Mr. Ooia, do vou understend what the State would
bhasre Lo prosro at the tims of T+3ia?, i Lhiz Sases, as 1t
regards Counc IV

TIF TRELNDANT: Yes, sir.

CRDLTGL RERPCRETERS [f5) B22-53
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THE COURYT: Lo you believe that if we werc To
have a trial in this casa that Lhe States would have sulficiont
cvidence to prove those elements beyond 4 reasonable douvy

TR DEIEMDENT: HNo, 571,

THE Ccodry: I did not heesr you.

4

THE DRSFNDANT: MNo, sSir.

THE COURT: You do not balicwe so. ALl sight,

ML, MALOME: Wo. He's ssking yvou il vou
uvnders=tand the Stais would have enough informaticn.

TER NRFENDENT: Yes, @ir,

MHE CCURT:  Sa, Mr. Cotz, I'm going Lo re-ask the
guestion since this is an importani. question. Lo, 1 Just wornl:
througl, with you, cortain things ihe State would have To

prove beyvond o reascnable doubl at trial.

1o yvou nderstand what They would have to prove

THx DEEEMTANT: Yes, =i,

TEE COURT: Mo weil nave any gquesiion about thai?

THE DLCEFENDAENT: No, air,

TEE Couly:  Okay. So, my guesiion To you ig,
then, knowing what they have to prove at trial, do you balisve
i owe wers to hawe o Leoial 2n Ehis czoea Lhat thoy woulid hasse
suiiicient evidence Lo prowve those things beyond a reasonanle

clemabyi

CAPITOL RLEPORTRRS (775) 8B2 5322
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IE DEFERDANT: Yes, s1r.

THE COURL: Okay. HNow, a moment ago you answoerced
ne to Lhat., &nd so, 1 noed o —— I need you to help me
nderstand ihe two dilferent answers. The firsi Lime 1 dsked,
when you said no, did you undoerslband the question?

THE DREENDRNT: I dicgn't. I thoughy, like,
hecstse when T looked back and T looked over Therc was no
cvidence of me going into the housze. S0, I thougtit, like,
theoy wouldrnit have snough evidence Lo find me guilty.

TEE COJRT: Cf golng into the house?

THR DEFCHLANT:  Right.

TRE COURY: Gkay.  So, whai you're phleading

qui

I_I
rt
1=

rt
[

though, is Couni IV only.

TEY DRFEREHNDENT:  Yeas,

THE COURT: Okay. &And T just woenl fhrough whal
they would have to prove regarding Count (V. And Count TV
does not contain any element Lhat you wenl into a house.

Iz Lhat correcl, Mr, cohnson? An elemenl of
princinle to grand larceny of a f{icearm 15 not —

Mz, JOUNSON:  No.

THY, COMRT: - - entry L0 4 houss.
MR JOLS N T i= nol ong of the slencnts oI

ihe offense, Yous Honor.

THE COURT: Ckay. 2&nd My, Mzlone, 4o you agree

CarLTOT, REPORIERS (775) 882-532%2
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wWith thal?

MR, MARITONK: I agres.

THE COURT: So, Mr. Cota, what T wanl you to do
is carefully read Count ®Y andd Cake a moment TO do theat and
then let me know when you hawve finished.

THE, DETENDANT; {Compiics.) Il am good, Sir,

THE COURT: Okav. 85, have you had a full chance
to roview and read, once again, Count IV ¢f The Iniormation?

TIIE DEMSHOANT: Yes, siv,

TEE court:  EBnd the record will refleact that Mr,
Coba took A moment to roview it.  EBe also had a discussion
with Mr. Malone.

Mr, Coia, T'm not wrying o be difficult here.
1is is an important aspect of your gullity plea. And 50, 1
went toa make sure yow fully wnderslang., Bod LE you donl'i,
it's okay to tell me you don’l uanderstand; okay?

TTiF DETLNOANT:  Yos, Sir.

THE COITRT: S, in Count TV, winal is statod there

|

are the things thzt the State would have fo prove beyond a
reasonable doubt 1if we had a trial; do you underztand tnat?
TER DRFHMDOANT: Yes, @ir.
THEE Condr; Do you hawve any quostiaon:s Moo me or

Mr. Malone aboul what the Slaic wounld have to prove at trial

regarding Count VT

CRPITOL REPORTERS (T7H) 8462-5322
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THE DEFEMIBNT: Mo, sirc.

TR COURT: S0, then, the next guestion is, 15
that knowing thosce Lhings, okay, you Just told me you
anderstand them, knowing those things do you believe 1T we
were to have a trial in this ecage that the State would hawve
encugh cvidence to prove those things beyond a reasonablea
douot?

TERE NEHENLBNT:  Yews, 571,

THF COURT: 751 righi. Lo you have any questions
aboul. that?

[

TEE DEFENDENT: Ho, =1

PR COURT:  Bnd has Me, Malope answared any
guastions that you've had in thai regard?

THEE DEFFNTENT: Yes, #irc,

THE COUR'': Do yol hzwe any confusion aboul what
I'm zzaking rodavcing Jount IY?

THm DREEHDENT:  Wo, sir.

THE COURL: Ail right. Mr. Cotz, L'm szatisiied
that vou uaderstand boih what the Slale wouid have L0 prove
and that von arc telling me that you belicve the State has
encugh evidence Lo prove thosce things beyond a reasconable
doodsi .

'HE DETENDANT:  ¥os, sir.,

THe COURT: Do yvou agres with Lhat?

CRARPITOL BEPORTERS (775H) BBZ2-532Z
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TEER NEXENEENT+  Yos, siz.

THE CCURT: ©Okay. S0, the next cquosilon thon,
Mr. Cota, is did you commit ihe offense as stated in Court IV
of Vhe Information?

THE DeFFHDBNT: Yoz, s:r.

THe OUORT: .Mr. Mz low:, ars thoere any other arean
of incuiry Lhet you would ask the Court To Canvass Mr, Cota
on?

MR, MATOME:  Ho, Your Honor.

THE COURT: HMr., Johnzson?

¥E. JOHRMSON: No, foar Honor.

THE COUR''; Mz, Cota, have yvou underatood
everylhing thal wefve dizcusssd hore todsy?

THEHT DEFMMNDENT: Yes, Hir,

THE COURY'; Do you have any guestions oo either
myz=ll or Mr. Maleons?

THE DRFRENDANL:  No, sir.

THE GO’y Ai Lhis time, dMr. Cota, 1s 1L your
inteniion and roguesl thas the Court entoer a guilny plea or
wold o proler to anter a plea of ool god loy?

TIE DEFEMDENT: GCuiity ples.

THE, COURT:  The Coucl makes @ finding Thot HMr.
Cota undersiands his constitutional rights.  He's alﬁu

wvoluntarily waived thoso rights here itoday. ‘The Court finds

CAP11I'OL. REPORTERS (775 882-5322
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that there's a sufficient factual basis for the plea and the
nlea iz acceptad by tThe Cowst.

I'm going io achadule this matter for sentencing.
Typically, we would set scniencing oux elghl wesks. That
fails on a holiday. Hipe wecks out would be Snptembe 1Cth.

Mr. Malone, a2re you avallable on 1hai day or 15
cherns a di ffercnt day thal would you reoucsl?

MR, MALONK: ¥o, I can be availapls on that day,
Yonir Honor,

THE COURT:  Mr. Johnson, does that date work okay
for the State?

M. JTOHWMSON: Sepcenber 10th will work Lor tThe
State, Your Honov.,

THE COUW'T':  Sentencing in this matter is

sheduled for Seplembsr 10th, 2030, Senlencing will e at
nine o'clock in ihe morning. Mr, Uoha is osdered to appear at
Lhat time and dats for scntencing.

The Court. ordsrs a preparation of 4 Presentence
Investigation Report and, Mr. Cota, you are crdsrsd T.o
cocperate wiih the Biwvislon as they prepare tThat reopart.

Mr. Maionc, would vou like to be heard regarding
vodr ol Teni ' s oustody statiant

ME . MALORDT:  Your Honor, not at this Lime. 7T do

ingend to bring 3 motion of some kimd [er an OR ralease into a

CAPITOT. RELORITERS {775) 882-5h322
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drug treatmeni program bul that has not been set up yer.

TiE QUL Thank vou, Mr. Malone,

Mr. Johnson, would yon like Co be heard regardin
Mr. Cota's ball or conditiong of bail?

MR, JOINSON:  we'd ask that Lhey vemain the gzos,
Your lionor,

TER COuRT: My, Cola's bail will remiin as
previously ordeved. N previously ordered, Mr. Cota's
reguirad to waks all Lulure Court cates 1n this ocase.,

The only thing I've added is we now know thal Lhe
next day is going to boe September 10, 2018, and so I pul that
inlo the crder. Ssptember 10th, 2018, at nine o'ciock in Lhc
MOrTing.

Mr. Malons, anylhing further for today's purposs?

MR. MRELOME:  Wo, Your Honor.

TEE COuRy;  Mr. Johnson?

B, JOHMSOM:  Wo, Your Honor.

IHE CORIRT:  That will be the Court's order.

{Proceedings concluded. |

CRPITOL BRFEPORTRERS (7V5) BEZ2-5327
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STATE OF HEVADA

COUNTY QR DOUGTAL

L, Michel Loomis, Ceriified Shorthand Reporicr of
lhe Ninth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in
and for the County of Douglas, Jdo hezeby nartlfy:

That | was presenl in Department Mo. TI ol the
shove—entilled Court and ook stonotype notes of Las
proceeci ngs entillad herein, and thercaftter transcribed Lhe
same into typewrining as hercin appears;

Thai the foregoing Lranscript is a Lfell, tyue and
correct transcoiption of my stenctyvpe noles of said
procesdings.

CATED: &l Carscon Cily, Wewvada, this Zoth day ol

] Sgond._

Micel Toanls, COR No. 228

July, 20%4.

CADTTOL REBOHIERS (775) 802-5H377
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M chie]l Taoomis

Capilol Reportars

123 West. Nyc Lans, Suite 107
Carson City, MW, 39708

§775) BRZ2-H322

IN THE NTNTH JUDICLAL DTSTRICT COURT

TH ERND FOR THW CODMTY OF LOUGTAS, S5TATR OF NEVADA

STATE OF WRVADLS, J
i
Plaivntifzt, i
!
v, b Case Ho. 1E-CR-60084

!
MICHAML L. COTH, i

I Depl. Moo 11
Ne fzndant:. ]
!

AFFIEMATION

Purzuant to MES 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the following
docuncnl DOES NOT contain bhe social securify nunhwr ol

any pPerson:

oy :
MICHEL LOCKIS, RTR
NV CCR #2280

CAapl'TOT. REPORTERS {7753) 882-53F2
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Case Mo, 18-CR-00116

Depl. No. 72

IN THE NINIE: JODTCIAL DISTRLICY COURT OF THE STRIY OF NEVADA
% AND FOR TER COTNTY O DOUGLLS
BETORE THE HONORABLE DISTRICT COURL JUDGE THOMAS GREGORY
———oln———

THE S944aTeE (OF NEYRDN,

WS
MICHARYT, T.. J0OTR, JR.,

Corondanti .

TEENSCRITT OF PROCEREDINGH
RARRNGMMENT
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MOWDAY, AUGTIST &, 2014
—— =3 d——
THE COURT: Tirst matter this morning is the
State of Nevada vorsus Michaol Louis Cola, Case Nunber
18-CR-0116. Show the sppezrance oF Tina Russom on behal? of
the State. Cood morning, Ms. Ruassom.

BS . RUSSOM:  Cood wmorning, your Hoaor,

THY (OORT:  Jobn Malone is appearing on behalf of

the defendant.  Good morn_nd,

ME. MRLOME:  Cood morning, your Honoe,

TIE COURY:  Rlso appesving in lawrul cosiody s
the defendant, Mr. Cola.  Good morning, Mr, Cooa.

T DEFENNANT: Good morning.

THE CCUTRT: Wo'lrs here Today for an zrrziqnuacnt.

fr. Malone, nave you received a copy of The informaiion?

MR, MALOME: T hawve, your donor,
THE CCUIL: Bndd hoawve yoll had an opportunity o

roview 1t with your client?

THE COURT:  Ta Mr, Cota's name spel

ed correcitly

|—'
I
oy

at lino
B, RIS £ It is, your Tloaor.
THR COURT: 2nd does he waive o formal reading?

MR, MAolONE: EBr does=

z
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THC COURT: And do you anticipate a guilty plea
or a not guilty plea thisz morming?

MR, MALCONE: A guiliy plea pursuant o the guilty
plea agreement that’s been Siled.

Thik. COURT:  Is that correct, Me. Cota®

THE DEFFNLENT: Yoz, siv.

TIE COURT:  Mr. Cola, please stand.  Mr. Cota, do
yol: have a copy of the informabtion 1n front. of you?

THE DEFENDBNT:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  n ihat document you are Formally
charged with Lhe crimina! olifense of batifary by 3 prisoner in
custady, a Catogory B foleny. To that offonse how do you

plead?

THE 1KFENLCENT: Guiily.

THE COURT: Pleozse raisé yous right hand, face
the clerk Lo be sworn.

'he delcndant wasg sworn in)

ME COURN'T  You may be scated. Mr. Cota, il you
were to pica not quilly, you would have an opportunity,
actually not Jusi an opportunity, you would nawve a right. Lo
heve a spoody, public jury frial. That mesns 4 crial within
goonr 80 davs of Loday's dato. Do you understond Lhatl®?

THFE DEFEMDANT:  Tos, sir.

THR COURT: Do you undersiand thzt by pleading

3
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miilty you waiwve or giwve up your right to have 2 Lrigh?
THE DMPENDANT:  Yes, sir,
THE COURT: And do you waiwve Lhat right?
THky DEFENDANT:  Yes, s1ir.
YHE COURe  Mp. Malone, lecl frees o have a zeac

Ak Yo,
M, (Cota,
comai itot onal

righis

4 trial in imis czse.

ware to set the matoaxs

assisted by Mr, ¥Malone,

assliat you Lhroudghot

imelcrsiand that?

there are other imporcant

Lhat you would znioy if we were to have

Tf vou wese Lo plead not guiiiy ang we

for trial, at that irial von would be

End so he would bhe hore with you oo

Lhe course of the icial. Do oyoo

''HF, DEFLHDARNT:;  Yos, sir,

THL CoiRr:

constituiional righi to remain silent, meaning thal

could compel you to be a witnoss inoa

nderstand that?
THIE
THE O

decision to nok

Db DENT -

Lestify, nobody could hold

Zrd at thal Lrial vou would have a
roizody
Do youl

Yes, HLir.

Blag, Mr. Cola, i you made a

that against you

or ponglisze yow for That asoision, T yonr undeestand That
THE DEFENDENT: Yeas, Hirc.
THE C(hET:  Mr., Cota, by pleading guility, you
L)
CAVLTOL REPORTLRS [ F72) 882-L3Z2
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waive or give up your right to remain sileont. o owou

underatand thait?

TEE DEFFNDENT: Yen, sir.

IR COURT: Do wou waive your right fo romaln
gilent?

THE DEFENDAMNT: Yes, sir.

TIE COMer:  Blterndiively, Mr. Cota, at trisl,
instead of remaining aileni, you could choose to nestify in
your own defanse In Cronf of Lhe Jury. Do you vnderstand

1

That

1]

THr, DEFRWDORANYT: ¥z, your Honor.

THE COUr: Do you ondersiand you alse wasiwve thal
right by ontoering a gailiy pleaa?

THF, DEFEMDARNT:  Yos, sir,

THR CCETRT: Do you waive the righl to testify In
front of & jury?

TR DEMEHOAMNT; Yoz, s51rF.

TR COURT: Alsc abt lcial, Mr. Coldo, you would
crijoy a vight to confront witnesses. That means that you,
through Mr. Malone, would ngve 30 epporidnity ©o gquesllon or
cross-cxamine any witneszes thal were callead during thes
courss of the trial. Do you urkdsrsliand tho vighi. Lo confront
wiinesses?

TEE MPENCENT:  Yeg, sir,

(]
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e QOURT:  And do vou understand thal you walwvo
or give up thai right by entering a cuility plea?

THy, DEFENDANT: Yeag, sir,

THE COURT: Do you waive the right Lo confront
witrnessos?

PHE DEFKMOGET:  Yos, sin.

CilE O BT trial you would enjoy the vight to

-

compel the atlendance of the witnessod To TesSLlly. What that

=
1

peans ig if There wars wilassses Lhat Mr. Malono and you
thought were importani to your-case, ho world cause =
subpoana to pe issuod compelling thosa folks to ooms in amd

testify 2t irial. Do you undersiand Thal right?

THE DETENDAMT:  Yez, s,

Lo

TiE COURY: Do you waive the right Lo compel the
aliendance of witnesnses at trial’y

TR, DRFREDRNL:  Yo&s, Sir.

TR CCIRT: &L Lrial, Mr. Cota, you wounld also
cnjoy the ability to pressnt the Courl and the -ury with an
Legal defenscs Lhat you haws In This case. 10 you ancderstand
that by plesding guilty you walve or give up all oL your
defensas?

TITE DETERIIANT 2 Voo, =i1v.

THE COURT: Do you walve your defenses?

ViR DETENDANMT: Yoz, siv.,

)
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TIE COURT:  Mr. Cota, by pleading guility, you
also greatiy reduce ihose iszues from which yvou can v1lc an
appaal. o you understand that?

Pl DESENDENT: vYes, =ir.
THE COURT: BHave vou discussed each ol thesco

rights with Mr, Malone?

THE, TELHDSNT:  ¥Yes, gic,

e}

THE COURT: mnd sroe you saiisfiad with his
representation ol you?

THE, DETENDAWNT:  Yes, sir,

THE COURT: The Couri im in raceipt of ;i cdocument
entitled guiity plea agreement. 130 you Nave 4 CORY oi that
document. 1n Yront of you?

THE LKFENDAN: Yo, slz.

THE COURT: PT page five of that docoment at
shout line [ive there's a sigpaicure line for Michasl TS
Cota, Jdr.  Is thzi your sigeature that sppears on that line?

TEE DEFIMOANT: Yo, =ir,

THE COURT: id you place that signaturs ithars
only afler you had an opportuniiy ToO road the document.?

THE DEWSFNDANT:  Yos, sir,

L CONTRT: ong Gid yose neve an opportuniily To

=

discuss Lhe quilly ploo agraancni with My, Malone?

TIIE DEFVNMDANT:  Yes, sirv.

CADITOT, REPORTRRS (7751 BRr-5322
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THE COURT: Do you understand the terms of Lhe
quiliy ples agresment.?

THE, DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COUR1:  Has anybody mado any other premises
or inducemsate to geb you Lo enter your plea Today that are
not contained in the quilty plea?

THEE DREENDONI':  No, sir.

THE COURT: Do vou agrees today Lo ba bound oy the
terms of The ouiliy pleas agrsemant?

TiE DWERHDENT:  Yez, sirv.

PIE COURT:  Page cne of the agreencnt it rallects
chal in reiurn for your plea of guilty the State has agraed
not toe charge a second ceount. of Dattory by a prisonetr in
custony, which iz a Category B iLcolony. Also the parties have
the right Lo arque Loy any lawiul sentence. And at the Lime
of sentencing the State mey prosent arguments, facts, and/or
witnesses it osupperi. of the olea zgresment. Mr. Joia, i
that your agrecoment wiih The State?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, sir.

IE CONKT: Do you understand what Lho meximm
penalty 1s for this offensn?

T DEEENDENT: Cne to Fiswe,

GHE COURl: ARl vighi. LE's aciually up to six

i
fu
I
o
!_
o

orison. o you understarcd ihat?
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IR DEFFHNDANT:  Ye:, sit.
MIE COURL: Do you understund the baw also
requires voll Lo pay an aoministrative assessment toe?
THY DEIEMDANT: Yes, air,
THF OURT: End do vou andersiand that you can be
ordered to pay restiluiion?

THy DRrTROANT:  Yes

I 5, Sir.

THE COUTRT: Tas anybody mads any promise to you
regarding whal your sentance will ke in this case?

UHE DFEFSHDENT: Mo, sir.

TEw COURT: Do you understend that what sentence

you will receiva 1 entircly up to tha Courid?

TEE COURT:  The Court will also make a
deierminalion regarding whether or pot you receive probalion.
Do yoll andsrstans that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, sir,

HE COEEr: L the time of sentencing, Mr, Cota,
fhe Court oould if whe Court desmed ii appropriate, deny any
recuiest [or probation snd sentonce you Lo SETVE six yenss in
rrisan and fine you -- Actually theros's no [ine +in Lhis Casos
i that corrcci, Mu. Molono?

MR, MAEILONE: I don'it beliewe so, your HOon.

TUE COURT:  Is that oorrect, Ms. Rossom?

Lo
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LISSOM: Yes, your GoOor.

b

E

THE COURL:  All vwight. So the Court could
Sentenco you Lo sServe sid yoars i prigsen and order you Lo

™

pAay resbitution. Lo

o undersiand that?

I

TR DREKNEDANI':  Yes, sir.

DHE COORT: Knowing ithat do you still desire Lo
owload queilivy?

WE DRFYHDENT: Yz, sSire,

TR COUIRY:  Mr, Cota, Lave you had a discussion
with Mr. Malone rvegarding ihe tosms concurrent AT
comsecnt v

MIE DEMENDRNT: Yos, sir.

MIE COUKT: Do voeu undarsiand those Terms?

THE LRFENDRANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: o you have any cuestions [oc et Ther
mysell or Mr. Malone regarding thost terms"?

IS TEFEMUENT: Mo, &1,

TIE COURT: So at the time of sentencing in ihis
casae, Mr. Cola, the Court wenila make & determination whether
o render scntencs in This case concurirent or conseculive fTo
any othar sentence impossxl. Lo vou understand Tnat?

CTIE DRI OO g Wean, 24X,

YT COURY:  Ang the reazson I Dring thak up,

Mv. Cota, Js whe Couvi 1a awere you 2re poading scntencing on

=
=
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a i fferenmt casc.  So you'll be sontenced on that case andad
then sentenced in this caso. Do you understand chat?

THR VDEFEHTWMI:  Yes, sSir.

THE COURL: End so, again, 1f Lhe Courd feemal il
appropriale, ths Court could giwe you The prison senfencs
ihat | Just talked acoun and [ could ordor Lhat what be run
consecutive, wnich means in addition o, any sentonae Yol
receive in that othnar case. Do you understand that?

rH

=l

NEFeNDnNT:  ¥os, sir.

ThE COURY:  End knowing that do you siil}] desire
to plead guilby?

THF DEFEWDANT: Yes, sir.

TaE COURY: My, Cota, ifi you were to plead not
gquilty and we wers Lo have & Lrial in this case, at thal
criai you would be presvmed to be innecent and Lhe Stato
wonld nave the purden of proving Lhe elemenis of the offenso
nevond a roascnaible doubit. Do you understand that vy
visgning qiliy you walve oY glwve up your rightt to have The
SiaLe prove Lis gass 4l Trial?

THE DNEFENDANT: Y05, S1r.

THY COURT:  2nd do vou wilwve that right?

THY TEERREMOANT : Yenm, Sir.

TlLE COITRT:  The elaments of tho olffsnse thal the

State would have to prove at trial appear in the Information.

1t
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Do vou £iil] nawe & copy of that docursn. in fronl of you?

THE DRSENLENT: Yas3, 34,

THE COURT: Specificelly, Lhe State would have to
prove beyond a reasonoble doubl that you on or anont July
Gln, 2018, here in iLhe County of Douglas, Stato of MNewvada,
died wilfuliy and uniawiolly while a prisoner in the lawifizl
custody or confinemant of the Douglas County Shoerilfla Office
use force or wviolsncs on the psrson of anothor.
spacifically, you punchad Douglas CoOunty Sherifif's Dopuly
Joshuza IHodges in thoe face znd hit Touglas Counly Sherifi’s
Deputy Michacl Rarden’s hand, knocking an cleclkroshoeck weapon
out of his hand. and again That ihat occurred here in the
Douglas County Jail in Douglas County, Newvada.

T

1=
|-1

. Cota, do you understand what the Slate would
have to prove at the time of Lrial in this caso?

THE LeERNDANT: is5, Sir.

TME COURT: Do vou oeliovs that iDL wWo ware Lo
have a Lrial Thai the State would have suificient owvidence To
prove thoso clements boeyond a reasonable doubi?

IR DREEFWNUANT:  ¥es, sir.

TIE CoUl's  Did you comnil Lhe offense as stated
1 The frrfornalicmn?

THE. DEFENDRNT': Yas, sir.

YR OCORRT:  Mr, Malone, zny oilher zroas of

1z
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inguiry?

MR, MALONE: Your Honor, il 1 can make a rococd.
T spent scome time with Mr. Cota. He has had igssuss whers
he's been on dillerent paychotrople medications ia the past,
besn througn mental health troatment Lhroughdul his provious
interactions with the criminal justice system. 1 hawve gone
and explored those issues wiibh hin and wa're going Lo presenl
some mitigation evidence at sonkencing.

oLl the record I want to make is Lhat L have bamm
vary diligent or carsinl about canvassing him given that
nistory., Bud it's my belietf thalr he, number one, Oe Qoo
respond appropriataly te me, (o gquestions. He asks
appropriale guestions nimsell. Hes -- I don't hiwve any
concerns aboul his ability to knowingly and wolunlbarily entor
a plea Lo this charge. I just wani Lo put that on the record

pased upon those inlbial concorns bzased Upon ia past

b story.

B ni

ile and I hawve spoken believe on four diffcrec

occEsions on this case alone, not including his other malter.

Ho'we spoken obiyiously on That one as well. 30 there's been

ample: Lime that he's had time to consult with me.
1T CONRT:  whank you, Me, Malone.
Ms. Russom, any other areas ol inguiry?

M3, RAUSSCM:  No, wour Homor. Thank you.

13
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PR COURT: My, Cota, have you wunderslood
cverything Lhat we'wve discussed here today?

THE. NRFENDINT:  Yeas, sirv.,

THE COURT: Do you have any questlons Vor cither
myscelf or Mr. Malons?

THE DEFENDRM:  No, sir.

R COURT: Bl is it your intanticon al this Time
to maintain your guiliy plea or wonld you prefor Lo entar i
pres of not ouilty?

TIE DEFENDENT: Guilty.

THE COIR': The Court makes the finding tnat
Mr. Cota has cniered a ploa of guilty L[reely and wvoluntzarily.
He underslands Mis constitutional righits and bas waiwved his

rights in ovdar Lo enter fils plea here today. 1he Courd

[inds a sufficient factuai basis for the ples and the plea 1s

I'm going o schedule This matter for senioncing.
Ir. Cota i3 due to be zenienced on the other caso on
September 10th. T don't lmow if that would gise the Division
sulfficient time Lo z2isge have scalencing inn Lhis mather.

Mg, RUZSOM.

M5, RUSSCM: Your lionoy, Tha Stare would regquaesi
Lhat the sentoncing in this matter be scl for the sane date.

The Siabe has already provided Lhe police reports for this

14
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felony Lo tha Department and belicwves thai ho would nol need
5 new PSI for this offense, jusl simpty the addiilon of this

offense. S0 tane Slace is asking for Scplember 10ih, your

Tionor.

THE COURT: Thanlk yod.

Mr, Matone.

ME, MALONE: Wo would agrse with Lhat, your
ilonor.

THE COURT: AR11 right, Very good. 3Sentencing in
Lhig maticr is scheduled for September 10th, 2018,

Serlencing will be at 9:00 oelock in the morning., Mr. Cota
is ordered Lo be hare ab that time and date. ha Courl

orders a preasntence investigailon report. Mr. Uola 25

|.

ordered Lo cooperatc wilh

-ne Diviaion as thoy prepere tho
roport.

Mr. Malone, would you like o be heard regarding
Mr. Cota’s hail stalus, custody statos?

MR, MRLONN: Mo, your Honor.

THN COURT:  Ms. Bussom, would you like Lo be
heacd at 211 rogacding his ousiody stacus?

#5 . BUSSOM:  Ho, your Honor,  Thank you.
T CORIRT Mr . Cota will zomalin in ouetody. Tk

amcnt of bail will be as proviously ordered with any

conditions praviously orderved by the Justico court. The Lwo

ORPTTOR RERORIERS (77510 B82-5322
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added conclitions arc ihe defendant shall cooperate wiih the
Divizsion of Parole and Probation including atlending any
scnaduled nmeetings and the dofendant is ordered To appear in
ihis court on September 10th, 2018, at 2:00 o'clock in the
morning and all future court dales.

Mr. Malone, anything further for today's purposa?

MR, MARLKE: Mo, your Honor.

THT COURT: Ms. Russomn?

ME, WHSS0M: Mo, your HOonor.

THE COJR'':  Thank you. My, Cota, we'll scc you

pack for sentencing.

16
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STLETE OF NEVATR
COUMNLY OF WhSHOE
I, CHIRISTY Y. JOYCE, MNevada Certi ficd Court
Reporter Numiner 425, o herchby ceriifye:
That I was prosent in ihe District Court il
Mindon Township, in and Tor &ﬁe Stail.c of Newvada, on Monday,

1

the 6th day of Bogust, 201, for the purpodes Qi reporting in
verbarim stenotype rotes Lns withip-entitled hearing;

That Lhe Toragoing transcripr, coasisting of
pages 1 theough 16, is a full, true, and correct Tranacript
ol said hearing.

Nated at Reno, Wevada, Lhis oth day of August,

2018.

Christy Joyoo/
CIURISTY ¥ . JOYCE, CCR #625
17
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CAETTOL, BERORTHRES
123 W. Nyc Lane Suite 107
Carsoa Cily, Newvada 83706
(o) 885372
WINTH JUDTCTAI, LDLISTRICT COURT
TN ARMND TOR DOUGHLAR COUNTY, STATE OF NEWVATN

SIAlE OF HEVALDD, Cage Mo, 18-CR-00114
Fleini iil,
= Dopin. Mo,

%2

MICHRARE T, COTA, JH,,
Defendant.

J

AT IRMATION
Puranant to NES 2358 030

''he undersigned does hereby aifixm thal Lhe following
document DOES NOT contain Lhe social seourisy manber of any
DETSOn: (List docuarent sy attachend bhelow)

IITRANSCRITY OF PRCCEELRINGS B-6-1%

2}

3] —
—R-

The undcrsigned does hereby affirm that Lhe document
named helow DOEZ coniain the social security mmboer of a
person as reguiced by state or Tederal law or for ihe
adminisiraiion of 2 public program or [or an application Tor
z Tedesral or stale grant: (Hst the dooument (s) allached
containing social sermirity mmber information below)

il

2)

3

Zignature - Date B-6 18

ig
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STATE OF NEVADE, ]
}
Flaintifik, i
}
e J
)
MICHAEL L. COTA JR., 1
i
Defendant. 1
_ )

Case No. 18-CR-00084, 19-CR-001146

Department Mo, 1T

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DLSTRTOT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADR
IN AND FOR TRE COUNTY OF LOUGLAS

THE HOMGRABLE TOOMAS W. GREGORY

TRAMSCRIPFT OF BROCERDINGS
BLENTENCING HEARTNG
MONDAY, SEPTRMBER 10, Z01H

MINDFN, NEVADA

For lLhw State: Matiiow Johnson,

Nepuly Districl Aftorney
Povr pthe Defendani.: Jonn Malone, Public NDetender
Reported by Michel Loomis, RPR

Nevadga COR 3278, California CSRO#6B6E3
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MINDEN, NEVADA, MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2018, A.M. SESSION

—oo—

THR COULRT:  The Couri nex=t calls Lhe State ol
Mevada voersus Michael Loutis Cota. Thath there are Lwo Cases
nvolving Mr., Cola. ey Are CASC NUMDerYS 18-C1-00716 and
18-CR-00081.

Show the appearance of Matthew Johnson on behalf
of the State.

Good morning, Mr. Johnsorn.

MR, JOHNSOWN: Good morning, Your Honor.

THE COURT: John Malone is appearing on pehalf ol
e Dafendant.

Giood morning, Mr. Malone.

ME. MATONE: Good morning, Your Honor,

THR COURT: Mnd @ so appearing in lawful custody

is Mr. Cota.

GHEm DEFENNANT: Good morning, sir,

THE COURT: We're hers today for a sentencing
hearing on both of these cases. The Court has received a
motion (rom the Defonse Lo sirike the Siate’s sznbencing
memorandum and its exhibits,

Yhe State tiled an opposilion to that motion, T

CAPLIOL. REPORTERS (77h) 882-b13272
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helieve, on the 7th.  And I'd liks to know 1f that motion is
ready to be heard herve today.

Mr. Malone, werc you golng to be £iling a reply?

ME. MALOWE: Mo, Your Honor, we won't be [iling a
reply, but I ithink thal there ara some structural problems
with hearing thal motion. We have a packed courtrool,
ooviocusly,

In order Lo address the issues in the courtroomn,
T would think that we're —- Lhe vefense's position 1s Lhat the
records that are meant Lo be inlroduced can't be disseainated,
they cannot be —— theay're confidential, Chey can't bo released
and we woluld Jusi pe multiplying ths ecror hero.

THEF COURL:  So, the motion precedes golng forward
with senloncing. Assuming that the melion is decided today,
it scunds like you've ready to have the argumeni. today on the
mextion.

ME . MATOWE: Well, T don't know now we can have
the argumeont in an open Ccouriroom.

THED COURT : Dkéy. Mr, Johnson, do you have a
rosponse w0 that?

MR. JOHNSON: Your Honocr, my undersianding is
that this Courl =ealed thc sentencing memcrandum and exhiblts.
Az far as the acguments, | don™t —— I don't know whethor wo

nave to discuss anyihing that is has been sealed by this Courl

CAEPIVOL REPORTERS (775 8RZ2-5327
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or not. 5o, [ think it would bo up to Lhis Court,

T thirk that the opposition and the motion stand
o its own. ‘Ihis Court can tsake 1t withoul argument. I'm
happy to make argument. in addition to what's zlraady heen
provided on paper.

THF, CoURL': 50, Mr. Malonc, T think what yvoutre
saying, is yvou —- in making argument, vou would pe getting
inte some of the facts that are sesled documents: 1s Lhat
accurate?

My, MALONE: Your Honor, I think T would be
dancing on my toss.

THE COURT: Okav.

MR. MALONEF: In an attempl to work around things.

I -~ this is a new situation {or me where this kind of --

TIE COURT: Okay.

MR, MATONE: -—— sentoncing memorandum has boen
attempled fo be iniroduced.

TH COURT: ®Mr. Malone, let me ask yon this, if
the Courl hecars argument today and makes o decision on the
metion, would you then be preparzad to go forward with
senlencing today?

MR, MBICONE:  DNo.

THE COURT: Wnat's thal?

ME. MALOME:D  MNO.

—CAPITOL REPORTERS (¥75) 882-5377
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THE COURT: Why is that?

MR, MATONE: Your [onor, back in August, we did
request o psychological evaluation be prepared by Dr.
MeFR1 1 Lstrem. We Lhen learned, severzal wWeeks Talker, thai hs
felt ne had a conliict on that. B&nd so we did file a motion
for funds to have a psychological examination preparced by Dr.
Tiascckl.

Ti.'s my undcrstanding that. she's scheduled to
interview Mr. Cota on the 13th atikd she wouid hawve a repnTi
propared very shorlly afrer that. 1 think given the exposure
presanbed by the Siate’s ﬂcntenﬁjng memorandum, the nocessity
for bthat evaluaticon iz more important Than cver.

THE COURT: All rignhl. What T'm geing to do is
Lrail this matter., We have a courtroom ftull of other folks
and other cases. T don’t see any reason why we cannot have
argument. Loday en ihe motion, particularly 1f we stick to the
legal aspects, which i1 vrimarily is.

TL's primarily an argumsnl on the law. Both
sides hawve briefed it.. I've had an opportuniity to read ihe
briefs. There's really no need Lo present additicnal
arqument, although I'1l give you that copportunity to de that.
But I believe we can do Lhat in open Court but ii's my
preferonce that we get some oiher cases handled.

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

CARPITOL. REPORTERSE. {775) BBZ-5322




10

11

172

13

TEE CCURT: So, we'll go ahead and Lrall this
matter, Mr. Cota, wea'll call you back in a few minaces.

THE DEFENDBNT: Okay.

(Proceedings recessed. )

TIiF COURT: The Court recalls the cascs of the
atrare ol Nevada vorsus Michasl louis Cothn, Case Plumizer
18-CR-116 and 18-CR-0UB4.

Show the appearance of Matthew Johnson on hehalf
of the State. Jobn Malone is appearing on behal @ of Mr. Cota.
Mr. Cota s appesring here tﬁday in lawful custody.

The Court trailed ihe matler to ihe end of the
calendir so thual we could have arqument regarding the motion
thai. nad been filed by the Defsnass Lo strike the Slate’s
zenlencing memorandum and attached exbiblts.

Mr. Malone provicusly indicated he did not
anticipale filing a reply in Thoe case, however, would like to
make argument. T'l1 give the partlies an cpportunity Lo do so
at ihis time.

[ have fully read and considered the - both the
motion and the oppesiilon. Approcizte the afiorts madc by
volbh counse® in thai regzrd. 5o, there’s really ne nced to

repeai your arguments therge. Vi oyou'd [k to zummarize Lhem

vou may. And 1L you would liks Lo add any other arguments yomi

may also do tnat.

CAPITCT. REPORTERS (775} 882-532Y
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I1'i1 kegin with Mr. Malona becuuse it was his
mol-lon and Lthen, Mr. Malone, you'll get a chance To glive any
responsc cnce Mr. Johnhson gqoes.

30 anead, Mr. Malone.

MR, MRLONF: Thank you, Your Honor. Ang, Your

Honor, I'd like to make a motion [or the reocora that theres ars

at leasy three civilizns in The courtooom including one

incarcerated Deiondant.

PHE COURT:  You're asking to olosc the o Tiiraom?

Mli., MALONE: T weouid be.
PHE COURY: What is the basls for the request?
MR, MALONE: Your ilonor, mcause we're —-— I'm

going Lo be discussing an area a sensitive arca thal involves

a releass of juvenile records. Even Mr. Cola'™s —— I shouldn't

mpave said juvenile records becausc that's actually
conlidential as well, whethor or not & person nas a juvenile
hiztory.

THE COURT:  Mr. Jcehnson, do you nave a response
to ithe requesl to closc The courtroom?

MR. O JOHNSON:  Your Honor, T think, as this Court
indicated, yvou can speak about the legal issue tefore this
Court. thai's the center of the motion Lo strike without
discussing any of the ailached documents Lthat are referred o

in Lhe sentencing memorandim.

CAPITOI, REPORTERS {775) H82-5322
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Maowever, if this Court would prefer to close the
courtroom, we don't have any opposition Lo that. 1 don't
fhink it's necessary or required by the law, however, we're
not opposed to ihat il this Court nas any rdoubts about Lhat.

TIE COURT: The Courlt has considered the reguest
lo clasc the courtroom. The reguaest is denied. This is a
~riminal proceeding, iiL willi be held in open Courb.

1 understancd, | believe Mr. Malone what your
positicn is. There have heen —— the moitlon itself —— or the
sentencing memorandum itsef and whe documents have been
sm@aled ax has your respbonse.

What iz letl now for the Court's comsideration is
puraly legal argument and T belicve there's no reason to close
the courtroom for Lhat purpose.

50, Mr. Malone, vou may provide the Court wilh
any additional argument you would like at This itime.

MR. MALOWE: Your donor, although the sentencing
memo is sealed at. this point in tims, the fact oF the mat.bcr
iz thal the order —— the motion Lo seal was flled
conlLomporancous ly with the senlencing memorTandum,  The order
o smeal wasn't signed unlil somstime 1ater.

2o, Lhore was a period of fime wherc thos=e
records were open ~— open files. Anyone would access themw.

Bnyone could copy Chem. IMnyone could take Lhose coples out ol

CAPTYOL REPORTERS (/75 882-H322
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fthe courtroom. They could ieave them on @ bus bencn, They
could post them an the internet.  They could do all kinds of
di fLerent Ching:s.

1 think Lhat thal situation rcally illuslrates
why this sentencing memorandum is out of order and isn't
aomcthing that this Court should accept. 2y accepling i, vyou
would ancourage 1t ©o occur in the future, Lor paople chal
have —— whenever the State wishes ifo 40 86.

One of the Chings that I waht to Talk about bsut
Tim reluctant io do in a courtroom whers we do have civilian
witroesses ot 1| think [*m forced Lo, is there is a
paychological report in Lhere dabed about five years ago.  The
Conrt has thet document, I bhelisve: correct?

THE COURT: Yos.

MR. MALONT: Okay. It's nine pages long. On Lhe
top of eighi of those pages, 1t lizts confidential
consuitation.

TH= COURT:  You can proceed, Mr. Mumlone, T'm
just Lhunbing Lhreough 1l

MR, MALONE: Thank you.

THE COURT: 1'm iamiliar with 1t.

MR . MALONE: S0, the [ront plece deoes nol, 1n
facl, say coniidential censultation but in the Top right

rorner of every other page, it does list that. The front

CARPLIOL. REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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piceoe does say that the purpose of this evaluaticn is Lo help
With treatmeni coordination and discharge planning. TE's not
a sentencing document. IC's not a documant that was
introduced or the allegations 1n here did not result lnany
charges againsl Mr. Cota. They'ra allegations and vyou can't
ta]l [rom Lthis document when Lhey occurrved. They're nol
dated. Thev're reports [rom Nevada that were accsssed DY 3
treatmanl provider in UJtah.

Tha allagatlons are nob exanined, they did not

result in any charges.  How do we aow thal? We know that Dy
¥ 8] .

i

he standard repcri that the Division did. 7L lists five
Gifferent juvenile charges that Mr. flota was charged with as a
juvenile. MNet one of them, not one of Them includes the
faclual =iruatlions listsd in this conSidential psychologlical
ropori. or assessuent of risk.

and guess what. We know that thiz 15 a
five-year-cld roporl. Five years ago. Flve ycars ado, in =&
A4l fferent slate, in & ireatment facility that he was sent To,
by ithe Divisicn, Tor nis Lrestment and for his ussessment and
in hopos to fix Lhings.  And we don't have any other
ocourrences since thnen thal would implicate thiz repori.

S0, what we have a suspect inLormaiion bafore Lhe
Cowrt . We have & departurs from the rogalar ordar. The

regular order 1s expressed on page 3 of Lhese Presenienoe

CAPRPITOI. REPORTERES {773] g@2-5327
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Reports, where it does list juvenile history, which is
aliowable under the staluote.
We're looking al unscaled records and gencral Ly,

this 1s what we nes. We 382 & 1ist ol charges prepaved by the

£l

ivision, who has access Lo Those reporis.
We don'i see this. Wo don't see an inch of

L

documcenis £1led b

1=l

are the Court by the Distelct ATToIhey, Wi
got them who Knows hewi. T'm assuming they got them oul af
theic own files, which should hawve bean protected.  They
should have been stored and not accessible by people 1o Lhat
of fice.

5o, [he fact thal they nave thom 15 ong —— one
igaue. One tuing Chat Mr. Jonnson docs and 1.3 his argument,
is aay, waell, 62H.102{3) doasn’t apply Decadse wWo didn't gct
them from a juvenile tacllity. W=ll, he's missing the poink.
The polnt is not how ne gol Chem, how his office got tnem, how
anybody in his office got them, the point is what hce did with
thaim.

¥ you look at 62H.0Z5 it says that the child’s
attorney Can access TinSsc documenlks, be provided them. T'm
nall the chitd's atiorney. I don'i thinik T should have these.
I'm the adult attornsy. 1t's obvious from that —- that
statulory scheme, which ['LL point oulb to Lhe Court, has been

airendad in Just aboul. cvery lagislative session in recent
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memary, Chat 1t doesn't allow an adult — it tdoesn' £

speciiically allow an aduif attorney to have those docimerit.s.

T'11 conceds it does allow a District Court Judgs
to go and access Thom. I doog, 1iT's non normally done.

T mearn, if we had this in evary sentoncing for
anyoody under Lhe adgs ol 21 and maykbe Mr. Johnscen wrlld want
no go and unscal records Tor people over the age nf 21 because
it's salacious, Lt's destructive, it's upsetling and iL's i_he
sort of thing thai ars sealed for a £eason.

One cf tha poinis of the Juv=nils Justice Bystem
i to lLake young people, young people that arc having problems
perhap:s, and rehapiliiace ihem pefore other things happen.

What's interesting to wme and whal 1 said on ——
iaat weok or came to mind was, T have TWG young clients right
naw. Ome'ls currenily in the Juvenile Justice Sysleom,  His
talher died when he was ten. And thern, we see this bad
bhohavior stert. 1T was basically marljunna possession, Lthings
1ike that.

Mr. Cota's dad, interestingly, wis senicnced to
prisofn Wnen he was ten. S0, whal we have arc traumallc events
happening To yOLng Mmen who throw Lhem off, who throw them off
their center, who, we believe - by funding toe Juvenilc
Justice Sysiem, we belicve, We nave faith that we can help

them, that we can tucn Them on the right. path.
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And to do se, what we have 1s a system that. does
provide degrees of confidgentiality and makes Lhe decision that
what we're going Lo do is pubt morc emphasis on rchabilitation
than punishment in Lhe Juwenlle Systel.

one of thosce aspects is, when you Jgo in —— whern
your Juvenile Probation OfFficer, when scmebody in a treat —-—
in a juvenile facllity wanls 10 talk to a paychologlst, wanls
to go and get what is deermed a treatment plan, a coordination
discharge summnary, for coordinastion planning, we want thoze
peopla Lo — we want those youhg poople te talk to them. We
want tChem to tzlk to Lhem

We don't want Lhem thinking, gee, You Ko,
what's going Lo hagpen later on? finen T'm 19 vezrs overruled
and T've siolen a fircarm from a house and when 1've goittsn
into a fighl in Lhe jail with & —- with a —— with & sherift's
doputy, 1s this stuif golng to b strewn a1l cver the place?
Ts it golng to bo aceessibhle by evervbody Tor, at least, a
periog of Timc? TL's not proper.

| don't think the Courl should go down the road
of allowing this sort of salacious, damaging and inapproprizle
material to be put forth ln opcn Courl like we're doing right
nend. I have to do this to go and deferd Mr. Cota, which
shouldn't ne happening. It shouldn't be happsnling. And when

yvorr look at the statutes —— lne applicable staiutes, the First

-
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1ine, juvenile records are coniidential.

This isntt contidential., There's a period of
time when they were accessibic by anybody., And it should —-
wy mobion Lo SLrike should he granited. Thank you.

PHE COURT:  Mr. Malonme, I Lhink 1t —- I have
s und when Lhe Court makes a decision That really the more
information I have Lhe bettar. ‘I'he more informed the Courl 1is
the pDaller.

You, yourscli, in making argument right aow,
Falied shout Mr. Cota's upbringing here and with his dad.

Thase are things, 1'm guessing, you know, you would see in

those juvenile records. Bab it seems Likes what -— you don't
want the Court to -- vou kind of want Lo say, Couxrt, you can't

consider his uphringing. Yeu can'i considar —— and [ take 3l
hat there might be things in thers that yan'll argue in favor
ol him at sentencing or give explanation az To his conduact.
Why do vour want To keop that siuff from bne
Court? I maan, WAt —— thail's the part of your argoment I
think 1 struggled with —— the mosT with., You're purposely
wanting Lo keep informai.ion [ram Lhe Coart tnat would be
relevani to sentencing., Haybe some pairts of it relevanl for
what the State's saying, but some also f[or what Mr. Cota is

sayindg.

in evory sentencing hearing we do, wo're given a

CAPTTOL REPORTERS. (773) 882-5324
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presentence Reporl that glves ma 211 kinds of informablon
about a bDefendant's hackground. Why i3 Lhat? [|if's bhecause
the information is relevanl to the Courl for the purpose of
sentenclng.

5o, talk Lo me a little bii apout that., Why are
wou Leying To reslrici. whal the Court can learn apout Mo. Cola
andg his upbringing?

MR, MALONS: Your Honer, B don't have acoess Lo
My, Cola's complefe juvenile file, nor should I. Angd the
statute prevents i1t. 1 did pave = conversallon witiv Mr.
Johnson when he fiied this and when I filad my molion bo
strike.

One of the Lhings he told me was that this isn'k

his compiete record. This is cherry picking, I don't think

that he cherry-picked Lhings that nelped my clienlk. I think
he chorry-picked ine worst. So, whal vou're not get -— Wyl re
not getiing informat:on. Youfre nol. — you'ro getting

dislorted informalion by a adverse parity at a senlencing
argunent. [or a youndg man. Ints stili 19, Thay pilcked out The
worst, Things they can in his life that Lhey could Tind in
whatevor records they have scocess Lo.

1 am fimnly convinoced that whal he did was jusl
lonk at his —— the juvenlle records that he accessed in his

file. He has said some Lhings —— thai. he accessed some of
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themr trom arrcosl records in the sherifi's office. Those

Fly

shouldn't be accessible by the generval public either or by
anybody .

%o, 1 Tnink that you have a yood point. I
respect that point. I think information, if you have —— YO
siated the more information the berter. 1 think the more
informaticon I have zbout a criminal delfendant, ihe better abkla
t oam to make a decision regarvding sentencing. You don't have
vhat here. You have a biazed rocord.  You have a biased
record.

THF COURT: But don'i you get a full opoorianity
at sentencing, just lLike ithe State does, to prescnt the
informatiorn you want me to near. Dkay., So, you say 1'm
gatting, maybe, one aspect of il.. Tan't your joi to prasent
me wilh the othor aspect?

pME. BALOH T can'L.

THF, COURT: Why nol?

WR. MBLONE: The records dAre —— the records are
not available to me. They'rs confidenitial.

TR COURT: fave you asksd Lo 3 the records?

MR, MALONE: Your Honor, 1 don't helieve that 1'm
allowed under the statute. T don't poelisve 17m allowed under
tho statute. What — generally, the more information the

metter. That's a great general rule.  Bubl we have, rcally,

CRPTIOL REFORTERS (773) 882-5322
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atlention —— or, actually, 4 real wali bhetween the criminal
jusl.ice system's acCess Lo everything and the desire by the
legislalure and ihe rule —— the -- the enactment of laws that
keer Lhese records confidential. g&nd therc are great roasons
o do Lhat., ‘They've made derisions to do that.

The sysbam has changed over the yesrs. 1t used
io ke that all Juvenile Jusilce Court hearings were sealed or
private. That's changed. That's changed Lo allcw viciim
witnoss festimony, &b cetcra.

Bt acill, 628,025 sitarts out with Jjuvenile ——
records ol Juvenils Juslice ars contidenliai. And they're, in
Fact, confidential from adult criminal defense attorncys. It
speciiical ly says the child's at.lorney may have aCCess.

So, apsent Lhe riles 52t forth in 62H, 1 think
Lhat the Courl's proposition might have some ability To Jo
Forward but given the fact that what the legislaiure has done

is said that these are confidentizl, I don'rt think it —— I

rpink that vou are, in Tact, precluded or preciuded in open
sentencing, The facl of the matier js that 62H.025 does say
rhat a Judge can revisw Tham.

So, you arve in a —— you're in a zone of safety.
T'm not. I'm not suppesad Lo have these document s,

THE COURT: 15 your ArQUMETIT MoTe thal. the

documenlts stouldn's be known by the publiic Lhat —-- that, what

CAETTOL REPORTERS (7713} BE2-H322
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you just said, made it kind of sound like you would be okay
with the Court lecking —- looking at ihe documents, as long as
it was the Court only that was looking at ihe documents.

ME. MALONE: Actually, T inink it's more Lomple=
than that. I think that, from thao way | read Lhe statute, 15
that if vou decided to go and acoess a juvenile file, you'd be
s1llowed fo. T don't belisve the Dislricl Attorney can. His

ccoss Lo the juvend le raccrds is Limited for the purposs of
initialing a chardz.

S¢, he has limlicd afcess. This is not the
initiarion of a charge. This is a sentencing. This 1=
information for sentencing.  So, 1t's not an acceptanle use of
fhese rocords under 62H, clearly not.

TiE COURT: Lei me ask you This also, 1nn —— you
indicated how the Division, and they’ve done so ncre, When
iney're preparing Lhe presentance report, chey geb
Ai=positions [rom the Jvenils Court and they list those
things. A&nd so, T have thal infaormation, that hs has those
disposinions Ln tha criminal case.

You're arguing ihat I shouldn't look at records
Ffrom those disposiiions. It might further help me understand,
inslead of just seeing an entry Ior a alsposilion, the Statoe's
Lrying to glve inform -— mowe informalbion about that

disposition.
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and, agoln, T'm having & hard time with the 1ldea
that T can be told thai therc is a dispositlion, but then |
have ©o be precluded fyam looking at or hearing about —— more
intormobion abhout thal disposilion.

Do you have any Turther thoughts on that?

MR, MALOMNE: I do. The Slate added [T FOTE:
informai.lon than those five diffarent juvenile dispositions.

THE COURT:  S5c, Aace ol QKdy with — is il a
different argument for Che disposis.lons that Lhe Division has
listed in their Presentence Report than an uncharged congduct?

MR, MATONE: No. No, becsusc the statute Says
Fhat records of Juvenile Justice &rd confidenltial ang then 1t
lists, as vou've feen, numercus = and as we listed, one by
one in our brief, wo lizsted every single exccoplion.

53¢, this is not itncluded ‘n thut exception. IL's
alan —— I don'L -— I'wve done vhousands ang thousands of
seniencings. 1've never sSaan thig kind of sentencing brieif,
nover. And therc's a reason why it's not al Lowed, it hasn'l
bheen allowed and it shouldn't be i iowed.

T already made The point fnal thizs is
cherry-plcked by Br. Jonnson's own Aadmission, he cherry-picked
things and didn't pul in the entire rocord. That's why you
wonld have something lLike this. This cvaluation is stunning

in the way that it condemns Mr. Cota. 1L —— 1t paints him —-
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well, you've read it. I don’h even want ©o talk about it in

Court wherce we have people in here. This iIs some of tThe worst

sorl of allegation thal you would see against another human

peing or a criminal detondant, That's why 1T shouldn’l be 1in

hors.

and the fact of the matier is thal iz stale.
Tt's five years old and we don't have anyining —— we'wle naver
hac —- he has hever bech charged with anythning 1ilke Lhe

allegations That ave liated in ihis cepori.
THE COURL: Well, isn't it up to the Court,

thovroh, ab sentencing, to docide what weight to give Lt. I

mcan, the fach thabt 117s sbale, if Lhat's acourdic, that might

e a reason for the Court not o give it muwch welght Fut Lhat
doesn'L really rgo to admissibllity.

The olher thing is, agaln, you got full
opportunity at sentencing and whal. you'wve azard a moment ago,
is youlve asked Ifor funds to hire an experl to cvaluate Mr.
Cota and to give me a nol stale evaluation.

Why shouldn'l the State give —— gel Lo give me
ihe information They have and you get. to give me The
information you nave, so T Can make a full assessmenkt?

MR, MALOWNE: Recaust the statuts 5ays that Chey
can't, It says tne Juvensie Juslice roc —— records of

Juvenile Justice adijudications are confidential, perlod. It

CARTYOL, REPORTERS {/75) BB2-hH3Z22
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doesn't say you can bring fhis information in at sentencing
and that you can cherry-pick the record and that you can bring
psychological records 1.

I'm limited even —— even Lhough 1 retained =
psychological expert lo do & report on Mr, Cota now, as a
19-vyear-oid, betore shis Court, oven tnoagn T do Lhat, can L
release these? 1 don'io thing T can. Those — thoss are Lhe
—— it's a2 Pandora's box thal we Open wlp by doing this. Not to
mention the faci that it's uneconi.rovactsd Lhat thesac records
wera discloscd Lo the public. Theoy had access to 1t.

Mp . Johnson can't Lell you, with candor, thab he

wnows no one accessed them. There ought Lo be a sanctlon o

-

nat. Tn fact, the statute actually doss lisztc a sanction. LT
makes it a grass misdemeanor Lo release this informatiorn.

S0, we have a compirehensive stalute that I taink

ull

covers overyone thal seis farth a4 program fhal's simpoaed Lo
ve followed. It wasn't fol lowed hers and there's a reasoh WILY
in over -— you know, I know Your Jonor has done probably 3,000
senlencings of felony matters ob gross misdemncanor mal.ters and
you don'n sce Lhis. Thero's a reason [or that. It's out of
fhe order. It dossn'L -— 1T gives 'he Court informaticon that,
really, is 1n an pnprocessad, unproven Iorm. Dkay?

Rocgusc what we're Lalking anpout here are

allegations, not criminal conviciions. And we'lre looking at

CAPITC]. REPORTERS (775] gBZ2-5322
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five differenl. charges. 50, we're making a departure from
what has besn the established order, consisteni. with the
legislature’™s statute. nnd if Mr. Johnson can Show me whers
we's allowed To do Lhis under the Statule, fine pul he can'i.
e can't. There's no exceptlon here, The oniy excoption that
might —— thal does, arguably, apply is Lhe District Court
Judge's ability To acCess Juvenila files.

The case law is nol favorable To my posilion at
this point in Time. But eveIy ODe of those cases including
one of those cases, the Jupreme Court was deal ing with a
situation in which no cbjection wWwas made. Wo objecllion. This
is Lhe objection. This should stop 1.

The Johnson case invelved a capilbal pffensc where
a thres—Judge pancl was debating the sentence for a defendantl
whio had been convicted by a jury.

S0, thai £alls sirai ghl under the CUrreni,
esiahl ished parameters hcere, whert judges can look at it. But

ir's a different thing snd their Frizl counsel didn't obiecT.

=t

well, Lrial counsel is obijecling here. 50, it's different
from the sxisting case law.

THE COURT: Mr. Malone, Thanik yoi.

MR, MATONE: Thank you. |

W COURT: I fully understand your position.

Unrelated but kind of reiated is when should we

CAPLTOL REPORTERS (775} BB2-—0322
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proceed with centencing?  Whatever 1 decide herc today, 1 Look
it from your earlicr conments that vou wanted to get the
ovaluation of Mr. Cota accomplished betors you proceed Lo
cenlencing. Do you have an ldea ni Time frame?

MR, MAOOWE:  About 30 days from now.

TIE COURT: All right. And, of course; 711 herar
{rom Mr. Johnson.

T take it that ithat's 3 motlon LG continue the
seniencing; 1s Lhat accuiral.ae?

WE . MALOMR:  Yes, Your Homor.,

THit COURT: Okay. I just wanted Mr. Johnson To
haye a tull anpiliiy to respond o Chabt as well.

56, Mr. Johnson, 1T you conld start by talking To
me, First, about ihe motion to strike and Lhen give me your
thnoughts on continuing the Lri=i daie so that thoey oan tinish
\ne evaluation. Go anead.

N JOENSONM:  Sure, Your Eonot. First, | lust
wantoed fo start with Lhe most important gquestion tefore LS
Couri which is the center of Lhe motion to strike is can this
Court consider any or a1l of the information that's in the
sentencing memorandum and the exhibits attached thereto.

And thne law is clear that this Court, a3 long as
ik's not highly improbable and highly suspect cvideonce, it'ts

relevant that inis Court has the ability and expressly 1s

F‘
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atlowed to consider It.

Bnd, in L[zct, 1 don’'t bhel leve My, Mzlione was
trying to say Lhis but Lherc was some talk apout sealed
records. None of the records that -- by ihis Court are
sealed. 5o, nonae of Chem ars seaicd and even 1f they were, I
provided the statute —— the relevani statukbe RS GZH.1701(3),
ihat, unitil he's up To 21 years old all af ithese -— all -- the
legislalure cxpressly provided for tho ability te for this
Court io consider thosc records at senloncing, cven 1T they're
seaslcd.

Tn this case, they're not sealed, which is even a
lawer level, bul thers's nothing wWrong and This Court
expressly allowed to consider all of thosc records at
sentencing.

MR . MALOME: Your Honor, TTll agree thal they're
not sealed, he's not of the age of 21. ‘'Thay are, 1n fact,
conifidential.

TUF COURT: Thank you, Mr. Malone.

WE . JOHNSCOM: As far as the confidentiality, as
yvou know, I filed 3 motion to seal bDolh the sentencing and the
cxbibits and my understanding is Lhat this Court sealed kbolh
of those roccrds. ‘They remain cont ideniial,

I polieve Mr. Malone is under & mlsapprenensiorl

sbout both what the statufbe NRS G2H.025 provides and what he

CRPTTOL REPORTERS (75} BR2-5322
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can actually do as the attorney for Mr. Cota. And there 1s
two ways thal he can acCess rhe exact same information thal we
55 the Disirict Attorney’s oifice can access.

Fivetr of all, under subsecoion B of 62.025
Section 2, Section £, it does s5ay a Diatrict Altorney —-—
sorry, F —— &nh attowney represent.ing the child. And T believe
i hat Mr. Malone misrcads the statate.

It's nok —— itf doesn't mean that once the —— once
the perscn is noe longer & child, it can only apply TCO the
attornsy thait was representing him at the time. That would
make lillle scnse in light. of what thne srtatute is supposed to
dao, apply to, nolb the aciual proceeding, hut later on whet
you're Jooking at juvenile records.

nng here, he is the attorney for the child, the
merson that, at the time, all of Lhase records relate to and
=0 I — subsecilon T cxpressly provides a mechanism by which
My Malone can access those records from a Juvenile Juslice
agency. Thal's ‘he first way he could do it.. THe conrid
directly request them.

The second way ne could do T would e —— theo
definition of a Juvenile Justlce agency dossn't include the
Juvenile (Court, the 9th Judicial District Couvrt nov does 1t
ipelude ine NDouglas County Shorilfi's Qffice. Those aren't

Juvenile Justlce agencies and this statute only provides —-

—CRPITDL RERORTERS {773] gB2-5324
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look at subsection two —— This is the mechanism oy which a
Juvenile Justice agency may release Juvenile Justics
information.
he stoLute only nDas to do with - - w ity

ininrmal on going From fne Juvenlile Justice agency Lo somecno
- _ aomeone listed here, 1t has nothing to do with Mr.
Malone's shility to redquest, direcily Trom the Juvenile Court,
any record that is Trreniie Justice information. You can
girectly request from the Courl and oblain all ol the
informalion ihat we received, which wWas given To u5
cimultancously wilh i being riled in the Juvenite Juslicse
Court. S0, all of those doouments that we received, Mr,
WMalone has acceess Lo i and he only has to make it a request
ioF it. Bo, if he hasn's done that, thal's his own el sl on.

“p, he has two diflerent ways he could do it. He
could, pursuanc Lo subsecl ion ¥, access all of tThis
informalion or ne could divectly reaquest. it from either the
ounlas County cheriff's QfFics, 1n the evont tl.at those
documenis ave actachad, or from the Juvenile Couri for the 9th
Tudicial Districk Courtc.

o, he has plenty ol ways ne can goet Lhis

information. aAnd so, he's -— he jusb hasn't —— has decided

foil to do it. And he can sLi1l] roouest those. &nd There's

nothing preventing hlp Trom under the law from accessing the
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game things that we can aCULSES.

Bnd =0, as far as Lhat goes, he's not. at any
disadvantage nor is his client at any disadvantage, <oxcepl Lo
\ne exteni thal ne hasn't raguastod thom,

go, Lhat handles lLhat. AS I believe, I jusc
hoard him say several times, this Courl has the ability Lo
consider these doocumenis, And =sa, whatewver Lhe mechanism wWas
by which this Court received them, there's nothlng —- Do
renuon to strike aavy ol it because {this Couri has the abllily
Lo consider all of Lhose.

They are relevani, 1 haven't heard any argument
\hat they're nol relevanl. I've neard che argument about Lhem
keing stale bul we have an individoal whose 19 yzars old.
He's only been an adult Lor less than two years.

The majoriiy of ine informabion ahoui Mr. Cota,

|—

which will help this Court fo decide what the appropriate
sentence is, is before heo gecame an adult. And that'’s why
it's appropriale there. As | oput in my memorandom, Districl
Courts routinely consider information that iz mere Lhan [ive
years oid and even more than Len yoars old, in meking 1is
decision and Lheore's nelhing in any of the deocuments that 1
provided Eo the Court that makes it so stale that it's not

appropriale for Lhnis Court Lo consider iL. And as you said,

this Court decides the woight To glve To any nl the documentCs
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fnat are attached to Lhe sentencing memorandu.

As T opui in my memorandem, and T don'h want co
renasn the memorandum, Your Honob, iL's beon iLhe law for
44 years., It's 1n fooTnoie Two of the S5ilks case Lhat other
criminal conduct may Pe properly considered, even thouwgh the
Nefendant was never charged wiih 1t or convicted of jlL.  TL=
relevance is apparent.  and witn Thal, wa'd rest and Just
submit. 1t on the opposition.

THE COURT:  Mr, Johnson, vefore I hsar agalin from
Mr. Malono, ne alac bas, today, verlbally, reguosted a
concinuance for 30 days to get a psychological evaluat ion.

Has Lhat already been sel up, Mr. Malonet Where
are you at with Lhe process?

MR. MATONS: Yes, Your Honor. But 7 think 1

~1ked about this earlicr. We had requested Dr. Joe

McEllistrem to do the psychological cvaluation because, [

-
1

belisve, that's a contracitual —— it's contractusl Arrangementt
wilh the couniy. BAayway, 17 wouldn’t have —- it wouldn't have
reguired me Lo requesi addi i ional fTunds. 50, we proceedad
wilh that plan when he —— wnen we —- back in August.

nAned then, 1 think § learncd iwo weeks ago, Lhat
Dr. Joe would nol be able o do Lhe evaluation, That nhe fell

he had a conflict.  And so, then, we explored octhar avenies

and didn't file the motlon for unds to e aols to have {.hat
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evalualion done.

S, it's —— I apologize to the Courl for Lhere
heing & delay. It wasn't counsel's fault. It -— wo triced Lo
procecd in The most cfticacious way, prior to Nr. Jo= going
and saying he woulda't be able to do iL.

DHE COURT:  But youn chought 30 days ——

ME. WMRALONN: Oh ——

THE COURT: -- would bs sufficient? Has the
evaluation with the doctor zlrecady been setn oL —-

MR, MALONE: Your Ilonor, my undersianding fraom
vine doctor was she would Interview him on the 13tn. Bul 1

don't — that was just an s-mail Lhat was sort ol basic.

telieve T can interview nilm —— or T plan to ke able Lo

incerview him an the i3Th. ATl

think that was belore we
even got Lhe Court's signed order or were made awarc of the
Court's signed order.

THE COURT:  Ghkay.

MR. MATONE: I think you signed the order. Yeah.

THRF CGURT: Yes.

MR, MELONF: So, that's wherce we're zl righl now.
I jusk wanl to have cushion. I don't want Lo come 1n here
without ihe eval because there's some delay.

Nr. Piasceckl is based at UNR, 50 she does have to

Fravel and set up her schedule To Qo —- COMNS in and antcrview.

CAPLTOL, REPORITERS (75} BB2-L322
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THE COURT:  Is 30 days sufiiclent?

MR. MALONF: L think so.

THE COURT: Okay.

ME . MALONF: 1 would ask alse for i.he Court To
allow me Lo proseni. these decuments Lo Dr. Piasecki iL[ —- if

you arce golng to allod Fhese documents to remain as porilons
of the case.

T also -— T didn't know that the press was here.

I

T don't krnow chiz genileman. Thn sure the Court goos. But 1
would ask the Court to issuc a gag order, 50 this doesn’t make
it inte Lhe local papers.  Tnat cartainly is somelhing Lhat
shouldn't happen., fAnd, ceriainiy, at this point of thco case
and the process hore,

THE COURT: Well, &)l that has happencd herc
today iz argument of Yaw. Whother juvenile records can ba
relezsed and/or considersd by tha Courc. 1'm comfortable thal
that is an zrouameni that csn be held and should be held in
open Couri.

Tre Court will he taking, under submisslon, the
motion and T will generate g writien order. And I vnderstand,
from your commenls Just Now, thal. you need ihe Court to make
that assessment S0 that you <30, than, alisc decide whoether T©o
give the documents Lo Dr. Pizsecki; 1s that correct.

M. MBLONF: “hal's corrsocl.
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IHE COURT: And do you believe the documents
would be helpiul to Dr. Plasecki 1n generating her uasessment?

M. MALOWE: HNo. T ithink that, actually, she
probably shouldn® t hawe Chem Dot iC the Court':s going To have
them and use ithem as part of your seniencing determinabiorn,
then I Uhink T would be remiss in not hawing her acocess them.
She, of course ——

THE COURT: Why -- why would they nol -- the 1
aside, as iar as contidentiszl and whatnot, why wouldntt those
types ot reporks be helpfui to a mental health expert?

MR. MALOME: Well, nuﬁber anc, T —-— 1 —= there
are a couple things. Would Lhoy be helpful, sure. Thay're
not. going te be unhelpful necessarily. 1 believe in —- and
‘he Court's asking me fo maks an argument rutting tne law
aside. So, I wase't doing that. I think L nave To be —— as
4 pEFicer of Lae Court, I think I have 10 follow thes
applicable law, which, T hink, would prevent me from
releasing Lnem o ner.

TEE COURT: Well, my guestion, I guess, 1s, it ¥
decide that the Courl can consider these docunents, Then your

request is that your experi be al lowed Lo revicw them. And

50, Lhat suggests thal you 1 ind some relovance in The

documents. 1t would be helplui tTo DE. Plasecki. That's all

=

'm asking.
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MR. MALONE: Wotb necessarily. Bub I do think
Lhet what Dr. Pilasecki's —- one of the things that I would ask
Dr. Piasecki to do is to assess the relevance ot these
documents at Lhe sentsncing hearing of a 19-vear old, with the
informaticon that she wouid be prosented with.

THE COURT: 50 ——

ME. MALOWE: So, it's not necessarily To 53y Lhat
|l hey would be nelpful for her to come up with some scrt of
treaiment protocol, some sovh of predictive analysis of what
hiz [uture kenavior wouild be or punishment but it wonld be Lo
andermine Che Slate's arqument greatly.

THF COURT: Okay.

MR. MALONE: »fnd I did. FL ITve now deatl with
some of Lhe Court's — T don't know if the Courl. has ather
fuestions.

THE COURT:  Ho.

w2 MALONT: Bii I have some other —--— Your Honor,
the statute in 62H.025F says, "child's attarney."  We know --

wa can just look al leglslatlive znalysis. Rvery word —— thal

word differertiates an atiorney for an acdult., 1t docsn'l say
—— 3 biankei definition would be attorney. Il doesn't say
that. “The legislature chose Lo Say "ohild's attorney.™

tpild's aflorney." 9o, the Court shoula take that into

acoount. 1ty pretcly clear what thev!'re doing there. The
P 4 N o
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attorney

‘or a child in the juvenile proceeding 1s different

than an attorney that's assigned Lo defend an adult in &

criminal procesding.

£lsn, regarding procecdings —— in Juvenile

proceedings, peoplc ave

Tney're not convicied. S0, We
cONVECTLONS Comifig 1.
Al fferent anamali. nnd we have
and we have a
proceedings. 50,
hero. Ha're talk -— and wa're
uncharged aols.

Lram

T ocan's ctoell

five charges are contained iln harc. I

have — you
in my brief.

some of tho

top of the page and you'll see

know, WC have reports in

~— they're mislabeled.

not. convicted in the Juweni e Court.
're pnot talking about criminal

wWhat we're Lalking abouwt 1s a

a completely differenl systemn

conpletely differant way of logking at the

we'lrs not tal king acout juvenile convictions

we're even talking aboul

these records, which of these

mean, wWs have —- wWea

here, I think, that T put

When you 1ook at

sheriti's office roporls, they're lisied at the

that the offense s listed as

an offense that's clearly diticrenl. than whal was

investigated.
#We have InsLances
ar the allegaiions or the acls

wins kicking another boy in ithe

schoobyard.

Kicking in the heels. 1

CAPITOL REPORTRRE

of kicking., One ol the charges

that is listed in the report

hesls ot & —— the

(el

mean, that sounds like
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what we used to call giving somebody

a riat.

THE COOURT: My, Malone, you're klnd af getliing
into the [acis.
ME . MALONE: 1711 jp2 —— I think -— arwd T agoes

with the Court. I'm done. I

wanied to make sure thal there
was =1 distinction. The tegislslure has made a distinctian
herween an attorney and a child's alborney and b vhink that's
imponriant, periocd. I &}so hink that the Court -— Mr. Johnson
14 not address the situvation where he had Lho documenls fitoed
tor a pericd of time when thaey werc not sealed,
nut that's clear from the Court's -- [rom the

dare stamps, time siamps on koih the sentencing memorandum and
on rhe Court's sealing order. You have RO look at. Lhe order,

not. Che iime that the moellicn TO scal was done.

In my —— in anykhing I viled, in this lssus rignhi
now, has required me Lo Come back and forth to Lhe Court
savaral Limes., You'll sse That 1n @y billing sheels. Decause
L didn'ts file anything regarding ths -- MY motions until T had
that order scaling.

50, that was necosSsSary To protect The record and
protect those configdential documents from Doeing accesscd by
the general cubiic.

THE COUKT: All right. ‘Thank you, Mr. Malonc.

M. Johnson, back Lo you.
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34




I
s

MR. JOHNSOM: T apologize, Your Honor. I have
Lwe points and T only —— 1 only adgdressed one oI those.

THE, COURT: Yes. And if you take —— address the
conl.lnuance a5 well.

ME. JOHNSON: Your Honor, my understanding is
ihat, I guess, there was awotion filed ex parte reguesting
funds for an evaluator. Thne only thing ihat I —— I don't hawve
information apout and Mr. Malone's the one —-— had the
inlormal.ion about is, T belliove, there’s been aighi weeks thal
nave heen available for an evaluaticon Lo e done of ihe
e fondant.

We wero prepared To go torward with seniencing
today. T have my witness —-— witness hore, ready to testily.
ind | don't know whethor Dr. McEllistrom was contaclaed on week
seven or wezk one and why there's such a delsy in [inding oul
that, apparsenlly, Dr. MeRlliatram can't do the evaluation,
“hai someone else couldn't have besn ootained. T don'h even
wnow Lhe exact date thai tha ex parle moiion for Iunds Was
made and what —— what the series of events.

G0, my only objeclion would be whether it —-- 1L'S
appropriate for the amount of delay. We've already had the
Defendunt in custody for some time and we'd like iLo procesd
with sentencing as quickly as possible.

vt 1 dor't have enough information Lo say

CARLTOL, REPORTERS (715) 882-5322
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whelher there'’s a good reascn jor thoe amount ol delay that's
happened before this evaluation. T1'1l accepht that,
apparently, Septcmber 13th, if T heard it right, L3 when rhis

evaluation will Lake place. But 1 fbdie o have anothicr

10 days, come in nere and say we haven'l got an evaluation yet

becanse we'd like to proceed To Scntencing.
THE COURT: The Court [inds Lthat ithere is good

crse to conTinge the sentencing. Moo Cota entered a guilty

plea back on Junc 9th —— Gf BXCUSC The, July %th and Mr. Malone

ras provided the Court with sufficlent cause 1o continue,
namely, that he attempted Te get an evi:luation through Dr.
McEilistrem and when Lhat did noi work, he then apprl led fov
funds To attempl te employ another cxperl. Aand the Court
[ings that the Defenss has been diligent jn that redgard,

Yas?

MR. MRLONE: Your Honor, I'd like Lo poinl out
ihat Mr. Cota does have Two charges. T wWas assigned to the

charge, initially, back in July and then we ddid have an

arraigmment. He was arrvalgned on August 6th on Lhe battery by

a prisener charge tnal 1 think changed tho case in SomC Ways.
He was facing more punishmeni. And L —— T'11l be wery honesl
hack in —— when I recsived ihe flrsl caso, there wWwars soms

igsua —— 11 we can approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Well, I don*t think yvou need To. T'm
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find --

MR, MALONN: Okay.

THE COURT: —-- I'm finding thal yvou'wve shown good
couse Tor Lhe conclinusnce. I'li also say, as anotheo baais

for Lhe continuance, thal. the State filed thelir aentencing
memorandum on August 28th and Mr., Malone then filed his motion
io strike. The State tiled thelr opposition just on

September Fth. IC's an interesting issue. The Courl wants Lo
spend time on deciding. And 80, Lhat too is a basis tor the
continuance,

The Court does acknowledoe Lhat that is an
inconvenicnoe for folks whe came hers fo hear or bhe part of
the sentencing. Rowever, paramount Lo Lhe sentencing is thab
the Court be propared Lo go forward with sentoncing.  And so
this matter is going to ke centinued.

Mr. Matone has reguestad one month.  That would
taka us out Lo October Bth.

My, Johnson, yvou indicaiced you have a withes:
preseni and 1'm wondering 1f it might be hest to near this
matter on a non—law ang motion day. Did you —— how long do
you anticipate the witness testimony to pe?

My . JOPNSON:  Your Honors, I imagine the witness's
tesiimony will be about 15 to 20 minuies, 23 iar as direct and

then I have a number, like, a - =snippets oi several calls and
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s pody cam video, which are approximalely, altogether, | wan

F

to =ay, maybe, 20 minutes.

THE COURT: OCkay. And today were any victims ——
gid any victims appear today Lo provide victim imgact
testimony?

Mz, (JOIMSON: I don't kelieve they showed up
today. They had & schedul ing conliict, I'll hw surs to
notify thom acoui the new sentencing daltc.

T™IE COURT: Alr right. Well, from what 1t sounds
lika —— Mr. Mzlong, let me hear on your snd. Are vou
anticipaling this to be a longer than normal scntencing or 15
i . something we could accomplish on & normal law and molicn
day?

MR, MALONE: My anticlpation, at this time,

Yoy Homor, would be thai I owould Just procesd on DO
Piasecki’s written report and noi. have her testilfy.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, MAELONF: Suz Lhat could change. And 1T weollld
detinitely changs Lhe calendar bot L would —— I think I would
be able to inform the Cowrt of inat change wiih pleniy of
toime.

THF, COURT: Okay. So, T'm golng to go ahead, Tor
now, set iL on a law and motion day. Fonr weeks out would bo

Octohaer #th. Mr. Malone, are you avallable oOn that datoe?

CRPITOT. RUPORTERS (775) BEBZ-5322
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ME. MALONT:; Your Honor, can I go in Lne back of
The courtroomn?

THE COUHT: Yes:, Laks your time.

ME. MALONE:  Amnd grab my calesndasc? Octobenr SLi.
That looks fince, Your Honor.

THE OOFUIRT:  Mr. Johnscon, would October 8lh be
okay Lor the Stale?

MR, JOHNSON:  Yes, Your Ronor.

TEE COURY: 2nd your witneazs?

ME. JOENSON: Yas, Your Honor. Well, yes, Your
Honor .

THE COURT:  Okay. &l1 right. Senicncing on bolh
of Lhese matters is continued till October BLh at nine o'clock
in the morning. The Courn understands the parties will be
waiting [or the Court's order regarding the motion and so I
will address That as soon as possibloe and get that oul to the
partics.

In the eveni Lhat the Courl —- L'm just Leying to
think of all issues. I want to make sure when we come Dack
next tims Lhat there isn'i [urther continuance.

Mr. Malone asks that 1L the Court rules in the

State's favor on Lhe pending motion that he would lilke the

doctor, Dr. Piasecki to boe given copies ol Lhe exhibits.

Mr. Johnson, what 1z ihe State's poslbion in thatb
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1 rogarg’?

2 MR, JOHNSON: Your Honoi, 1 think Lhis Court can,
3 a2s parl. of its — iis order granting funds, 1t can also ardeor
4 tnat any or i1 of the doociunents that this Court has already

5 reccoived be provided to DUr. Plasccki,

7 and therefore, any concern Lhat Mr., Malone has

7 sbout him providing them, Lhls Court can provide the documents
8 ar order Mr. Malone to orovide those documsents. 5o, we don't

9 have any ocbjection to ihal.

10 THE COURT:  Okay. Mnd T don't mean Lo glve any
11 indication which way I'm golng on the motion. T'm just trying
12 oy Lhink of whali —— what ofther issues we might have out lLherce.
13 Mr. Malone anyihing else thai you can think of

14 Lhat we should address here Loday?

13 MA . MATONE: o, Your Honor,

15 TEE COURT: Mr. Johnson, how about you?

17 MR, JOHNSON: T just have one worc thing. I Just
18 requesl. that this Couri order that, once Lhe evaluabion 1s

15 compleled, that a cupy of the orsder be provided for the State,

20 a5 soon possible and nol on the sve of scntencing, S0 wWe can
2% iagke a look at ii. and address ik in any way We need to. 50,
22 il gives us some advance notice.

23 TYE COURY: So, Mr. Malone, 1f it's going to be
24 usad by the Defensa, | wouid cxpect you to give a copy f that
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to Lhe Staie in advance of senienclng.

MR. MALONE: | plan on filing it,

THE COURT: ALl right.

ary right. Well, thank you woih focr the

arguments and your legal briels.

issue and the Court plans on spending some time wilh 1T,

Thank you oDoth,

MR, MALONL: Thank you, Your Honor.

Agsin, it's an interesling

(Proccedings concludad.)
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STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY O DOUGLAS )

1, Micnel Loomis, Certilicd Shorthaixd Reporier of
rhe Ninlh Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in
and for the County of Douglas, do hereby cerlify:

That T was prescat in Depariment No. T1 of the
above—entitled Court and took stenotypc notes of the
proceaedings entitlsd herein, and therealter transcriped the
same into typowriting as herein appears;

That the foreqolng transcript Ls a full, true and
correcl transcription of my stenolype notes of sald
proceadings.

BATED: AL Carson City, Wevada, Lhis 2¥nd day of

/ L’W‘L ij?@kd{i/

Michwel Loomis, CCOR Mo, 228

Sepl.emper, 2018.
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Micheol Loomis

Capiiol Reporlers

i23 West Nya Lane, Hulte 197
Carscn City, MY, B%706

(775) 882-5322

1N THE NLINTH JUDICIAT, DISTRICT COURT

IMN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF TAOUGLAS, S5TATE OF NEVADA

5UATRE O NEVRDA, )
]
Plaintiff, !
)
We ) Case No. 18-CR-00084;
| 18-CR-0D1%6
MICHAEL L. COTR JR., )
) Dept. Mo. II
=foendant, j
)
AFPFIRMARTION

Pursuant to NRS 2382B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm Ehai. Lhe Tollowing
docunent DOES NOT contzin Lhe social sccurity nurnber of
any person:

MICIIEL, LOOMTS, RPR
My CCR $2728
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EEFORE THE HONORARLE DISTRICT COURLD JUDCE, THOMAZ GREGORY

1'Hb: STATE O NEVADA,

Plaintit T,
W5 .
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NetTendant .
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MONDRY , OUFUGIRER 8, 2018, MINDREN, HNIVADR
—oio—

THE COURT: The Court nexl calls the Slate of
Newvada veorsus Michael lLewis Cota, Juniocr. There are £wo
cases pending. They are Case Numbers 18CRO116 and 1BCRODEZ.
Show the appearvance ol Matihew Johnson on bahalf ol the
State. Jonn Malone is appearcing on bahall of the defendant.
Good morning. Also appearing in lawful custody on bolh cases
i=s the delcendant, Mr. Cota.

Hello, Mr. Cota.

YR DEFENDANT: Good morning, sic.

THR COURT: We're here today for sentencing on
boeih of these malicrs,

sy, Malone, have you roceived coples of the
presentence investigailon reports? One is dated Bugust Zlst,
207# and one is daled fugust 22nd, of 2{1&.

M2, MATONE: Your llonor, L hawe, and I7ve had Lhe
opportunity Lo review bolh of fthose reporis with Mr, Cota.

TUE COURtY: Rll right., Any [actual corrcctions
Lo offter?

MR, MA[SWE:  No, Your llonor,

TITF CXIUKT:  Mr. Johnsan, has the Siaiie recoelved

5

copies of both the reports

ME . JOHMSOM:  Yos, Your Honor,

CAPTTOL REPORIERS (F751882-5322
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'HE COURT: Do you have any factuzl corrections
to affer?
MR. JOHNSON: The only corrvection 1s the

defendanl lists that he's married Lo Allie Cota but I believe

it's Allie Scaffalani {phonetic) and | don't believe thnat is
correct bul I haven™t —-- I don's have a searvch of tho
marrisge Llicense for that person to conllirm that's correcl.

ME. MALONE:  Your Honor, thal is —— tThat
statement on page two of the PSI is incorrecl. He does share
a rhild wirh Ml lie. They a2re not married.

TR COURT: Ts thalt correct, Mr. Cobta?

THE DEFFNDENT: Yos, ir.

THE COURT: 1 made bthat correction on hoth
presentenca reporls, both at page twe. Thank you for that.

WMy, Malone, and, Mr. Johnson, my Tthought would oo
thal we procoed to sentencing on boih cases and you can make
wour arguments on bhoth. Howsver, L'm also happy ©o procesd
on the cases individually if you would like fo do Lhal.

Mr. Malone, do you have g preference? 06 course,
he'll be sentenced individually but I just meani in terms of
how we procesd Locay.

ME. MO E T Yoy Honor, il would jc my desice Co
procead on both of them in Landem.

PHE COURT: A1l right. Me. Johnson, whal are

CAPTTOL REPORTERS ([77L)EBI-H3ZX
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your thoughts?

MR, JOINSOM: That sounds good Lo us, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Malone, are you prepared
Le go forward with sentencing con boih cases?

MR. MALONE: Your llonor, we are proparved. L
would ask ihat. the Statoe go first. They are going Lo bhe
presenting morce maierial and of necessity a lot of my
sentencing argument is going o be dependent upon the
information and teslimony that Lhoy put in.

TIEE CCURT: &4ll right. Mr. Johnson, what are
vour thoughts apout that?

ME. JOHWMSOM:  Your Honor, I'm not opposcd o
putting on the evidence Eirsf, but we would ask Lo arque
second, That's ususlly the practice of this lourt.

THH COURT: Al right. 1 think ithat's a fair way
to prooczed.

S0, Mr. Johnson, do you have wilnesses you w1l d
like to present today?

M2, JORNSON: - do, Your Honov, IEf I could jusl
grap some exhibiis Lhat I have with the clerk atc ithis time.

TiE COURY:  You may.

ML, MELDNF:x your Ilonor, one olhor matter, Lo
dafensc did file a psycholegical evaluation performed by

Melizsa Piasecki. It was iiled on Thursday. T wanted to

=,
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confirm thal the Court did reccive thal.

THE COURT: ™Mr. Malone, thank you for making that
record. The Couri did reccive and will consider ag part of
ihe sentence the avaluation by Dr. Piaseckl.

MR, MALONE: ‘Thank wou.

THF COURT: I do wani Lo make sure wWith
My . Johnson when he's done wiith Lhe clerk ithat the Stale also
received 1T,

My. Johnson, Mr. Malone had asked 1T the Court
recoived a copy of the psychological evaluation. L confirmed
that | did receive it. T've reviewed it and considered il
and will consider it as part ol the sentencing todsy. Did
thoe Btate recelve 1t as well?

MR. JOHNSON: T did, Your Honor.

VHE COURY: And I shoild have asked you, do you
have any objection to the Court considering the evaluation?

ME, JOEMNSON: T do not, Youor HEohar.

HF, COURT: ALl right, wery goord.

Ckay. dr. Johnson, you may proceed.

WL O JOHNSOM:  Your Honor, Lhe one — T'm going Lo
be playing cne video during —— T don't know if you've holding
it or if T jusL ——

TH® COURT: &11 right. | need to turn on the

system here.

CEPITOL REPORTERS (F/3}HBZ-53327
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JOHMNSCM
TIE, COURT:
ars going to boe atfered?
ME. JOHMSON:
THE COURT:
arc oubklished to ithe Cou
MR SOIIME0N £
THI COUET:

naving any objections?

going to bho ——

ME. MATONE:
those.,

THE COUWT:

PR, MATOMNE:

THE COURT:
Mr. Johnson?

M. JOHRNSON:

contineing from Lhe sent

providod,

I1%'3 going to ke Exhibii 17,

I apologize, Your Honor.

That's okay. &re Liese exhibits Lhat

Yeos, Your HDonor.

[

Tet.'s [irst address that bevore thoy

ri. I have noit seen Lhem yet.

Sure.
Mr.,

Malone, are you going to be

Have you scen what Mr. Johnson 1s
I've hesn

¥eas, provided coples of

Lo you nave any objection?
Mo

How many =sxhibits arce Lhere,
Your Ilonor, I startad the exhibits

encing memorancum I previonsly

18, anc ihen there's

a thumb drive that has onc video and five jail calls.

THF COURT:

MR. JOHNEO0N ;

Okay .

And IT'we alrcady bad them premasekod

by the clerk, and then the lasi exhibit i

which is Exhibit 25, 50 they arce marked as

CAPITOL REPORTERS (T73L}E82-5
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25 are Lhe exhibits which would ha, if I'm adding correctly,
which would be nine total.

TIIE COURT: lio yvou concur with that, madam clerk?

Okay. So Exhibit 17 through 25 are admitted
without objeciian.

It takes a momeni for it tao ——

ME. JOHNSON: ‘'me wideo will ho towards the end.
T'm hapey bto call NDenuty Torras.

THE COURT: Il's what?

MR. JONMSON: ‘'he video will bo played towacds
Lhe end of Deputy Torres' Testimony.

T'He COURT:  Ckay.

Mz, JOHNSOM: Iz takes a lillle bhit to koot up Co
go ahead and begin, Your Hohorv.

THE COURT: I Lhink we should he sli righl here
in jJust a moment.

Mr. Johmson, go ahead and altempt to —— I think
we'lve on—-line.,

MR, JOHNSON: I see what is on my scroen, Your
Honor.

MR, MALONF:  Your Honor, actually | would like to
interpose #n objsciion o any evidonos regarding gang
asaociations and gang information. There's no gang

enhancements in this case. I Lhink thai such evidence would

CAPITOL REPORTERS {?70)18RZ-57323
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o overly prejudicial for to be viowed,
THE COURT:; All right. Mr. Johnson, whait 15 your
rasponsa’

MR, JOEMSON: Your Honoro, as vou Know, sentencing
iz —— the Supreme Courl has said that senitencing, il il's
relevant as long as not highly suspocl ovidence, 116 1=
mdmissible. The actial second offsnse where he has been ——
he has pled guilty to the hatitery on a police ofricer, I'm
aclu=lly going to b plaving video from that and at the
coenclusion of that, he actually relerences his gang and he
makes future threats when he gels oul invelving gang.  So it
is reievani not only Lo the offense bul aiso Lo his character
ard I think it's imporLant for this Court to sec before 1t
makes a sentencing determination zboui whail the zppropriate
saenfence 1=2.

'PHE COURT: The objcciicn is noted for the
record. It lu overruled.

Mr. Jonnson, it docs look iike our sysbem 1s
still warming wp nere. If you would ke fo procesd with
Ceputy lTorres, you may.

MR, JOHWNSON:  Yeun, Your Henor. Your Honor, the
State oslis Depuly Franclsco ravres.

THF. UOURT: Doepuly Torres, please step forward.

Raise your right hand. Face the clerk Lo bo sworn.

CAPITOL REPORTFRSE (T73)882-3327
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LEPUTY FRANCISCO TORRES,
called as a witness on hehall of the
State having keen first duly sworn,

was oxamined and testivied as follows:

THN COUGRT: Please be seated.
LIRECT EXAMIMATION
RY ME. JOHWNSON:
Q. Depuly orres, can you please state your full
nane, and spell your [irst and lasl name for Lhe record.
L. vYes, Francisco Torres, M-r-a—n-co-i-s-c-o

i'—p-r—r-Cc-5S.,

Q. and, deputy, how are you currenlly employed?
. With the Douglas County Sherifi's Qilice.
. And arc you assigned to any specilic unit ovr do

you nave any specific job as a deputy sherivt?

A, Yes, 1'm currantly assigned to the Tri-County
Gang Unit,

0. And what kind of training or experichoe have YoOu
had with Lhe Tri-County Gang Unit?

A, Pri—Coumty Gang, ! 've been -— we've took an
g0-hour ¢lass in Los Angeles, boih in class and out an Fhie:
field part of the California Gang Investigailon Assoclation,

Calitornia Gang Task Force Association, and then | 'we had

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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numerous training Lhirgnghout a2 couple years now.

Q. As a member of the Tri-County Gang Unit, what —-—
what spocifically do wvou do related fo ihat gang unil?

R We ideniify gang menbors within the Lri-couniy
area.

Q. nnd is there cevtain criteria that you look for
wher yol're trying to identify whethor somecne is & gang
membor’?

A, Yes, thore are cerlaln Tactors that we go of i of

in order to validate either a gang member or an assoclate,

. what are those factors that you lock at?
. Contact, seli-associavion or self-admiltance,

Lhenrs

iattoos, dress, sone of those factors
. You sald tattoos and dress, What —— why 1s
tartons —— well, lei's start wilh tattoos. What e Talboos
have to do with gang association?
. Talioos, they will taltoo thelr gang on their
hody. 1f individuals are putling in work, you'll see Lhe

progression between them sitarting oubl a5 a gang membor Oor as

a gang assoclate and become a gang member basad on the amounl

of weork Lhey puc in.  Sometimss il reflects on tattoos.
Q. And you sald puthing in work. What do you mean

by pulling in work?

CAPLU'TOT, REDODRTERS (7751882-5322
17



. Pulting in work, selling drugs, bsating people
up, stzaling certain items and Lhe benefit for the gang.

0. Weuld it be 7Fair to say performing crimes on
brhialf of the gang?

A That is corroct,

O. And have you received any training on ideniiiving
Lattnos to determinre whether they are assoclated wilh a
particular gang?

&, ¥Yes, I have,

Q. And was that part ol the 80 hours thual you did
whan yon initlally were trainced on geng? lave you nad
additional training since then?

B. I've had thal and individual Leaining.

0. Now, vol also say clothing. Why is clething
important for when you're trying Lo ideniify whethor someons
is a gang member and whether they should be validated?

A, Clothing is very imporlant. For example, Bloods,
red, criminrally red. Crips, blue., Surenos, blus, Nortenos,
red,  That's jusl one key foctor in ovder for us Lo pe abhle
to validate an associate or a gang member.

Q. and why do gang memboers wesr cerbain clothing?

A. 1o o intimidaTe, Lo represent thelir gang when Lhioy
are out in public.

Q. S0 you said one of the criteria was clothing, onc

CAPITOL REPDHIFRRS (773}1882-5322
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1 of Liem was tattoos. Did I hear you correctly cne of them is
2 yolfi-identification?
3 B Yes, self-admil.
4 2. Was thers any other criteria?
5 2. Azxocidlion is another one.
& Q. By asscclallion, what do you nean by that?
7 A Association, hanging out with oiher wvalidated
B gang mamber or other assooiates.
9 . Hewr, muowing on, do vou recognize the porson
10 sitting over hore?
11 A, Yes, =ir.
12 2. Ardd who is Lhat individual?
13 ME. MALONR: We silpulaie to thoe identificavion
14 of My, Cota, Your Honore.
is THE COURT: !)» you accept thal silpalation?
1& MR, JOANSON:  Yes, Yoilr Honor.
17 I'HE CODRT:  All right.
18 0. (BY MR, JOHMSCM:) And when is the first Lime ——
15 THY, COURT: Identification has been established.
20 Go aheardk.
Z1 o, By MR, JOHNSOM:)  When is the first Lime that
27 yvou encountered dr. Cola?
2 B. The first time I oncountered Mer, Cota I want Lo
2£ say wus back in probably May of 2017, & littis before Lhat,
CARPITON REPORFERS [T/5)BEZ2-5322
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Q. I'm going to show you an exhibit which has
previonsly been marked Exhibit 17. TL's already been
admitied. I want you o take a look at tha three pages there
and tell me whether you receqnize Lhose?

. Yon, I do.

0. rnd looking at page one ol Exhibit 17, how do you
recognize that picture?

o, T took a piclure of Mr. Coia. He was —— a palreol
deputly bad made conlact with him at - T knew Mr. Cota. [
stopped by, and then I nolbiced that hs had that tatioo on the
Ltop of his left eysbrow., | documenled fhe plcturcs. What
stood oul Lo me is the sccond picture is Lhe red crown ihere,

that is a symhol of the Bloods.

-

Iz Lhis the =same day that vou Look a picture ol
nim on the first page?

AL Thai. 1s correct.

Q. Bnd what is Lhe significance of that Lattoo?

B. That is when 1 started noticing his gang

invoelvement .

. S50 ——

A Some of the loclors,

., g wvou take Lhai wicture?

e iodid,

. and vou took Lhat picturce Lo document what?

CoaPTTGL REPORVERS (F751887-0322
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L. His gany involvemwent.

Q. and what'=s Lhat — what's the significance of
That crown tattoo?

A, Crown, the crown and the red coloring, the crown
is uscd by the Bloods.

Q. Arel then how aboub the third page, did you take
Thait plchurse?

L. Third page is, ithis page was Taken in Dacembor .,
Thai was when Jobrontac Warner, validated gung member oul of
Yogas, he was arrestod.  Mr. Cola was hanging out with him.
Tatloos, more Lattons, ihe dress, the red =nirt,

. Loel's talk abous that for a second. You Look
this plcturs?

&, Yes,

2. Ard as someons thal's been Lrained to identity
things that arc assoclated wilh gangs, let's go step by slep.
What are the things you noliced te you that had changad about
Mr. Cota?

i His taillons, muaber of taltoos had increased.

. rnd specifically what are the new Laitoos that
are deocuneried in Lhat rhotao?

B Mow e has A crown.  e's got ——

Q. 13 thal the —— does that crown have any

significance based on your training and cxperience with

CRDITGL REPORTERS [(775)8HZ-5322
15
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Jangs
A. Yes, that 1s reprosented by the Bloods gang
MEMDSES .
Q. And how about anything else in that picture that
led yvou Lo beileve that he might he associated with a gang?
. The rod shirt and while falking Lo him, he also
adnitted to being a Bloods gang menipor,

0. vou asked him whether he was a member of the

. W,
2 And what did he fell you?
AL That he was.

Q. Mow, we haven't talked about the DBloods yeb,
What can you tell you us about the Blood gang?
I They ars violeni. They ars involwved in murdsr,

drug trafticking, racketesring. They are a very violent

gandy.
2. and whers deo Lhey operate?
N Throughoit the nalion,
Q. Mow, are they divided infto =ny subgroups or are

they all just the Bloods gang?
AL MalLionally thoy are koown &35 bhne Bloods bab
sets. Bach CD stats has different seis.

£1. Md Mr. Cota tell you whother he's invoelved in a

CAPTTOL REPURYERS (775}882-5322
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diilerent set of the Bloods gang?
A, He claimed Lo bo a Blood,
2. Did Mr. Cota tell you how he became a memboer of
ithe Hlaoods gang?
4. He did noi but as L'we gotien —— as I made
oontact with hiwmn, his criminal acliviiy —-—
My, MATONT: Asxed arnd answered, Your Honor,
THE COURT:  Sustained.
i, {BY ME. JOHNSON:) Have vou spoken wilh alher
depuliss who spoke with him ahout how he became associated
with tThe ——

M. MALONE: Obiection, calls [or a hearsay

'HE COURT: Sustained.

Mir . Johnson, while we're wailing, the system is
on.

MIz. JOHNSON:  Okay.

TIE COURT: And so if Lhere's —— it might be your
connection Lo the system thai's the issus.

MR, JOINSOH: T can try Lo clther restart, Your
Honor, or flip the [IDMI one more time. I won't restart it.

THFE COOIRT: Mr. Johnson, i yol would 1ike, we
Carn recess,

MH,. JOHNSON : | ran conlact My, Mchllister i€ it

CREITDL REPORTERS (F7S}8RH2-5322
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Goesn't, He helped me set it up lasl time. I did exactly
the same things he showoed me.

THE COURT: Lei's go ahead and iake a recess,

Neputy Torres, il can step down. We'll resume
in —— we'll shoot ior five minates. If more time 13 needed,
Lhen we'll take it.

MR, THRNSON:  ‘Thank you, Your Honor.

Wnersupon, a brief rsosss was Caken,)

TR COURT: Court is back in scssion on Case
Mumber 18CRO084 and 1BCRU11G. Show The appearance of Matthew
Johnson on behall of the State. John Malone on behalf ol the
dafendant. 2Also appearing is the defendant, dMr. Cota.

Depuny Torres has resumsd the stand. He remalns
under oath,

Mr. Johnson, yail may conlinue.,

o, (BY MR, JOHNSOM:) Depuly Torres, I'm showing you

what's been admiiled and marked as Exhibit 18. Do you racall

me showing you thal in my offics sarliex?

Fil Yes, I do.

Q. and what is thair you're holding?

B. Ik's ivmate mail Lhat My, Cota wrotc.

0. ol senenns ST has treRining and oxperience with

gangs, was there anything in particular in this e-mail that

stood oul Lo you tThat's relaled to gangs?

CRPTFOI, WEPORTERS (F79}8R2-3322
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Fi Yas, every C iz crossced ocut or if there'™s an X

nexl Lo it.

O, what's the signilicsnce of thatn?

M. Iifs a sign of disvespect [or Lhe Crip gang.

Q. How are the Crips and ithe Bloods related?

AL Thay are ensmiss,

o. And 50 is this somerthing thal we typically ses by
2 Blocd memper to cross ocub ah X —— cross out o a C7

. Cross oul & &, yes,

0, Why do they do Lhal again?

2. To show disvesoect for ithe Crip gang members.

Q. Does Mr. Unta assoclate with any known members of
the Blootds gang that you're aware otf?

U et

0. And whe doeos he associana with?

A. Jobrontas Warner.

0. fod how do you xnow Jobronlas Warner is a gong

momber?
A Joprontas Warner.
Q. And how do you know Jobrontas Warner is a menoer

o7 the Bloods gana?
b, Jobrontaze Warner aal i-admititance, drass,
association in Tas Vegas and Lhe prison systom.

MH. MATLONE: Objection, calls for hearsay.

CRBTTOT. REPORLERS (F15)882-5322
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I'HE COURT: Sustaiped.
. {BY MR. JOHMNSON:) ilave you nmoliced ——
M, MALOWE: Move Lo strike the response as well.
TH+ COURT: It's granted.
Q. (RY MlL. JOUNSON:} Tlave you noticed any
parficular Latteos an Jobrontac Warner chat would lead you Lo

balieve that he's a Bloods gang membes?

B Teas .

0. What are those tatloos?

. The Mlayhay.

Q. Aangd 153 that associated with the Bloods in goeneral

or is il associated with the sex?

A That <8 associated with the set Playbey Biscods.

Q. AnG where arc che Playvboy Bloods locabtoed at?

LY Las Vegas.

(. Depubty orres, !'m geing to show you a vidao.

frd, Your Honor, this ls a wvideo from the secund

ineident for which the defendanl has vled guiliy from the
jail from a body cam, and “t's Dzen markec as Exhibit 18 and
marked as Txhibit 19 on the BSHE drive, I didn't want To
present five separatc UsH drives so cach of Lhem 15
delincaied by which exhibit corresponds Lo wnat 1've already

given to the Court.

THM COURT: Thank youa.

CLEITOL RMPORTERS (/151887 -2322
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MR. JORNSON: Thank vou. I'm going to pause it

here pocaunss apparenily —— I Just had Mike check the sound.

TYE WITHNESS: [T will kick in atter the first 30

SOCOnGs .
(Whereupun, a video was played.)

MR. JOHNMSON: Lel's pause LiL right there.

[, N you know whno the person J that he's referring
to?

M Thail's dobroniac.

. Was he incarcerated at tho same tilme as Michaal

Cola was naro?
A. That's correct.
0. pmd J is wobrontae's nlckname?
A, Thai. 15 corroct.

(dhercupon, a video was played.)

TUE WITNESS: Another ihing, when he was beling
walked out, he said socowocp which is also anoiher some Lhng
aboutb RAloods.

(Mhoereupon, a video was played.)

WME. MALONE: Your Honor, T'm going to object to
rhat last stabcment Lhat was mads suc sponte witn no
questioning by the Nistrict Allorney and theo responsce Lhat
soowWoop is something sboul Bloods 1s —— has almost no

relevance. There’s no actual Jegal conclusion of factusl

CAPITOL EFPORTERS (7/51882-3327
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ronclusion. There something about Bloods is —- should bo
streickan. 1t's overly prejudicial., It doesn'i have any
Factual basis from what Deputy Yorres has sald.

TIE COURL: The objection is sustained on the
bhasis that Lheve wos no questioning.

MR, JOINSCW: aAnd, Your Honor, I'm going Lo ask
the resi of the guestions at Lhe end of the wideo. I'm Juss
going to step back., 1 want to make sure Your Honor can hear
all that he said. I'm trying te Lurn the volume up as loud
55 possibic.

(Whereupon, & video was played. )

0. (BY MR. JOHNSOM;} Deputy Torres, did you hear
what he Jjusl said right there?
Fu. T oddid.

MR, MATONS: Obiection, what's the relevance of
Depulky Torres tesbifying as to what wzs =aid on the vigao?

TIE COORT: Mr, Johnson?

MR, JJOINSON: Your Honor, 1'm apoot o asnk him
whai the significance of him saying Bloods bro is.

VYHE CODRY:  Cbjcction is overruled.

Q. (BY MR, JOHNSCGM:) Did you hear what he just said
rthers?

A, Podid.,

Q. And what did he say?

CRP1IOL REPORTERS (775)1882-5322
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a. He made a threat towards the deputics. He says
hels going to break his Jaw.  And then he saicd Ifm Bloods.
Basically saying ne's going to put it on the scl. ['m ihe
gang that's going Lo do thal.

0. Ty this camncn for, kased on your training and
experisnce Tor gang members To comrmunicaic to othoers what

gang they zre involwved In?

Q. And why do thoy do thal?
. To identity themsclves Lo cither get assistance
or to call someone st

(Gheroupen, a4 video was played.)

M. JOHNSOM: Your ilonor, it continues an.  That
is the main vart I wanted you To 5&€. I'm hapoy Lo play Lhe
entire video if counsel wants me to, bub thal was the part
thai T wanteg Lhat I ihought was relovant to the sentencing
hearing.

1 have no furiher questions for Depuly Torres at
this time,

THE COURT: Thank wou.

Me, #Malone, cross-examination?

CROSS—EHAMINATTON
BY K. MATOMR:

. Deputy Torres, I1'm golung to go -- if I can

CAPTTOL BEPORTERS (775)882-5324
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approach.

WHE COURT: You may.

Q. (BY MR. MATONEK:) I have whai's been maried and

admitt=ed a=s Stakbe's 17.

P21 fes.,

2. Are you Familiar with that photograpn?

FIN ¥os, =ir.

. Okay. Just -- 8o thare is the tattoo prescont
over Mr. Cota's left eye in this photograph, right?

a. That is correci.

Q. Are you able To read what it says?

E. Lt's a pretty Dad tattoo,

. Weli, T wasn't asking for ariistic critiques.

A, TE-hun,

o Hut are vou oble to read what 1o 5ays?

L. Finesses,

€. Tinesse, do you know what [incsse means?

i Finesse, we can look it up in the dictionary.

Q. Okay. If T said that iipesse means haviing a
ceriain fouch or lighl touch for things, wonld Lhat help
reflect or educate you Ln any way?

B That could bse ——

0. Or reming you of anything?

L That could ba. That could be. IL could also be

CAPTITOL REPORTERS (775) 8820327
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a nicknams

ELGED
0.
tinessa?
o
.

not dated,

peing used. It could mear a lok of differant

But ii's a name, it's a word there, vight,

It states finesze, yos.
and ihen when we look al this document thal is

the Lattoo has been overlaid, corrvect?

M. That iz correct,

Q. Okay. What kird of hal is Mr. Cota wWenring
Lhere?

. I =ays Cali.

. Okay. And ihe colors are Jamaican sort of
colors, righi?

E. 1113 gab rad, yollow and Jreern.

0. Okay. And is ithat aftiliated wilh any perbicular
gang? Docs thal rod there mean that anybody wearing thal hat

oy

2

Thal is not, there are cerlazin factors.

No, T'm just asking ——

Jusl hecausc —-—

—— does this hat mean that anybody wearing that

ot with red in Li is a Blood and your answer is no, correct?

Mo, sir.
BubL = 1is the answor?
CoalITOL, BIPORTERS [(715788%=-5322
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A,

(o
photogeaph
o

A,

Warner was

0.

That is cofrect, sSir.
Thank you. Do you know when this latter

war taken that shows this crown over ihe lTeft eye

Yis, that was taken Docomber Z8th when Jobrontae
arrestod.

Okay. Ard it somebody goes into a Lattoo shop

and has a tatioo done, oo Lhe HBleoods control whelher or nob a

cortain tab

Lathton shop

hody prebly
A.
4]

correnl?

e

body can be

correci?

Leo can bo given by thay tathoo peraon’

TiL]l give vou an example.

Did you understand Lhe guestion?

I don't.

Artuzily il's possible for anyhbody to walk into 2
and gei whatever thoy wanled tattooced on Their
mich, correct?

That is correct.

Okey. 50 sometimes that can be signiflicant,

There are {actors —

Sir, did you understand the gquestion?

Can you ask it again, pleasa.

ves. Sometimes what i3 faitoocd on a person’s

. — gan have significance to a gang membeeship,

CRPITOL RERPORTERS (775)p842-5372
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K Thers can ne --—

. Yes or no. Ii's a yes or no guostion, siz,

A, Repeat the guestion.

2. T can ask it again. Sometimes people just go in

and get @ tattoo and it docsn't have gang signiticance,
correact?

A, Trhat is corracl.

Q. Okay. And scmetimas people go into a Lathoo shon
ard gel a tattoo and it doss pave sone significance, ocorrecl?

A That 15 cor-ect.

. I'm vod see the —— can you show Che deputy your
rattoo under hils rignt. oye, your righi eye, Are you Lamiliar

with thal fatioo on #r. Cota?

A I believe that is a Ccross.

. Okay. Christian CroHs, righl?

A TtTas a oross.

o. wWell, | mezan a Cheistian Cross varsus Tike an

Orthodox cross, corract?

A, Righl.

. 01 fFferent tymes ot crosses.  So Lhat syinbol has
significance in iLhe Christian religion, correct?

Ao T worldnn'c knoiw.

. to, akay. [ you —— have you ever Seen 4

i
1l
I
]
0
t'|
x
i
Tl
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A, Yas.

. Okay. And a cruciiix is A oross, rignt?

AL Y.

0. Like tne one on Mr. Cotals eye?

A TYes,

Q. Or underncath his eye, and it's got a figure of

Josus being crucilied on it, correct?
o, Corroct,
o. Okay. 9o that symbol has meaning o a Christian

oF Somsone in bhe Chrislian religion, correci?

L. 1 guess it would,

. Okay. o doesh't to you?

B T'm ool Christian so I can't say.

Q. Okay. 4nd you're nol familiar with Lhat

syibology?  You dide't learn that —- you didn't laarn that in

Tos Angeles during your gang trainlng?

M. [
. During Lhas 30 hours?
I I did nol.

. QOkay. Now, you teslified earlier about gandgs
commithing criminal activity for the furtheranco of the gang,
correcl?

& . Correct.

2. Okay. Aut you didn'i Lestify Lo anvihing that

CRLTTOL REPORTERS (/75)882-5322
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Mr. Cota, any offenscs that he's committed that benelitted

the Bloods gang, correct?

B, Him slealing the weapon and the tattoo on his

lefll arm, thai shows me he stole ithat qun. He received a

tattoo which was donc by Jobrenbae Warner he told me.

0. Do you have personal knowladge of7
TIIE DEFENDENT: It's not Lhe sams ogun.
ME, MALDNE: Leb me sSoe,
THi: DEFENDANT: AR47.

0. (RY MR. MATONE:) Eave you ifaken a closce look at

thnal Tatooo?

B It is a rille, long gin.

o, ‘Tha tattoo?

A, Was.

0. Okay. But ithe gun that is the hasis of one of
Cota's crimes here, rlight, T belicws il's 18 —— 18CROOEA,

are you familiar with Lhat case?

= Yes.

Q. Okay. That's the steaiing of ap ARLL style

T That is correct.

o. Okay. And it nad been customized with soms stoock

and ocher addilions, correct, by the owner, Lhs truc owner,

the legal owneco?

CAPIYOT, REDORTERS (775)882-5327
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ME. MATONE: Okay. 5And, Your Honor, L would like
Lhe Court to view and the wilness Lo view the tatloo that i3

on Mr. Cota's left arm, forcarm ithat it's —-

PHE WITHESS: 1i's an RE4AT,
. (uY ME. MALOME:) Ckay. That is not ihe -— the

rifie thal was siglen, cvorracl?

(. This is a Hovict made #ifle, right, started --
developed in the labe 1940s, corroct?

. Sire.

0. Okay. Ii's been a very popular rifle throughout
the world for the tast 70 y=2ars, corrcoi?

A I can't attest to thabi.

0. You're rot familisr with AKAT'=?

A. T can't atfest that ii's been —— galned

nopllarity.

Q. sair enough. Mb's an assallih weapon, right.?
a, That 1s vorrect.
Q. Okzy. That means ithis is a Tuily sutomatic ——

itz a funectional fully automatic assault wespoen, corracl?
e Tt's an assavlt rifle just like an ARLSG.
0. Weil, aciually, an AR1D 1s not an assault ritle;

is 1L7?

CAPLTOL REPORTERS (/75}882-5324
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., Ti's a riflea.

0. Okay. An BRI5S is nolL a fully automatic weapon,

correct”
. I can't say.
Q. well, you testilied thai you know about whatl

rifle was stolen, correct?

A Uh-haih.

Q. Okay. &And vou're not tamiliar -- you're nob
aware That an ARLL is a semiauiomatic rifie?
. T krness thzl an ARlS was stolen, that's zll L
ko,

0. Okay. Put this iz a completely differont weapon,
correct?

. That is repressnlation of an AR47T, that's

correct.

1|
T
L

0. a weapon made cithar 1n Thina or in the

Sovier -— rTormer Sovioch Union, corrvaechk, Russia?

e

Sure.

. Okay. 2nd an RR15 was developed in the United
Slates?

. SHre,

. B3y the Armalite Company?

L. Snure.,

Q. Okay. Introduced in the late 1360= and provided

CAPTTOL HIEPORTERS (J7LYBE2-5322
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Lo Lroops in Vietnam, correct?

MR, JOIMSON:  Your Honor, I object o this

‘witness doesn't have personal knowledge of.

MR, MALCNL: Your Heonor, 1t's compleaicly relewvant
bocause he's already teslificd that ihis tattoo ——
THE COURT: I'm geoing to allow the question.

Q. (DY MR, MALONE:) This is not ithe -— a rendilLich
or a reprasenitallon of the weapon that was stelen, is it?

A Mo, What I skated, sir —-

. Thanl you.

L Okay .

2. Thank you. ¥When did you firsl sse this taltoo on
Mr, Cola's body?

n. I saw il after —— I later lmarned it was that he
got that taltoo afrter the crime.

0. T think you can only tesiily fo things thal
you've S0Cn.

2. Gh-hui,

Q. o my guestion is when did you first see ihis
ta.loo on Mo, Cota's body?

A T believe il was in Marcci.

0. Okay. March ol this yesac?
A. pil=l

Q. Okzy. Wnen was the lasl tLime —— the time that

CAPITOL REPORTERS (//5)882-5322
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vou most rocently seen Mr. Uoto nefaore Warch?

B 1 belicye it was Neccomber Z2Bih,

o. Okay. 2and how zboni before that?
I Wovemboer ZAnd.

0. Okay. And basically am I correct in rhat every
time you sec Mr, Cota, you will approach him and talk to him
or stop him?

A, T've peop in contral contact with him rarnerous

|
=
m
0]

Q. Ckay. Thal didn'l duite ansuer ihe cuestion,
okav. I asked you basical.y if you've scen Mr. Cota on Lhe

strect, vou will stop and talk Lo him?

AL Vas.
. Dkay. Praity mich every single fime?
4. Nel a1l oi Lhe fime.

0. Okay. Pratty mach all ol the Cimae?

a. Hon all of the Time.
Q. What's ihe percentage, 90 perconl of the Lime?
M. Sure,

Q. Okay. And du you phoblograph Mr, Cola overy time

you stop him?

B. Nor aversy time.
0. Okay. Do you photograph him -- welt, that's all.
5o lel me —— you said you stopped him in

CAPTTOL BEFPORTERS (7T75)8832-5322
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Decomier, LDocember 2Btn?

B. Be was presenl there of the arrest ol JobronbLae
WarneT.

a. And rhe time prior o that was what?

LA It T recall it musl have been November Znd.

Q. 11-2-17. And you have prior to the November Znd?

B. 1 can'i say, siv,

Q. Okay. You werc shown jail lelbers wrilten by

Myr. Cota, correct?

A Correat.

Q. Okay. »nnd you testilled thal X's in the middis
aif a ¢, thal iz disrespect shown to the Crips omng?

B, That is cocroct.

. i'n wondering herc too, plue is the Crips color,
corracl?
B Yog, sir.
0. Okay .

THE. DEFENDEWT: Yeah.

ME. MAIONE: |'m not asking yowa, sSir.

&, The cirown over his loft eye 1s hlue, correci?
A, | helieva it iz black.
Q. Would yvon like To comes closcr. Would you accept

iv's black, [ mean bhluas?

. T helieve it's bhlack.

CEP1TOL REDORTERS [775)882-5342
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Q. Can yolz ——

MR, JOHNSCH: Your ilonoer, I beliewve Lhis Court
can derermine the color of the tabtoo on the defendant
wiithout having the witness tastify.

VIE COURT: The wiblness has given nis answar and
My, Johnson 13 corvech.

ME . MAIONE: L would ask the Court te Lake nolc
et Lhe blue color of Mr. Cota’s Cathnoo, correct?

THE CQURT: I wili make my assessment of the
color.

MR, MATONE: Okay. Thank you.

0. Now, [epuiy Torres, this crown ihat is owver
Mr. Cota's left eye completely covered the fincsse tattoo
that had been thers previously, correct?

& Correct.

. Mow, the Jjail mail that you referred Lo eariier,

Lhat's comminicacion to Mr. Cota’s gi rifriend, Allic,

corroct?
n. Correct.
Q. CGkay. Did vou read Lhis?
fi. 1 did not.
. Yo Gid not? I T san spproach, I would have you

rake & look at Lhis and read ivl.

TiE COORT: Yol may.

CAT1ITOL REPORTERS (/75)882-5322

35

A0

Pl




[
L2

MR. MBEONE: And, Your Honor, it's going to Lake
him o litile while to read it. Wonld it bs possible to take
a lititle break, comfort break?

THE COURT: Yos, we'll ctake a recess for five
minukbcs.

ME., MATONZ: Thank you.

{(Wnoeroupon, a Dyiel reoaess Was taken.)

THE COURT: Court is pack in session an Lase
Mimbers 18CR0I4 and 18CROC or excusce me, 0116, Show the
appearance of counsel Tor the Stato. Counsel for Lhe
defendanl., Also appearing s the defendani, Mr. Cola.
Depuby Torres has resumed the stsnd. Re remains under ocath.

Mr. Malone.

0. (8Y MR. MALONE:) Depuly Forres, were You able to
reyipw Exhipit 177
&. eg, Sir.

ME. MALOWR: Okay. 1f 1 could approach, Your
Honor?

THE COURT: Yo may.

. (BY MR. MALCNE:] So in looking at this letier,
it's ciearly a communicaiion., It appears to be a
communication to &llie Cota, < person described as Al ie
Cola, corrcct?

A Thai's COvreci.

CRPTTOL WFEPORTERS {775)8BB2-5322
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Q. Okay. nnd do you know who she is?

A, T belicve from what I know, she was pregnant with

his babhy at one point.

Q. COkay. 5o they had a relatlionship?
A L
o, pnd ihe lettar talks a lot about that

relationship?
A, Yes.
€. Okay. And in the leiler Me. Cola =mays

going to he bettar, correcl?

A, Thal's corroct.

. He's thouwght aboul mistakes he's made
past?

. Correct..

in his

Q. Ckay. And then he wants Lo be a good exampls To

his nephew?

. 'Maf Ly corvrecl.

0. Okay. Dnnd he wants to be 2 gocd cxample Lo their

cnild?

A, (Witness nodded head.)

. He ialks about giving &Allie strength,
oo OnY

B Yes.

. Okay. 8o there's a lot in this leller

CARP1TOL REPORIRRS [775)HBZ-5327
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supportive of hls relationship with —— with Alkiie, correct?
T Correch.

0. Okay. Bl primarily thal's whab 1t is?

B Wes,
. Okuy, thank you. Yo mentioned that Jobroniac,
Johrontae Warnar is an avowesd of geli-identified Riood ——

Blocd member, Tlavboy Bloods?

A Her's a validated gang member, ves.

Q. Okay. B5So validallon moans you validabed him?
&, Thai's correch.

o. law ocnforooment validated him?

B, Corrzodi.

0. Okay. Are there — who are other Playboy Blood

members here in Douglias County?
B, Hlere in Douglas County, ne was the onc.
Q. Okay, thank vou. Nothing furthey,
Thank wyou, Yoo Honov.
TEN COURT: Thank you.

MR, MALOWE: Thank vyou, depuly.

TEE COURT:  LRedirect, Mr. Johnzon?
TR RRCT L AMIBL LR
BY Wik, JOINSON:

Q. When you reviewed Lhe mail, did you sce any C's

CAPITOL RRPORTLERS {775)B82-5322
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Lhat weren'i ¥'d out?

A Vs,

0. and did you —- if vyou want to esiimate how many
CTs were X'd out in bhis document?

. I can't say. lhere was a numbar thal were and a
nuwnher that wers not.

. Morae Lhan ten?

&, Yes.

Q. More than 207

Fi Around thero, y=ah.

. Okay. And ﬂmhtocmﬁimhﬁmm1ymgsmmewﬂh
Michas]l Cota, he admitied thal he was a Bloods gang merber to
Wi, carrecl?

A That. Lo Correch.

Mlt., JOHNSON: o turther questions, Your Honor.
THY CCURL: Recross?
ME. MATONE: Mo, Your Honor. Thank you.

NE COURT: May Leputy Tarrcs be excused?

MR. JOHMSOM:  Yes, Your Honor.

ME, MARILOMNK: Yos, thark you, depuly.

THE WITNTSS: Thank vou.

THE COURT: Doputy Torreos, thank yon.

THF, WITHESS: Thank you, sir. Thank you.

(Mitness excusad, )

CAPITOL REPORTERS [775)1H82-5322
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MR, JUHNSON: I just have a couple of poriions of
jail calls to play, and 1'11 bs addressing the presentalion
of ovidence,

TIE COURT: T wani Lo mzke sure any other
exhibits up with Depuly lorroes?

MR, JOINSON: I believe I just handed all of the
=xhibits ihat were discussed back to the clexk.

TEE COURT: R13 vight.

MR. JOHNSGON: ©Other than Exhibit 1% which ig one
of the cnes on Cthe thumb deive.

THE COURT: Okay, very good. Thank you.

M. JOENSOM: BRBad this is just going to be audic,
Your Honor. T turned the voluwe ap as high as passible,

THE COURT: ATl right.

MR. JOHMSON: aAnd I'wm just golng to he moving
inte the portion.

(Whereupon, an audic was played.)

MR, JOHNSOM: Thal is from May 3rd.

This next Sail call is May 5ih.

ffhersupen, ohl aldic Was played.)

ME. JOHMSON: Thai's sxhibit 21, The next
cxnibit is Exnibii 22 from May Sbh.

(Wherwupon, an audio was played.)

MR, JOHNSOM: Tt's whe same exhiblib. I'wn Jjust

CRPTTOL RFPORTERS (775;882-5322
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gqoing Lorvward.

fWhercupeon, a audic was played.)

ME. JOHMSON: Thnis next cxbibit Js Exhibit 23
froen July 9, 2018.

(Whereupon, an zwdio was played in gpen courl.)

Mz, JOHNSOM: T'm just going to fast forward B
on Exhibit Z3.

(Whereupon, an audio vas prayed.)

ME. JOHNSCM: Theon the last exhibif is
Exhibit ?4. This is from August o, 2018,

(Whersuwpon, an audico was played.]

MR, JOHNSON: Thal's the lasl exbibit and that's=
the only exhibli other than tha sentencing memorandum Lhat ]
wanted to pub on Lor thoe Court.

THE COUET: Thank wyou. Do you still hawve he

thunk drive?

M. JOENSON: 1 do, and I'm going Lo take 1t out

THFE COURT:  Thank yo.

MR, JOUNSON: And 1 have it here, Your Honor.

The 1ast exnhibit iz the roatibgtion, Your Honor.
I dop’i koow if you wWant el hoe prosont Exhitidt 25 now.

PR COURT:  Yes, leb's do that now as well,

sMr. Johnson, what is Lhe toial amcunt of

CAPTTOL REPORTERS (7731882-5322
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requesled restitulion?

MR. JOHNSON: It's 96%.19, Your Honor.

THh COURYT: All right. Thank you.

A1]l right. Mr. Matone, yoOu may make your
recommendations and present any evidence you wonld like o
present.

MR, MATOME: Your Honor, 1 have a couple of
comments aboun Doputy Torres' testimeny. I think one of the
things thal is most intercsting is one of his tinal comments.
le was talking about Blood members -- Blood gang members,
Playboy Blood members ners in Douglas Counly. His response
Lo my guestion about what Playboy Blocd members he was aware
oi nere in Washoe County. Have 1 said Washne County Lwice?

THE COURT: 1 know what you're talking aboont, [
Malone.

MR. MALONE: Douglas County, Douglas Counly, and
I apologize. I'm going Lo take a short pause here to get
my ——

THE COURT: Dor't mind.

M. MAIONE: —— brain rebouled. I think onc ot
the things that 1 notliced and I thoughl was very instroctive
or relevani was when T was talking e him sbout spocifical Ly
Flayboy dlood menbers hove in Mouglas County, his response

was Jobrontae Warner was the only pewson that ne kncow, Lhc

CABTTDL REPORTERS (T7151882-5322
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only vallidated gang nember of that gang. The Court could
take notice of it, it's net much ol a gang. WexTwe hoen
ralking about gang membership nerc all ol the kima.

The Courl is aware of and has revicwed, I'm suro,
Dr. Piasccki's ovaluaiion of Mr. Cota. We know that for

yesrs he's had drug problems. Tt's reflecled in nis juvenile

—

iisfory. Thal goes to some of Lhe comments Lhat he made to
nis —— the wvoilce you heard I think in every phone call was
Allic, correat?

THE DEFMNDANT: Allie.

MR . MATONE: Well, the conversatlonz with his
sister, wifkh his girliriend, when he talks aboul having &
drug probiem, iiL's truc, he does have one. HBe — therce's
plenty of evidenco in the juvenile record that we've objected
o and we witl continue —— T want Lo interpose an abjecbion
o its introduction to any reference to it. 1 assume the
Court —— the Court's previous ruling stands, corrvect?

—ow COURTY: I do know your objection, Mr. Malone,
and the prior ruling doss stand.

Wi, MRLCMK: 5o, Your Honor, since it's coming in
in order to do my Jjob, | necd To make zolerence wo il as well
Jut thsi doosn't walive any objectien Lhat we have fo itz
introduction or consideration by the Court.

40 when he's talking aboul psychological
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conditions, 1 Lhink he refers Lo himsell as psycho.  The
Court is aware of the medications that he was on during his
yorth.  I711 jusl make vefercnce to one of the reports, one
of the evaluations. It gave him a medication case lisk that
was oxtensive, If's my understanding that e has bheen on
over 20 psychoactive medications oOver the vears.

Your Honor, ] apologize, I don't nave that marked
adequaialy bul the Court will —-— can take notlcc of Lhat.
Those reforencas Lhat the modication he was on both at Wosh
Hille and at Couper Canyon oub in Unah. 5o when he's talking
about his need for or the fact that he does hawve
psychological issues in hiz diagnosis, those are Lrue things.
They actvally exist.

What we have is a young man from —— we have all
this juvenile history going back To about when he was Len
voears old.  And, interestingly, that correlates to a time
when his father was incarcerated. His father is also named
M:chael Cota, extensive oriminal history, exlensive use of
drugs. We know thal his falher introduced him to certain
drugs, marijuana and methamphetamine come to mind and were
reflected in Lr. Piasscki’s evaination.

we howve wsally aquite —- yon know, nne of Lhe

issues I thought abeut when loaking afn Mr. (lnta's casc was

comparing him to other irdividuals who I've represanted.
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have a yound man up in Carsom City whno — whose father died
4t ten. AL Ten, this young man's life just wenlk downnill.

He started getting in tronble. e srtarlked interacting with
bad peers. Rnd T remarked —- it was remarkable to me the
paraliels between Michaal Coma and this young man esscentially
she same loss of a father figure, iLhe same Type of ialling
orf the edge ol the earth in Terms 0f gerting in Lrouble and
itts —— il's instructive.

[ think that we talk zbout Lhe influence of
parents huat then when woe Ses divect evidenoce of either
negative pareniing or absent parents, We nave this kind of
situation that does occur, and 1 think il's nob surprising.

Mr. Cota's sistors arc nare in courf. They have
aal had the same proplems. ‘nay bave had difterent —-
different issucs in their iives buot what thoy —— Lhey were
not males doprived of a falher flgure and to this day
deprived of a positive father figure. HEyen though Michazl
Cora Senior is out of cusicdy and walking arovund, he as sarly
a5 this year was intcoducing Michasel Junior Lo iriravenous
methampheianine use, I mean horrible, horribple situation,
horrible parenting and nol anything woe would wish on anypody.

When you do locok at Lhe tokality of Michasl's
juvenile history which the District ALiorney has pubk in, a

1ot of it shows Thal this i1s a young man that has always

CAP)| TOL REPORTERS (775)882-h322
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prescnted himsell as Lough. Lf somebody teased him, he
resctad. 'f sonsbody kit him, he wouid hit back.

and it seems ab a certain point in time when I
looked at the story and looked at everything ihat was gqoing
on in his life Lnan he ended up and started boeing ine poreson
who was blarmed for nearly sverything even when he had not
thrown the First punck or done Lhe first provocalion,

T mean, whal’s been iniroduced as Exhibit 2 s a
pushing in school. 2 pushed a friend. This persen
actually, ne was cooperative with the police. 1 asked —-
this is Lhe report. 1it's cne, LwWo, three, four, [ive, six, I
hel ieve seventh paragraph, T asked Jadm, wWho was The person
who Mr. Cota pushed, if she wanted Michacl to be arrested Lor
pushing ner., Jada siated she did not as Michsel was her
[riend. %o she was pushed. She dadn't hit ihe greound, but
he was arrested and he was taken into custody.

There's a Light In —— I'm sorry, I'm lockind,
2010 vighi n tho homo. Michasl staris oud, he doosn'i want
to do a book report, Be throws a piliow at home, ohds up
overturning a dining table and threw chairs around. 3o 1
would characterize thal as it's nol a good —— good thing, but
itis a thning that we have s pavenl.  We hawe his mothear

cailing the palice. Instead ol disciplining him and being

-1y

able Lo take care aof the problem hecself, she calls the

~RPITOI. REPORTERS (775)8082-5322
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police,

S0 whal. we have is a yolng man whose parenting
was really precupted and by the system, by the juvenile
justice system jnstead of by ihe parents. He Lhrows a
pitlow. He overturns a Labie. MNom catls ihe police and has
mim arrested znd it's time sfier Time.

Maw, one of the things thalt distlurbed me about

this record, and 1 think [ talked about It extensively at our

lasi heariag, was the allegation of sexual behavior. Tt's a
iittic bitf interceting that is in & report thal I balieve

thal the District Artornay probably pulled from their own

[iles. 7Tt's not certainly something that would ke in a

]

Douglas Couniy Sheriff ile pecause iL's preparsd DY
trealment providers a2t facilities where Michael hac besn pul
py Guvenile probation.

o the refarcnoe Lo Lhe sexnzl behavior comes
from Copper Canyon. Lt's I belisve Exhibit 8 and it talks
about Lhe incident with a ten-year—old girl, Michael being 13
ar 14 and her sitting on his lap. S0 what —- and, Your
llonor, 1 wonld ask that Tthe courircom maybe be cleared of any
jail inmaies Thal are present. T don't Lhink Lhere's any
peed [ur their prosence, and wa'oe tnlking about jJuwvenile
history here. | don't think this is sppropriate tor them to

b present.
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MIE COURT: Depuly Mishikida, do you hawve the
ability Lo remove Ms. Payfcon ITom Lhe courtroom?

THE BRAILIFF: Wa do.

THE CcoURY:  If nei, it's Loo —-—

7yF BATLIVNF: But, Your Honor, 1i's going to
cause a delay because -- because the nature of what iy golng
on here, we have to muintain security up hers 50 we have to
get some jall personnel came up hers which is goindg O,
depending on how much —- how Dusy thoy are, the volume of
work down Lhere to hawe somebody up here, I wouldn "t assume
mate than two ar thros minetes but fhal wonllo delay your
procecdings by two or thres minules. Thare's not much slse
we can do aboul T

YR COURT: AL right. 5o, Mr. Malonec, T
apporociats the reguest. I'm not going to deiay Lhese
proceedings To romove an inmave who iz proeseni. in the
COUT T ECO .

Regarding Lhe juvenils records, they have boeen

introduced and considered by the Court. They are zealed and

R

tya read and considered those and, o course, Yol Can-
comment on &3 you gecl appropriale bt just know that ! have
roaed anrd considered Lhom, sa let’s procacd.

MR, MALONE: Your flonor, I think one thing that

ig importanl to note 1n those records are that the pari of

CABTTOL REPORTEARS (779)882-5322
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the Copper Fills' evaluatior which s Exhiibit B makos
reference £o an incident ihat supposcdly occurred at Wiliow
springs. Let me make surc I'‘m referring —- at Willow
Springs.

Txnibit 7 is Lhe report irom Willow Springs.
It's the report from the Douglas County Juvenilc Probation
Depariment. 1L makes no refersncs to that incident
whatuoewer, none.

Coppor Hills 1= clearly saying this happened in
Douglas County. This happened in Navada, and we're golng To
have him evaluated and thoy do Lnst and Then they come up
wilh gome fairly disturbing responses. tme of the things
that Dr. Piasecki reviewed for you and reviewed for Us when
looking over the records were the use of the testing
insiruments thai Copper bBills used, thes 30aP, and the S0RAG.
che notes thal the SOAP s valld for abourn six moniths alter
ii's given. Any conclusions based on that are no gocd aiter
six months. and the SORAL iz an adult oriented test that was
pertormed on a 14-year-oid.

Makino things even worse are ihe fact thal we
don't even know wnere Copper Hills gol that information, He
is meoni [rom Willuw Springs specifically according to Copper

Hills becausc of these incidents, but Willow Springs doesn't

talk apour them at all in their referrals in tha propation
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officer report filed back in April of 2013,

Vet we have this report thal gencrated later on
that year and ii makses —- actuzlly, ['m lncorrect, the — noy
Ty correct. 5o ithe Willow Springs reports arc from 2012 and
he's senl tater that year Lo Copper Ilills, yob we don't hawve
any Jinkags, no nexus betwoan his behavioar at Willow Springs
and what gues on at Copper Iliils.

(n top of that, we know Trom Or. Plasecki thalb
the iesting instrumenis that are used zro not appropriately
agministercd and are nof appropriale for his ags. We also
know that in spile of the dire cOnSequonces ihat Cogper H
goes and Says ars going o hapoen in Levms of thelr
parcentage of - of recidivism, i hose haven't occurred.

e do hoave somebody Lhat's heen diagnosed wilh
ALD, appozitional defiant aisorder. ‘Thosse arc his medical
diagnosis. Therc's one OLner onc. ¢h, actualiy if T can ——
and therc's one other one. it's contained 1o tho Copber
5ills avai, It also uoes and falks aboub The —— his current
psychiatric medications, Zynrexd, Emantadinge, the Midglical
{phonelic), tlonidine and Trazodone. What we have 15 some
prefty poweriul paychiatric agents here thal he's on iy
basleally 2 grals hag of payoniatric medications that. don't
ceem Lo ever have dons him any good.

Sn what we have is a young man wioss parenling
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Was suspoch, parenting was nonexistenl and poorly done Whnsn
it was prescnh, and then we have nim being made & ward of the
siate, a ward of the statc and what 1L Jooks 11ka ié ha's
avernedicated, overmedicated all of the time.

Your Honor, Mr. Cota's sister, Mika, iz here in
the court. She's a subject ol one of The reports. This will
e Fxhibit il. Thisz is an ineidenl where Michael takes
carrots from his nephew's plate. I think the YOUNgSLCY Was
in a highchair and Lhen doss get Into a physical Cight with
Mika, and Mika is prepared Lo tell you & little bit about
that inclident. GShe's here in courl.

Ma'om, can Yol ooing up.

THNF COURT: Do vou want Lo cail her as a witness?

ME. MAELONF: 1711 call her as 4 Witness.

T ET: 4]l right.  Ma'am, coms On up. Stop
there for a moment. Please ralse your right hand and face

the clerhkh to bhe swWarm.

MIKA COTH,
callod as 2w oness on pehalt of the
Detendant having been Lizst duly sworn,

was examined anc testifiod as Lol lows:

THIR COURT: Come on up to the witness sband here

CAPITOL REBORTRRS (77/5)8BZ2-5327
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and have 5 zeat.
My. Malone, you may cenbtinue.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

g2Y M. MALONR;

. ¥a'am, plsasc stale your name, and spell both
your firsi and last name fog the court ceporicr,

L. Mika Coto, M—i-k—-a C—o-t-—a.

Q. Okay. And, Mika, whal is your ralationship with
Michael Coisa?

L T'm hiu sister, hiz alder sisler.

Q. | don't know ii you can speak up tor —— there is
a micropnone Lhers that world help, I think.

A, Yeah.

Q. Ckay. Bnd you're nls older sisber; is thal

correcl?

M. Yas.

2. Okay. Did you -— you grew up togethsc?
A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Who was the primary parent in your

honsehold?

B Our mother,

o Olkay. WwWhnors wes your iather? o

B. He was either locked up or not around.
0. Okay. What do yvou mean by locked up?

CAPLYOL BEEPORTERS (7751882-5322
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Q.

In prison, jail.

Okay. Did vou —— growing up, did you hawe much

contact with your falher?

L,

0.

your [ather?

Not wery much.

(bkay. Did wyou have &ny positive contact with

Mo,

Okay. I3 your father a drug user?

Tes.,

okav.

Is he -— does ho represent To any gangs or

docs he reproseni any gangs or impiy Lhat he's @ member of

any gangs?t

0.

Be claimz he ropresenbts & gand.

'l

Okay. Dnnd what gang would Lhat hbe?

Criops.

vou've hesn present in the courtroom today where

there's heen talk aboul Michael Cota acting like a Rlood,

Th- huh.

ke .

WS,

nd f you can answer oub Toud.

Okay. Is it signilicani to you thal. your father

Crip

and Michasel says that he's a Blood?

T think my brother jusi wanls to ba more —— 1iko,

CEPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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looks up to my dad, and 1 don't know why he -— they both Lry
Tt represeni A gand, 1'm not sure.

Q. HuL why would he be —- you know Lhat they
represent basically different gangs, correct?

A rRight.

0 Or they tallk about reprascnting diflerent OAngs’

L Right.

Q. and Michael dossnl -— doesn't follow nis father
with that?

L Right.

. Okay. And he doos exactly the opposite?

B, quht.

. pny idea aboui that?
L. WMo, T nave no idea.
6. Okay. in Lerms of when Michael was a young

child, what was his physical presence? Was he on the smallier
gide of his peces or largoer?

. He was zboutr overago, pul people picked on him a
lot. He was bullied, and me and my sister, as older s1stcrs,
we would try to defend nim. Wo would defend him.

. Oh, zmorry.

I We just bried Lo dofend him and lika make him so0
itty, T don't know, just frying to be a migger sisler.

Q. Dlay.

CRP1VOL REPORTRERS (7751887 -5322
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M. Tike Lrying To bo There.

o, When you say he was bullied, was Lhat Leasing,
verhal teasling?

& Y5,

0. Okay. Was it physical?

L. Tt got

Q. Okay.

wfter a while, affsr what you observed in terms of

A, Yam.,

.  Okay.

i

A E

Nidg you rnoiLice a change in your

e tricd o be more like the bully.

physical sometimes.

brother

bullying?

Wnat was Lhat?

e Ltried to

portray himsell as the tully so ne didn'i get bullied and he

tried —— he iLried Lo he

. Mol Tosign?

. Y5,

0. Does he act tougher inan
157

I I think so.

0 Okay. Jlave vou sesan i

¥y Yas.

2 Okay. Very olben?

& NS

Q. Ckay .

Fiy Yes.

CAPITOL REVORTRRE
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1s that parl of his truer natnrc?
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0. Gxay. Your brother —— did you witness physical
viclence betwoen your parenits?

A. Yes.

0, Okay. I'rom what age —— when was the sarliesl YOnl
e remember that happoning?

K I don't knoew the years but it was growing up. It
was sonclhing when my dad was around, it was my mem and him
having altercations where it got physical.

. Okay. And are you aware of whether Michael saw
Lhose altercations?

AL fes.

0. Ckay. And =m0 his mode]l as a man was somebady who

was violent o women?

fu. Yos.
Q. And went Lo prison for violsnt crimes?
A Yog .,

0. And used drugs?

. Yz3.

Q. Okay. Have vou witnossed Michael — well,
actually, the incidenl that we're talking about that ooctrred
with vou back in 2014, rigni?

PN YTes,

o, Were yvou Lnjured?

A, Ma.

CAPETON. REPORTERS {T75)882-5322
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0. Okay. You reported that Michacl hib you several

Times on the shoulder; is that corrvect?
L. Nery T ithought he pushed me.
Q. Misned you?
Your Honor, may | approscn?
THE COURT: Yoo may.
ME. MALONE: Okay. I'm going ta -~ Mika, I'm
golng to show you a police report That's dated back in 2014,
THEm COURT: 1s =hzat cne of the markod cxhibitcs,
Mr. Malone®
MR, MATONE: Ti's already been admi tfizd, Your
Bonor. It's Exhibitc Number 11,
THE COUORYV:  ‘thank you,
Q. (BY MR, MATONE:) Mika, I just want you to read
through this.
A, 211 righnl.
o Duickly to rofrosh your recclleclion over —— of

Lne incident?

B, Okay .

o A1l righi. ilave vou ever seen this police
report?

&, Bl

0. Oxay. “hank vou. Did reading Lhal report

reftresh your recolleclion of the incideni?

CAPITCL REDORTERS {4 L) HRBZ-0302
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o, | knend that he didn't hit me, I know hea pushed
T= .

0. Ckay. Pushad you in ‘he shouldcer arsa?

By Yes,

. Okay. And did it lesave a maris?

T, M.

0. Okav. Were you injursd?

L. Mo,

Q. Okay. It describes you falling against a TV,
coTract’?

L. Yam

2. (kay. Can you describe That Lo The Courl?

A. We gol into —— T tricd To take the plate.  He got
upset, and then he wenit and pushed me, and i stheppead pack

inko the '1W.

.

Okay. id the TV knock over?
des .

Okay. Did yom fall ower?

Mo,

Okzy. fnd it storied by him Laking carrois from

TS,
iiho was about what age in 20147

Two.

CAPITOL REPORTERS {775)082-53272
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. Two, oXay. S50 Lock carrobs From a twWo—year—old?
A, Yeah.
Q. Was he —— was iLhere any eloments oI humor or

imasing aboutr that, like joking around?

M. Mo
o Wo, he just wantad the carrots?
M. NMo. He Look —— just taock them, and | wanted to

he momma bear and gel them back [or him.

o Okay. 5o you wanted Lo be a paod mom?

L. Yos.

Q. Okay. Why dic you call the police?

A I guess that's whal heppened when we werc growming
1P -

i Okay.

A So it was somelhing that we did.

0. Okay. You called ihe police on Michasl a lot or

pople called the police on Michael a lol?

2. Yeahn.

0. Qkay. ''ne - 2180 your SO Was therce, Wers you
concerned abouet him witnessing violence?

I Yes.
o, Okay. ‘fhat — and did zhai trigger somathing for
you do you Lhink?

B, T,

CAPITOL REPORTERS [775)882-5322
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Q.

someihing

Okay. For sure or?
What, I'm sore
id -- whon -- when you say iL triggered

in you, whay wers your feelings like? What were

you thinking?

A,

o 1like be bigger so like T'm a rele mocs ]

That I neaded to like, | don'i rnow.

I didn'i want Lo be picked on.

0.
was heling
A

.

=

I,

along bat

ohriject Lo

o

Okay. And did you —- were you concerncd that he

sxposed to violence?

And you had been exposed To violence?

fnd Micnzel had boen exposed to vaolence?
Wes.

And your sisTter had becn exposed to vialence?
Yes.

MR, JOHNSCON:  Yeour Honor, T want Lo move thisz

we can't have the ankbite Lthing ke Teading. I
igading.
THE OO

211 righbt. Sustained.

(DY MR, MATGHL: ) Growing Up 0L ATE YO dwsre of

arny problems of controlled substance that your brother has?

A,

Yis.

CAPYTOL REEORTERS [775)8BB2-5322
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Q. Okuy. Describe Lhosc plecase.

A | know in maybe 2010 my dad introduced him Lo

mari juans and whenevar oy dad was aroung, he inlbreduaced

Micharl to it again and again and then naow going up Lo melh

and so

it's just like a spirfal out ol conblrol.

Q. Okay. Are yol aware of any medications,

psychiafric medications ihat your brother was ON during his

childhood?

zround Lhe house?
A Yes.
0. Okay. And you talksd aboul it witn your motner?
a. Yen.
o, Did you talk about it with Michacl?
. We wolild try and halp my mom have Michael take
the medications every morning.

R, Yosg, nf wWas always on medicat ions.

1. Olay . And wers you ablc wo 5ef Lhase medications
i ¥

O Okay. Did his medications change over the years?

R. They did changs but they didn'i help him.

0. Ckay. Bre you aware ol any Lhat did help him?
A. Mo,
(W] Ukay. ilas your brothor kehavoed o you in a

loving manner al Times?

B ez,

CRPITo. REPORTERS [(775)882-52322
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Q. Okay. Can you describe how mich of percentage of
your interaction with him are positive and loving?

o Probably 20 percent of the timeo.

G. Okay. But there ars times that his behavior can
e —- can you describe the other say ten percent. ol the time?

A TJus=t when he fecls cornered or like he's getting
bullied, I think it just t.riggers whan he was younger and so
he gots agoressive.

. Did you see the video that was played eariier of

hiim in the Jail?

A4

A Yoahk .

2. Okay. Did he look cornerad Lo you?

. Yes.

Q. id he look bullied to you?

i Yas.

2 Did he 1ook Llike hae was io pain?

I, T fecl like he was scarad.

Q. Gkay. BAnd you'ws scen thal with him belore?
A Yes,

Q. Okay. And you went Lo tne same alcnentary

scnools an times®

A Term .
Q. And so vou saw behavior on the playaround?
I, TYes.

CADLIOL REPORTERS (/7/5)882-5322
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0. Where he was bullied?
A, yYes, and ocutside ol the achool.
Q. Do you know wien Michasl started gelting tatioos?

Y Just in 2017,

Q. Okay. So this is zhout year's workth of work
for nim here?

I Yaah,

0. Okay. Are you mware of —- &t Limes ¢id yoll ever

see evidence that he was harming himsel £7

&, Yes.
. Okay. Describe, please, for the judge.
k. One cday we wore in bhe kitchen and he wanted Lo

and his Lifc because he didn't want ©o bhe = failure, and 50
we sal in the kitchen, anc he cried L0 Mg, and he tolo me
that he didn't want to he herc, and so me and hbim taiked

until ha didn't feel thal way and we woeni Lo bec?

2. Dig you aver see him culting himselt?

A, e,

Q. Ruhbing any ol his arms or hurting himself like
Lhat"

A Yeah.

0. B wnat was thai. like?

n. TFf he ¢idn't inflici pain on himscels, he would

pick the scabs until it made a scar 50 like he remanbered il.

CAPITOI, REPORTERS (775)B82-5322
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Q. Okay. llas he Lold you why he gels taltoos?
B. I perscgnally think ihis was necalne we're older,
We got tattoos beliors ho did and so when he gob the chance o
do it he did it and he did excessively.
Q. Okay. Thank you.
a Lth=tuh.
ORGSR AM T NATTON

RY MR, JOHNSCN:

0. Have you witnassed him using methamphe bamine?
B IS
. So you've nover sge Lim use Lt heiore,  BEnd have

yoli ever stelen anyihing before?
& .
Q. Hewe Yol oVer ~-

ME. MATONE: Relevance, Your HOmoco.

THE COURY: What's the relovance?

MH. JOHMSON: Your Honed, it's relevant because
the argument is Lhat his lack of nis family upbringing is the
reason that he comibien Thess crimes, L' asking somecne
shal has a similar Family upbringing it Uhey commi L ted
similar crimes.

THR COUIET:  Tho objscLicn ils susiained. Lel's go
to a 4iftercnt arca.

MR, JOHNSON: Ne further cquestions, Your llonor .

CAPITOI. REPOATERS (775)8B2-5322
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THE CouRT: &1l right. Thank you.
May this witness step down?
MR. MARIONE: One furtincr question.
RADIRFCT EXBMINATION
BY MR, MDbONE:
0. Did you ever sutfer from some ol The bad

upbringing that your brolher expogienced as we:l17

L Wall, | had a child av 14 so I guess L wantoed ©o
he -—

4 Yas, thal's a yes?

A Yes

0. Okay. 5o tor vou that —

o That was my -

2. and are yol -— do you believe Chat. your

upbringing wWas rougn?

& Yeon.
o Okay. Do you beileve thai you wollld have aone

some differenl tThings in your life il that upbringing hadn'l
accurred in the way i0 did?

&, ¥es.

Q. Okay. Was there anything positive aboul your
parenis Dighiiog g11 of ftho tima?

i 3

0. ¥as there anything positiwve aboui your falher

CRUTTOL REPORIERS (7751882-5327%
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goling Lo prison?

0. Was there anything positive about -— your mother
has done drugs in the past; is that correct?

AL M.

Q. No, okay. 18 there anything positive about yoar
father doing drags?

F{ Mo,
Okay. lhank you.
THE COURT: Mr. Johnson?
MR, JOTNSCN: Mo furrher guestions.

THE COURL: &ll righi. You may step dowrn . Thank

VOou .

(Wiiness exXxcused.)

THE COURT: Mr. Malone, do you have cther
wilhnessos?

ME. MARLONE: Wo, Your Honor, bat T still have o
litile hit of argument.

THE COURT: You may Continue.

MR, MATONE:  Your Horor, I think you can S=e Thatl
what my theme herc s Lhat we have a young man whosc parantal
suwpervision, puwoental upbringing was Aan best absent and &i
worse sbusive and negativo and horrible.

We Then have a peviod ol time whare interventilon

CEYTTOEL REFOHTERS (J753882-5322
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Ly the State iz made and things don’t reaily gei any better.
Drag atter drug is prascribad, Incarceration after
incarceration is levied on hiw, and T just see 4 youny person
whose head spinning. MNothing seems to go okav.

Ai. schonl, when he is 11T DY somnebody and there
is an incident in eleomeniary school whers the phther porsch
s+rikes Lhe tirst blow and then Michaci -— Michael is
punished when ho fights back, that happons time and time
again and nolhing ssams ToO WOTR.

m

Thora are bLwo ways to take thal data, that
evidence, thai daia and 1o0% at il. One is this ig a person
that we nesd to incarcerate for vhe gsafery ol the community.
TL's nol a had arqument, bot you've 3een the one incident ol
vicience. You've seen the one incldent whers he's in ihe
jail. His fool is stepped on by Uhe deputy, taken Lo the
medicai unit and then he strikes back.

We know Chal he stole a gun.  We alsn know that
he offered to coopsrate. A2 conperated with Jaw enforcement.
1+ led to the arrest and proscoatlon of wvarious people, He
made an agreement with Lhe Stats ro —— Your Honor, I normally
would want this all sealed and in & —— not ©o he -—— nol to
nave Witnessas privy to b, but I Think it's amportanl to

note Lhat he did make an agreement wilh the State to Testify

and Che prosecution of one oi nis co—deiendants.  He was

CAPTITOL RREORTHRHES {77E188B2-0322
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willing Lo be a witmess. He evantual ly didn't nced Lo b2
calicd, ithat was in Tho initial casce. That was in 0084,

We wlsa have a person 1 think who 15 wanting To
make changes, You heard about the documencation in The
Tetter Lhat ne wrote Lo his girlfricnd and the molher of his
child where ne's walking about heing & betler Derscr:. Hiz's
talking about being a good exarmls To olher peonle, positive
affirmetions ol wnab he waris his 1ifs to pe and whers he
wants Dis lide O ac.

Now, one oi Thase charges dresn't allow him tTo
enter into the regimental dizcipline program. Oowviously, ths
mattory by a prisoner foesn't allow Lhat. What we would
suggesy 1s, number one, thal he b= sent to priscn, that he be
zeni To prison, thal he be scnt gown Lo the High Yascert
Faoility and enter intoe ths DOOL Camp program. You do have

Lhe ability to do that. You can Senithce him on 0084 to that

—
1

program. You CaN suspond the ssntencing irn 011la. That --
what that is going to deo is glve you mors information aibout
the cnaracter of this young man and whelher he hes the
capacity To change.

We spoke earlisrc, I know thal the Courl said
that didn't, I agree, that ihe batter —- the moes in[ormal. ion
rhal you hac io make a judgment the beiler olf things would

me., I think this is an instence whers you, ihe Court, have a

CaPITO:, REPORTERS (7T72)1082-0322
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wonderful opportimity to gain more information aboul
My . Cota. You know, ['m noi golng —— I'm net going Lo say
fhal he's nolL going to go dowi ihere and fail. He c<an b
back in a week, He can be back in & week or he can be back
sranding Laller, sianding prouder and beling betler. ‘
Ii:"s been off any medications and off any drugs
now for monkhs. & don™t think he wants Lo go down therc and
run and work oul and he subjeci TO Aiscipline for the next
iy months, but I think ii's somethling that might o nim
good. 4 ihink it also would give Lhe Court more information

1 -

aboul his charactar and Whers 015 rola in our society 15
going Lo ba.

Yhe casy cholces iz To send him to priscon, but
he's oveniually going to get ouh. Will he beo heiter when he
gets out i ho doos & fow years, four ov five yeavs at most
probably in our prison SYSLal, T don'i think so. That hasn'i
seemed to work in the past. My hope Tor Michael Cota is Lhat
he has a wake-up call and ho puis himselt hack togeiher into
a proceass where he can contribute to seocisety instead of pelng
a drag on il. T think you do have thet ocptlon.

i den't sce any reason Lhat would pravent hiam
pntering the regimental dizsciplinae prodgeam. Thay may et
accept him. ‘they may send him back up here without him

participating, but he may srprise us. o may surprise

CAPTTOL REPDRTERS (775} 882-5322
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himscl £, and he may surprise his family, and he may end up
doing good things. He might he Lhat oxamples Lo his son, Lo
his nephew Thal he wanls To be. We can only hope. Thab
wonld e my primscy argument To Yoy Honor,

pegarding probation, I think i{ you were thinking
ahout granting nin probotlon, which 15 anoLher possibility
herc, entering inio an inpatisnt Lreatment program would be
important. 1'm jusi going to -— I'm just going Lo prasenc

the Couri with what T think s probably the best resolution

of the rase af ihis peintb in Cime. 1L gives you the ophbilon
of say in six 07 sCven months sceing thal he's done woll,

maybe considering more 1ikely to grant probation Lo nim or
mayhe put together o sentence thal would allow him the
opportunity nch Lo do a lgngihy prison Levm.

g5 what il docs is give the Uourt more
informalicn. If gives him the OPPOrLUnity T Jrow and o
prove himsslf apd i does (Toin g wery reskbriclive prison
environment, and woe would ask the Court Lo Toliow Lhat or to
consiger Lhat. ‘Thank you.

VHE COURT:  Thank you, Mr. Maloune.

Mr. Cokba, both of ihese cases tha law affords you
an OpESYLLLiny To narsonslly address the Court and offer any
evidence in mitigation. Would you like to address the Courtl

at this Cime?

CALLTOL REPODRTERD (7751882-5327
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MR, MALOWZ: Do you w@ani to ialk Lo the Coart?

Tow COURT:  Please, stand, Me. Cobs.

=l

HF DEEFNDENT: I wrote the Court a letler, well
you. My name s #ichae! Cofa. T come here —-— oome bheforo
you today as a nunbkle young man. I have made a lob of bad
decisions in my life., I made 2 lot of mislakes, oul |
renlize my past does not have LO define me, and I won't allow
it. [ take iull responsibilivcy af my moLions. 1 lay awaks
many nights thinking snd wishing I could go pack anii chango
my achions.

Tl not only socry because the Consequelces I'm
facing but also -- [ aiso hayve remorse bocause oo let my
stupid decisicns ruin a good frisndship. I'm not a pad
person,  1'm just a yound mal thal has made a Lot ol stuplid
decisions. I woald like to ask yail Lo plzase consider
granting me probalion OF ihe telon —— what?

ME. WALONF: Reaimenlbal Lrestment.

THR DEFENDANT: Yeah, Lhe regimental discipting

program, also become & pOS tive role model to my nephew
klijsh and my sister's pregnant so 1 would Tike to be a role
model for my nephow or niecs when he or she COMCS.

T hawve » lot of inings pushing me ancl moi.iwvating
me Lo do right. wWhoen Logot oul, most. of all T would —— 1

wanl to chango Tor myself so 1 can b= {he person thait I want

CRPITOL REPORTERS (7759)882-5322
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o be for the loved onas and that Lhey deserve. Thank you
for listening to my request.

THE COURT: Thank youa, My. Cota.

Mr. Johnzon, what doss Lhe State recumnend?

ME. JOHNSON: Your llenor, the Staie 13 going to
he recomrending the following sentence and T would like To
dizcuss the reascns why I think it's Lhe appropriate
sentence. If's laid out in the sentencing memorandum. HWe're
recomnending for The [lrst arims, grand larceny, a sentence
ofF 12 to 30 monihs and for Thae sacond, baticry by a prisoner,
= sentence of 2B to T2 months, and we're asking Lhat those
run consecutive,

in sddiiion Lo thal, part of the gulliiy ples
agrooment Thal was signed by the defendant, wa're going Lo be
requesting that the defcondant not have any conlact oF
camminication with Rrittany Mastera (phonetic) or Deanna
Jones MeVay during the ceriod be' incarcerated on parole or
on propaition as & resuli of iLhe grand larceny of a firearn.

T provided o police r2porh in ithere aboui the Lhreats he
macde. Deanna MoVay iz ihs mother of his child that ihe
Ihreais ne made to her and whlle sho wasd pregnanrt, tThe i ld
who was Lo utere.  And part ol euar quiliy plea agresment. Was
that we recquest the Coarl maxe the order of no contact order

during the period of thatb terminaticn. He made simd lar

CaPITOl, REPORTERS 7751 882-5322
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threats Lo Grittany Mastera a5 part uf an agroement .

in additicon to that, we would be asking the
detendant to pay restitution in the smount of $965.19. And
that he be placed —— that's our seniince, Yonr Honor, tbwat T
think it's important to look at tnz tolalicy of what has
happened here.

1he defendant broke into the home 0f a memoory of
nis community. He stolo an BRIS rifie. ll stolc anoiher

ra L

1 fie. He sicole a kniic and ammunition and within a matter

=

of hours laler thet day he already sold it to another gang
member Lhat his triend found, and thal weapon i3 ot Lhere
somewhare ta be used by anyons for who knows what withoui any
remorse ai all or exprasscd remnorie.

Ye was arrested for thai offense.  And while no
was incarcerated, he had zlready camea up wilh this plan how
he's not going to acoepl responsibility for what he did and
heer he was going Lo get out of il. And you heard the jasl
calls abous what he said,  fe sasd 4o ahead and tolk to my
mem. Tell them ! have 2 mental ssue and T'm addicted ta
meihamphotaming, that was on May 3rd. jilex's already Ccome 1R
with his plan about how he's going to convince the Court
ahout how he'!s oescoving of prebation or Siverzlion ov S0OME
other pregram.

‘'wo days later he said, ho laughed with his -—-

CAEPITOL RECORTERS [P75YBR2-0322
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with Allie Scaffalani. He said L'm going io say L'm a
flcking drug addict. T need fucking rehab and they 1 aughead
aboul the fact that I'm just goipg Lo say I'm a drug addicl
ang get out of this thing, no big deal.

men Lhe next day oy actually nours later, he's

-1

zlking again with her and he savs this is Lhe plan, I'm
going Lo aci hella psycho and shii so I don'i have Lo go To
prison bacause 1 want # diversion program. 1 don'b necd to
go to prison. I just have to =ay Lhesc Lhings and the Couwrt
is going te go ahead and put me in 3 diversion pragram of in
Fhis cass some sori of regimental discipline program. 17m
Jusi going To geb cun ol fhal.

Bned then he says he's going to Lell Lhe same
thing To his altorncy, and that was the very beginning,
that Ts aiready whab his plan was. Now, wyou nave bean
presented with what nis statemenl was, whab he told Lhe
puychologisl who evaluated him and there in his statement, he
says he's addicted To methamehetanine and malrijuana, bt wa
don't have any evidence other than that he's ceerying cut his
plan ©o say I'm a big drug addict. I have thoese moptal
health problems to gel out aft this priscn sentence that ig
awWwalting .

We hesrd from his sisier. She sald she never

actually wiitnessad him using methamphetamine, S50 This was

CARI
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his plan, but he didn’t stop rhera. He didn't have remorse
while he was in jail deciding what Lo do and get out. Mo, he
decided what he was golng to do was he was going to get mad
and he was going to punch onc of ths depulies.

Now whal happensd there in jail, he was moved To
another cell and he dign't like Lhat Lhey were forcing him To
mewe Lo the other ceil. Sc he got into @ fight stance insideo
thal jail. He trisd Lo artually get out ot the cnll to
attack ine doputies. They closed the door an that time. He
gulb inve a Dignt.  He threw his oroperly down and he was
ready Te fignl.

Ard just like what happans wiih any other person
in jail, they wenl in To Securse him and place him infto a
sorured chair, gave nim multipls commands to get on the
ground and comply with the orders, comply with Lhe orders in
a jaii facllity, and he dign'l. conoly with those orders, anc
they had to foroibly take him to the ground and in the midst
oif thal he punched one deputy in the face and he knocked the
arm of another depuly, hRitting The Tasel out of his hand. He

1 . -

mace that jail Taclliity nobt Secure, and he didn't slop Lhere.

Ee woent back outside and he continaed Lo Threaten

Lhose depul.ies. ¥ou heard him say to one depuly L['m going Lo
break your jaw when I get oul of here. lhab's a future acl

of vicience. He's alraady saying what he's going to do, and

CAPITOL RESDRTEAS [TI5YEB2-G327
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he Lold another deputy I'm going Lo break your jaw too. S50
we have somebody who has 21ready provided i a senlencing
rmemnrandum, I'm not going to go ihrough it, with a hislory of
vinlence, over 40 acis of violence T provided in that
sentoncing memorandam showing that +his 18 what he doas.

Ha's a vioieni person and in his history you'll read thet.

e have sn aci ve example of what he pled guilty
to, a4 future act of -— a present act of violcnos whnera he
ounched one depuiy, nit The other deputy's arm In a secured
jail facility, and then we have Throats of tulure acts of
violenoo.

And ne's not just throstening Lthose acts e[
violence as he is herss, he's also as you neard Cestimony,
he's repping his gang. You heard hiim on the video say
RBleoods, bro. I'm gaihg Lo breaak you~ Juw. iic's repping his
gang, and he's alrcady salt-admitted Lo Deputy Torres. The
D53 says ho's self-adaittod That he's a membher of ihe Bloods
gang, and he's already threalening future acts of violence
while repping his gang.

We have a threat Lo our community not just Crom
what he's alrveady done, notb just Wwe can look a4t his past
history of violence, wo can look ab wnal. he's already sz2id
he's golng to do when he geis out of jail. He's going Lo

tnreaten depulies and comnit other crimes what I submil to

CADIYGL REPORTERS [745)RB2-0322

g

T =
M_th'lf:




12

20

21

ey

2
L

24

you unless - unless we have some punishmeni thai 1s more
severe than what ho's already had.

He's had every chance imaginable to get his iive
straight. 1 listed all ol the facilities thai he's been in
Morthern Novada, and 1'm not going La rehash thoss, every

ingle one he's falled at. He's heen medicated, and he's

il

failed Lo changs his behevior. And thal.'s just part ol it,
Your Henor, is the violence, his gang assocoiation. We heard

that he's hanging out wiitn a validated member ol the Playuoy

Bloocks .

& has his cwn admission that he's a memner of Lhe
Rlocds, and we don't ased Lo enciuragtc any nrther vecple to
join thai gang here in Douglas County. I submif that is 2
signiticant sentence, Lhe sbucnce of that would do that.

Then I want. to talk abouin his remorse OF in other
words, his lack of remorse. This is what he said on
aly @tn, a day or day and a halk after he penched & deputy
in Ihe face and you heard it, bul. 1'm just going to rehash
it. Be says this, like Saturday marning, I'm like, do you
nead to know, I punched Lhis bhiteh ass in the face. L gob
Lazsed. Therc's noihing more Lo lnvestigats, and thon he
laughs.

=o T osmaw his ass yostacday, hro. He was in the

bubble, and his ass looked like my aye. That shit was

fucking hil

Wl

vigus. 1t was funny. Thal's what no thinks Lwo

CRPITOL REPORTERS (775}882-53227
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days after he punches a depuly in Touglas County Lhat he
thinks ii's really tunny ihat his eye is black and blue, Just
Jike his eyn,. That's not someone who has remoyse. That's
someana Lhat Lhinks it's [unny fo comnif acts of violence
sgainst law enforcement in this commubity, and I dom'L think

we shonld allow that without a significant punishnment of

and then we have him saying | can show SOme

emoticon. This is orn Rugast 8th, /018 winen ne's talking to

MoKernna, and he says this, the judgs is going to grant me

nrobation, T know that, but Thiz is what | got to do.
McKenna told me T have To have cmotions, I don't have any

emotions ancut rhis. He said he has no erntions about whal
he did, noi the grand larsceny, not the punching of the deputy
in onr jail. He says bnt I'11 go zhead and cry in court,
1111 do whatever T need to deo to get back oui on the slreeis.
I1'11 cladm T'm & drug adgiclb. T'11 ctlailm 1'm hella psycho.
T17] elaim thal | have smotlons, and 1'm going Lo ory in
CoUri.

iz haven't had any crying in court, nut we have
someone thet is trying to manipulate the system Lo get back
ouir. an the streels to commit more acts of vieloeoce, annd 1
den't think that Lhat iz Lhe appropriate sentencs. I think

in light of his pasi history, his propensity for viclence,

CAPTTOL REPORTERE (FT75)BE2-L322
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his aclual acis of violence that Lhe approprlare sentence i3
what I just lalg oul wo the Court, and we ask that b=
imposed.

THE COURT:  ‘Thank yoo.

M, Malone?

MA. MALONF: Quick response, Your Bornotr .  To
characierize that conversation as being one where Michasl iz
saying thal he is going Lo go and maks up of fabricale
psychistric problems or drug use belie the facl thal he has
documanted & Long long documented history ol psychiairic
problems that were treated by oxtensive use of drugs and by
his incarceration or hls placement in treatmenl facilities
over the years. L[ dom't fThink that Lhere's any counter Lo

[

the issues of his oxposure Lo Oruds, his use of drugs.

And when we talk about gang activifty, our gang
export, Deputy Torres, Says guess fow many members of itho
Blaods, the Playboy Bloods Arc here in Douglas Counly, O0C,
Jobrontac Warnet, se we don'i Nave mary.

WMo have & young man who fabricates things but
they are not Labrications of his problems. Tney are
fwnrications of his toughness ol Dis manliness and his
ability, really the rcaction ©o somobody who hias beon a

wictim and is Lrving nol To be.

he Couri saw ithe —— the jail vidso. The Court

ARADTIOL REPORTERS {775)882-5327
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saw an aAsp or extendable baton peing pushed up underneath tiis
nose wnililc ne's in & restraint chair, and whal we do hear are
words and Lhreals back from Mr., Cota. put I would say onder
Lhe circumstances where he's in pain, where he's beling
humiliaked, where he 1s belng punched, you saw tho initial
punaches.

The police report sey that one of rhe, not Lhe
deputy, the sheriff's report say that one of Lhe deputies
describes L wvery ciinicaliy as administering twa full body
blows to his crolch arca. The deputy did thalb, =so it's not
surprising thai Mr. Uotu's behavicr under Lhose &1 fCUMSTANces
ewan though it wasn't initially very good cither and he was
provacative, the Lhings he Says in anger in pain are Just
iwar, they are Lhings said 1n anger and pain, and they have
minimal usc in terms of determining what kind of person ne
ia.

Regarding acts of vioclence, we have him throwing
pillows. We navs him pushing people. W¥We nave him kicking
their feet in school. 4Shose are ail things he did as a
child. 1n ierms of his adult pohavior, we have this fighit in

the jail, that's il in ilorms of wiclauce,

H

CRT 5 Theasle grend, Mo, Maleone-
Mr. Jonnscn, are either of the vigtims prescnt”?

ME. JOHNNSON: 1 donft belicve any af the victims

CLE)TOL. RERCRTERS (770) BOZ-2322
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ara here, Your ilonor. And 1L T conld at the risk ol one mnore
mipute, I just wanted to make ono stabement I forgot To make.

THE COORT:  Go ahead.

MR, JOENSON: Your Homor, I just wanted to point
out, 1 know Thai the —

PUEE CORIRT:  br. Cota, andy pMr. Malans, wyoul Ccan
have a seat. 'Unank vou.

MR, JOHMSOW: I know that the doefendant ' s
adnission in documsntation in mitigation sald the SO0RAG iz

no- walid. The person that dratied Lhe SORAG says on, |

don't have the pigs numper bui iT's in Lhe axhibit, il says
howaever Lhe SORAC has been developad and shown to be valid
even when a few of the varlables are unknown andg when the

of Fender might be somewnidl youngar than the norm oroup. So i
iust wanted to peint that out for the record that at least
this person believes 1s approprisie for someonse younger than
the norm group.

THE COURT: Thenk you.

T firsi would Like to fizlk abouat credii for Lime
served. In Lhe Iirst casa, (R4, parclis and NYODaTioN
indicated that crodit [or Lims served would bo 132 days and
that ¥Was as of Scpesmser 10th. 7 belinve there's becn an
addicional 28 days, and 1'm coming up with a Lotal af 16l

day:s.

eAPITOL RMPORTIRE {7I5)BB2-50327
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Noes Lhe division agree with that?

Mo . CERRIGLIA: 1 agree, Your Honor.

wiE COURT: Mr, Malone, do you agree Wwith that?

MR. MALONE: Yes, Your Honor.

TEF, COURL: Mr. Johnson?

MR, JOHNSOW: Yas, Your lonor.

THE COURT: Rlso I would Like Lo know from the
division, Ms. Cerniglia, il you know -— T belicve il was
ailer thes prasenience invaestigalicn ropori wWas lodged,

aithough I conld be mistakesn apont Lhe timing, but T believe

iled o sentencing

Fh

it was after it was lodged, The Stale
memorancun thai the Couri has ceceived and considered under
seal, and T'm wondecing 1f the divisieon at &ll had vhat when
They came up with Lhe sontencing recommendslions that ave
provided in the presantence repori?

MY, CERNTGLLA; L don't believe so, Your Honor,

A

THE COURI':  Okay, thank you.

Would elther side iike Lo comment ON that?

vir . Johmson, aayching you would Jike To say about
Lhat?

ML, JOHMSCN: No, Youar Uonor, [ think yoir can
consider boih,

TE COURT: &1l right. Mz, Malone, any commants

CATITOL BePORTERS (779)882-5322
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you would like To make?

ME . MRLONE; Pleass, Your PFoner.

Mz, Cerniglia, you did follow the regular narole
and probation protocol in accessing Mr. Cola's records?

ME. CERNIGHLIA: Yeas.

ME. MALONF: Because he's uarder 21 y=ars of age,
correct?

Mo, CERNIGLIA: Yas. The only Lime — - are you

ME. MALONE: Yos, nis juvenile record.

Ll

MS. CHENIGL'A: The only ilme we are allowed Lo
put in juvenile affer the age of 21 1is lfovr wiolence or saxual
assavlt or someihing liks that.

MR, MALONF:  But my gQuesLion hors was you nad
access o luvenile records, and you've lisiewl in yolr report

snd those ware —-- inat list is parsusnt to Lhe statute Lhat

you operate under, correct

W5, CERNICGLIA: Yes, Fealher ilardy wrote this
roport and | belisve she did, yes.

ME. M ONE: Okay. And we can see on page three
of —— that's listed on page thres of 0084 and that's the same
Fracge 7

M5, CERNIGLLA:  Yeah, yes.

MH. MAIONE:  Okay. And so youw did have access ©o

Al

pEl
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his juvenile history thabl i3 iisted, two counts of battery,
one assault, probalion violation and discharging a firearm,
corract?

wio . CFRNIGLIA: I pelisve that's correct.

MR. MALONE: Okay. And you have cxperlience ib
preparing presentonoe invasligation roporis?

Mo, CERNICLIA: Yes, since 2000.

ME . MALONR: S0, I mean, you'Te sritl learning
il you do have sone EXperTience.

MG . CHRNIGHLA: Thare's always somoihing Lo
learn.

MR, MAICNE: REnd you're familiar with the methoos
of accessing the juvenile history, correct?

M5, CERNTGLIA: Yeas.

MA. MELONE: Thank you.

TR couy: A1l right. Mr. Malons, you can have
2 seat for a momont.

wWhai T haven't seen yot and wiat I would like To
see pefore | make my decision 1s the lotter Lhat was
introduced. 1t might have beon Rxhibit 18, and | would like
to verlfy thab have all cxhiblis now bean given Lo ihe cleck?

Tm CLERK: Y.

MR, JOHNSOM:  Yes, Your Honox, it should be

Exhibit 17 theough 2%.
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THE COURT: A&ll wight. I'm just going to Lake a
nement to icok at 18 because 1 hadn't seen thai prior.

all right. Mr, Cota, pleasc, stand.

T apprecials all of Lhe informution and arguments

that have oeen supplied to the Court. T helieve it's

o

imporlant ihat = sentoncing Courl be well irformed, and I

el jeve The narties have done That. 'tho Court Finds that ail
0f the evidonoe presented is rvelevani to the Court's
deiermination today and the Court finds thai nons o3 Lhe
evidence is highly suspedci.

Mr. Cota, all of the information about your
jJuvenile history is imporiant o the Court as a matter otf
aszessing your overall person and how vou present to Che
Couri . Ilowsver, a lob more goes inld deciding & saentencoe
Lhan just looking at your nistory, that is one componcnt, and

the Court nas ooked ciosely at bolh of these cases and The

=1

acig amd cirveumsiances surrounding those cases, The Court

=

o taken into consideratlon 211 of the comments and

L

i
a
]

-_n-
PRy Y

ATQUNCNTS made Dy your counse! and all of the evidence that's
boeen presented here today.

The reason I ask the division whelher Lhey had
the sceubencing memorandum when fhey deviacd thair
vecommendalicn is the Court is aldays mindful about

attempling not To pun oo much emphasis on one piace of

CAPTTUL REPORTERS (7751BE2-5322
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information and instead of looking at the tobality of the
cireumstances. Tt was interesling Lo the Court that the
division's recommendation is what It 1is which is a
recormendation for prisen withoul having the Siate's full
senlLencing memorandum.  Mow, Thal goesntt at all couse me Lo
go one wsy or anolher, but I thought it was inieresiing of
thelr assessoent.

And, Ms. Cerniglia, T would Just like To coniirm
wilh you, that's correct, yon dig net have the State’s
sonrencing memorandum when the division preparced the
presentence Tenarts?

MS. CERNTOLIA: 1 don't bolieve —— Heather Hardy
wrole this report, and 1 Tooked through the Tiles alber ycu
cuked Lhat guestlon to see if I saw anything in there and 1
aid not.

THE: COURT:  Ckay.

¥G. CERNIGULIA: 56 [ don't think so.

TUF COURY: 1t docsn'l faclor into my
devision-making here, Mr. Uoiw, I just found 1t intercsting
that they came up with the rocommendation they did even 1f
fhe Court -— cven iLf they didn'L consider the inTormatioen
tnat Mr. Malons has objscted bo. andl sa, of ooorse, when T
comsider everyihing, I'm looking at iLne tolLality, again, of

the circumstances and [ostart wilth Lhe two c2ses that wou' re

CAPITOL REPORTERS (7750 BE2-L5322
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In the firsl case, 1t i3 a crime of thetft ond
irts a crime ol theilb of a Tircarm and & firearm ihat is an
#4715, all of which prescnits a serious set of circumstancas to
ihe Court. The [asctunl clroimsiances behind the theft

inciude burglary and burglary of a Cirearm. Again, all of

)

these tacls and circumstances are things that Lhe Court iin
“n pe significantly sericus.

The second casse involves a orime of vinlence and
it is commatted ah oo Lime wnen you are already in custody ON
the [irst case and the orime of viclence iz dirscted ifowavds
law enforcement, and there arc also with thal threats oi
violence in the futura bo law enforcemsnt, and so Lhose are
things, again, the Court considers very seriously.

I Lnink Mr, Malone's commonts ragarding your
Juvanile conduct and Things Like throwing pills znd kicking
fost is well Faken bub thal’'s nol whai we're taking about
here. We ars talking about an aduit, you, who 15 in custody
doing thesc things to law eniorcement and Laking acts ol
violence and Threatening future vieloncs. Mailn, The Courh
takes these things very sS2riousiy.

Tho gang informaticon iz Smportant. M's one ol
ihe factors that Lhe Couct considers and it's a zelevani

faclor To consider particularly when Lhinking about geners]

CAPLTOT. REPORTERS {775)882-0322
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deterrence, and so those Lhings, again, I [ind are important
to my caonsideralion and a sart of the consideration.

But whai 1 really —— when I look AT The two Cases
you coms before me on, yes, yOU are young and i've tuken that

inkFa consideration. And in Lhe first case, it's your [irst

case in —- aclkually, 1t's not your Very First cose in the
criminel systam., It's your Dirsi felony case in ihe criminal

asystem and T take that into consideration but as L've
indicaned, serions ovlchnses hers, and that's hefore we aven

get into Lrinking aboril gang invelwement and cven before wo

into lacking at your nistory.

T

Qe

5o Tlve considered, Mr. Cola, whoethar you wiahd
be a good candidate for provation, ana the Couri finds what
you are not a good candidate Lor supervision. You have Al
some really roally pooT decisicns hore and thoey arc decisions
that Lrom the Couri's porspective ars deserving ol a prison
sentence.

Mr. Cola, T hope, you have —- y0l: are 19 years
old. You have the ability siill to nake better decisinns.
There is going to come a day when you are out of cusLody and
youl are going to have a long life after that, and you®re
going to have some decisions Lo make then whelher yonn want to
continue the life you've begun here and Live That life in

prison or whelher you con pe the person that T beliave you

CAPITO! REPORTERS (/75)882-5377

3%




10

12

1—
[

14

154

14

22

23

24

can be, but you'wve got Lo make the decisions, Mr. Cota, and
again, you have nct made good declsions hore.

Turning to seniepcing in Lase Number 1BCROCEL,
My, Cotz, Lhe Coort now adjudicates you guilty of Count Four
which is principal Lo grand larceny af a fivearm which 1'm
now prepared to sentencs you.

My . Johnson, ii's my understanding [rom Lhe nlaa
negotialions hat apon sentencing, the Staie would bo mev ing
o dismiss the orther counts; 15 thet corvract?

MR, JORMSOH: That is o

J

rrect, Your Eonor.

THE COURT: BRI right. As Lo Count Four, the
court is going Lo follow the recompendations of Lhe division
ot parole and probation. Mr. Cota, you arc ordoered To pay an
administrative asscssment fee of $25, a DHR Tee 5150, a
gerctic marker L[ee of 33, The Court is not going to order
aLtorney’s iaca, however, because 1 =m golng to order
restitulbion, and the Couri does experi. you to pay that
restitulicn.,  In faci, it wlil be ihe order of theo Courl that
vour appear pefore iLhe Couzi The first Moenday following
sentencing or excusé me, Lhe Iirsi Monday folloawing your
release From cuslody to set up a payment plan To pay back Lhe
restiiLulion in this csse and any cutstanding fees and
smsessments. The restituilion is orderad in the amounl of

E.

£
e

3.

[P
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von are ordered to serve 72 months 1n the Mavada
Deparkment of Corrections with minimn parcle sligibility
beginning whan 16 months have heen served.,  You are granted
credit for time served of 161 days. 'Phere was a component. ol
the piea agreemenl Thal ralked aboul & no contact provision,
and T would like Lhe parties -- counsels' input regarding
whother the Court can order thal in & sitvation whoecos the
Court is ordering prisan time. So, in olther words, Mr, Colz
is not poing -- he's not on probation. He'ls nob belng
supervised. He's being ssnt Lo prison. So really it's Just
a question | howe Tor connsel whethor you believe thal that
is something the Court has suithority to do.

Mr. Jonnson, wnat are your Thoud!

ME . JOHNSOM:  Your loner, LU was part of ihe
agroement. to dismiss the olher counts that hz had agread.
shink il can definilely be -- bo impossd in - when ha's
paroled as a condiiion of the parple that he rof have
contact. | don't know wheiher during —- whethoer wvou <an
control wnat Lhe prison dooss LnTorms ol contact over The

vhona, so .'m not sirce whal your iurisdiction ils over tnat.

Howewvor, 1t 15 - smpposs T should say thai our dismissing
it is contingent on him ol lowing through on the agreement,

hul we ask that in the event Lhat he s paroled Lhat that be

CAPITOT, REBORTERS {745)882-5322
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a condition in Jignhl of his Lhreais.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Malome, whal aze your
Toought 57

MR, MALOME: Your Homodo, T have a0 oplhicoh.

THiE COURT: Whal's that?

MR, MPIONE: I den'L have an epinion. L naven'n

researcnaed That.

-1

o COURT: ©Okay. Thank you. I tand To ugree
with whal Mr. Johnsorn said. I don'l know thai in a situation
whete I'm sending somcbody to prlsen Fnat I can tell that the
prison what the rulas are going to pe or that I can Lall

Mr. CorTa what Lhe rules are golng to be. L'm soncding him to

prison, and il will e the priscn's decizion how To handle

1 do, howowver, and 1 witl slate ifor the record, 1
cncourage the division of parcle and probatlion upan
Mr. Cota's releasc to honor whait L bslicve iz the agraement
of Lhe parties. Thal was the plea agrooment and so 3
certainly encourage thalb but itTs cnocouragemeni only, not a
Court order.

Ms. Corniglia, do you have lopiut?

M. CERNIGT.La: I was just going Lo say at thee
time when he would go hefore the hoard and whoen —— whnen

granted parcle, thay normally read the P31. They have a CoOpy
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of it and they normal ly co honot Lhat.

THE COURP: Okay.

M. CERMNIGLIA: While taking that 1inte
consideration.

I Gid hawve one other quesiion. Is the
resiifution joint and sevezal with Robert Donald Brown?

IIE COURT: Yos, it is. Thank you for that
clarificaiion.

M% . CERNIGLIA: And on this case caly?

4 COURT: Yes. Thank you, Ms. Cerniglia.

M5, CFRNIGLTA: Thank you.

TIE COURT: The Court now finds 1t nppropriate Lo
dismiss The other counts of the informaiion unless Lheva's
any chijeclion, Mr. Jobnson?

ME. JOINSON: Mo, Your llonor.

Tyk COURY:  All right.  So the other counts of
the information wbich T beliews are counts One, 'Two, Threc
and Five are dismissed; ls thal correct, Mr. Jaohnson?

ME. JOHNSON:  Yes, Your Honoy.

THE, COURT: Mr. #alone, da you agree with Lhat?

MR, MERLONF: Yes, Your Honor.

Tr: COURL: Aol right. Turning fo the arfhor
case, Casc Number T8CROI1E, Lhe Court has — my comments for

the olher case realily are similar. Although, partics have

CADPITOT, REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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argucd the casce joinily hers today. Tt's Lhe Court's Job Lo
consider each case individueally and 1 have done S0 hare even
though my comments in boih cases are similar.

Ttve already indicaleo here that this is a crime
of vioclence and ¥r. Malone slated that would koep you —— maks
it improper ior you, aActually Lhat yon would not be gualified
For the regimental discipline program and [ considered bhat,
Mr. Malone, when talking about Lhe tirast case which is not a
vime of violence, so I did faclor thet in in my assessment.

Bt with thisz new case whers i 1s & Crime O

-+

violenoe, The
Coutt has consicdercd in hoth cases wnether To give you
raglmental discipliine and that recquest 18 denied-based Lo
primariiy Lhe new cese helng o crime of violence which speaks
to the Courl loudly aboul whethor you would be 2 goodt
candidaie for Lhet program even on the olther case which i3
not a crime of violenco.

o in Case Number 18CR0116&, the Court adjudicalbes
Mr. Cota guilty of the crima of batliory by a prizon in lawlful
custody wnick 1s a category B felony [or which the Court is
now orepared Lo IMpose SeTTance.

Mr. Malans, do you zgree that Mr. Cota does Don
gel any credii for time scrved in thi=s casa?

MR. MALOWK: Your llonor, [ believe it —— it

depands on whother or not you're going to run conseculive or

CAPITGL REDORTHRS (775)8B2-5322
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concurrent.

THE COURT: Okay.

ME, MATONE: I don't know yet.

PHE COURT: Okay. Wr. Johnson, the division
recommends wero days credit for Lime sarved., Do you sgres
with that?

MG, JOHNSOMN:  Yos, Your ilonot. ToTs my
ndnrstanding he comnilted 1T in jail. He was already
incarceraiod for the other one.

TR COURY:  Rl1 right, wery good.

The delendant is sentcnced to pay the
administrative assessment [ee ol 525, The Cours is not gaing
to impose a DNA Log because tns e foe was imposed in
18cr0084, The Court doss lnposs 3 genetic marker fec of 33.
And once again the Court is nol going to impose atLotney's
Lees.

The Court is going te follow The division's
recommendation as io this case as woll. ¥r. Cota is
sentenced Lo serve 72 months in the Wowvada Nepartment of
Corrections wilh minimum perole eligibslity beginning when
54 months have bDeen served.  That seatence is Lo be run
conserurive Lo Came Nurber 18C200234.  The Court finds the
consecuTive sentence Lo be appropriaie. This 15 a scparale

nifense comaitted on a differvenl day, and it's a differont

CRETMGT REDORTERS {775)882-5327

94

LA




15

19

20

type of an oficnse With another wiclim, and so ths Court
finds 1t appropriate to impese A consecutive sentence in this
case.

Wy, Mamlons, if you —-— 1l's my intention LO grant
zera days credli Tor time cerved on this case, bul 1 would
certainly iisten Lo any arvgument from yaud,

ME . MAONE: Your Henor, I think that's the
correci rule whers you're applylng Lhe correct rmle.

mOE (URT:  Okay. Mr, Johnson, do you hawva any
camment you would like To make on credit for time served?

MR, JOHMNSON: Mo, Your Hooor.

[zl

TliFE (GURT: &As the Court sentence ca both of
thase cases, HMr, Malone, do you have anything furthoer Tar
today's purpose?

wiH. MALOME: No, Your Henor. The -— vas, and
Lhis is perhaps a 1itile bii silly, bui I do have -- Mx. Cota
doss have lsgal paperwork that he wishes mo To Lake
possession of, and I'm not sure when hoe will be transported
from the Douglas County Jaili, IL | could have some guidance
on whon they usnally plck people up.

TIE (OURT: Typicaily the jail doos nol punlicize

Ler and Li's Tor cbvious reasoas. 5o what T wan L rocomnend

i
to you is 1l you have S0MS inlormation, documenis that you

would like to go along with Mr. Ceta, 1 pnderstand that's

CAPIVOL BEPORTERS (F731882-5322
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what yvoor cussiion 1s.

ME. MAIONE: Whelther or not I'm going To have a
day o7 TwWid.

THE COURT: Ckay. What T would suggest you do 18
imrediately after Loday, wnd this is zclually the last matter
on the adult calendar, you can eithers ask ithe jeil or one ol
the hailifis here for some inpat on That. They nrohably are
going 1o tell you to glve 1% Lo him soon 1i it's something
that you wani Lo ensure is going to go wiih him.

ME. MRIONE:  Okay.

TEN COURT: Do either of the bailllfs have any

additional informatlor they would like io provide, Deputy
Nishikida.

~ I 1

Tul BATLIFF: Well, Lypically, Your Honeor, ithat

-1

ii gepends on how long the clerd's oifice iLakes to do an
order of judomeni of conviction and order t.hom wroduced to
“ipe to transport to Tho prison. 5o, you
know, thal depends or their schodinle and sitnif 1ike Lnah. I
woltd necessarily say that, vyes, hoe has anything Lhawn he
wanls to send or give to him, be needs to do Lt propanty by
rhe end of business today.

T COURT: fod, My, Malono, 1€ i1 helps at atl,
usualiy & judoment of conviction will be siuned by the emnd of

today, somctimes within the noxt day.

CAPTTOl. REDORTWRS (775)1082-5322
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ME, MALOWE: Okay.

JEE COURT:  There are times you have couple oT
days but that gives you an idea. UWe do attenpt to get Lhe
judgments out as s0on as possibkle,

M. MBLONK: Thank you. 1 appreciale that.

TR COURT:  Covri slands in reccss.
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STATE OF NEVADA, i

[
I

CAREON CITY,

T, KATIY JACKSON, Novadi Ceriilfied Counrt Reportar
mMumber 402, do horeby certily:

M

That T was preseni in thoe District Court in Minden, in
and for the Srate of Movada, on Monday, October g, 2018, lor
the purpose of reporting in verpatinm stenolyps noces the
wilhin—encitled Sentencing Hearlng?

That Lhe forcgoing transcript, consisting of pages 1
through 9¢, is a full, Lrus and correct Lranscription of sald

Senicnocing dearin

Daicd ar Carson City, WNewvads, this 18th day

ni Ocheobor, 2018,

A F
/5 R 4 chaiharlo

®ATHY JACHKSEN, GCR
Wevagn OUR 407
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AFEFIRMATION

Pursuant to NRS 238B_.030

The Undersigned does hereby affirm that the following
document DOES NOT comtain Lhe social scourity nambcr of any
person: (Tist of document (=) zliached bl owd

1) Sentencing -- 10/8/i8

—ar-
The undersigned doss herchy afiirm that the documrent
named below DOES conlkain the social security number of a
person as raquired by siate or federal law or for Lhe
adminisiration of a public program or for an apbrication for
a fedorel or state grant: (List of document (s) atlached
containing socilal securlily number information below)
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